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Financial Highlights
B E

For the year ended 31 December BE+-BA=1+—HLEE 2021 2020
(in HK$’000) (F#&m) —ED—F —ZTTF +(-)
Revenue A 7,195,982 5,650,619 +27.3%
Gross profit EF] 2,827,197 2,337,309 +21.0%
Operating profit KEER 1,277,972 1,067,172 +19.8%
Profit before income tax BRETIEM AR A 1,274,447 1,052,841 +21.0%
Profit for the year FEEFEF 1,092,242 903,850 +20.8%
Profit attributable to the owners of KABFB ARG EF

the Company 1,083,774 900,123 +20.4%
Research and development costs (included in ~ FA3EE A (BEEITHRERR)

administrative expenses) (512,119) (460,772) +11.1%

2021 2020

At 31 December (in HK$'000) W+=ZBA=+—8 (F%m) —EZ—F —ZETEHF +/(-)
Total current assets MEEERE 7,790,106 6,955,116 +12.0%
Total assets BEMRE 8,821,278 7,637,059 +15.5%
Net current assets MEEEZFE 5,526,563 5,000,797 +10.5%
Total equity M 48R 6,456,556 5,573,572 +15.8%
EARNINGS PER SHARE & DIVIDEND
SREARRE
For the year ended 31 December BE+-HA=1+—HLEE 2021 2020
Per Share (in HK$) S (B - ZETIEF +/(-)
Earnings per share sRET

— Basic —&K 0.989 0.828 +19.4%

— Diluted —#58 0.957 0.823 +16.3%
Proposed final dividend per ordinary share EERESRETERERBRE 0.15 0.10 +50.0%
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FINANCIAL RATIOS
M EER
2021 2020
T —F “—EBTEHF
Gross profit margin ETIES 39.3% 41.4%
Operating profit margin &R 17.8% 18.9%
Net profit margin RIS 15.2% 16.0%
Current ratio (times) TRENEE R (Z) 3.4 3.6
Return on equity’ By 16.8% 16.1%
Return on assets? BE[DIHR 12.3% 11.8%
TURNOVER DAYS
HER
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Year FE Z—+F IZ-\F IZ-hF IZTIZF IZETZ-F
Inventory? =8 138 146 164 183 175
Trade and bills receivables* FEUCER R FE M 4 158 155 134 102 9%
Trade and bills payables® ERRNRERNERE 138 140 158 152 127
Cash conversion? RE @i 158 161 140 133 144
Notes M &E

1

2

3

Return on equity = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total
equity as at year end

Return on assets = Profit attributable to the owners of the Company/Total
assets as at year end

Inventory turnover days = Average gross inventory balance/(Cost of sales
for the year/365 days)

Trade and bills receivables turnover days = Average gross trade and bills
receivables balance/(Revenue for the year/365 days)

Trade and bills payables turnover days = Average trade and bills payables
balance/(Cost of sales for the year/365 days)

Cash conversion days = Inventory turnover days + Trade and bills
receivables turnover days — Trade and bills payables turnover days

REER=FRBRFEABEER FRE
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BEDR=ARLAFEABGLETN FRE
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FEESHY=THESHERRRE (BN
HERM A, 365H)
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Bank Gard Transaction Flow of Electronic Payment
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The following is a simplified diagram illustrating the transaction flow in
a typical electronic payment transaction
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Cardholder
FEA

Merchant
5=

(e.g. hotels, restaurants, retailers )

(BB B )

Acquirers
Ca’i‘;;“e' Wi
= (e.g. First Data, Fiserv, Global Payments,
Hang Seng Bank)
(PI%First Data-Fiserv~Global Payments-1§4:R1T)

Card Association
R4

(e.g. Visa, MasterCard, China UnionPay)
(BYZ0Visa~MasterCard~HEI5RH)

UTEEFMRA—RIBTFEFIARZH

R 57 mAE

E-payment

E-payment Terminals

Solutions Provider
= Rl
(e.g. PAX Global)

(BIIE IR

Terminals Products

BT ZHEIRER

E-payment Terminals solutions provider sells E-payment Terminals
products and provides related services to acquirer directly or
through distributor.

Cardholder purchases with card at a merchant through an
E-payment Terminals.

The E-payment Terminals sends transaction data to the acquirer.

The acquirer sends authorisation request and verifies with the card
issuer that the card number and transaction amount are both valid
through the network of card association.

The card issuer verifies that the cardholder’s credit is sufficient and
grants authorisation.

The acquirer receives the response and relays it to the merchant.
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Products Highlights (for reference only) =
QB Em (EH2E) o

ANDROID SMART E-PAYMENT SOLUTIONS (A-SERIES)
REEREBEFZMBRGTE (ART)

General features: Powered by Android operating system and PCI PTS certified. Compact, portable, equipped with a large
high resolution touch screen and inbuilt dual cameras. Support various kinds of payment options,
including bank card payments, Near Field Communication (“NFC") contactless and QR code payments.

—ARAER NUZ B FERGIRIE WRISPCI PTSREESNEUNTS FEFFR AERASEEHER NEEE
BRE X EEBXMA BFRIT R NFCIFE TR 4B 2 1 o

A920Pro A800 A30 A3 ARG




+ +
AQ)
(

Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

ANDROID SMART ELECTRONIC CASH REGISTER SOLUTIONS (E-SERIES)
REEREEERRRAE ERT)

General Features:

—ARASRL -

Powered by Android operating system, the all-in-one integrated solution delivers cost efficient and space
saving features to merchants. Products are PCI PTS certified. Stylish, large color touch screen, customer-
facing display and an inbuilt camera. Support various kinds of payment options including bank card
payments, NFC contactless and QR code payments.

Mz RERBIBEN—BIEAAFT R TR BHEMANMIER c Em¥PEBPCI PTSFIEE ° MKy
HoBARAFOEER BRESNETRE ABERGRE IEIRITREN NFCIRETUR ZHH
EEELZMNARN-

UNATTENDED SOLUTIONS (IM-SERIES & SK-SERIES)
BB ARFE AR TS I (IMAR T K SKZ 51)

General features:

—ARIFRS

UNLEADED UNbEADEO PREMIUM

IM series

Ideal for self-service sales points such as petrol stations, parking and kiosk. Products are certified with
PCI PTS and have met required standards for anti-vandalism and waterproofing. Support various kinds of
payment options and connectivity options include 3G, 4G, WiFi and Bluetooth.

BRANRICAML S FES -EESEEMFEER S - EREISPCI PTSRE > EBIEMBAKIEE I
BEEBI AR R3G 4G WIFIFIEEF S E B EEE -

LUS UNLEADED




QEEm (EHE2E) ol

ANDROID SMART PAYPHONE & PAYTABLET SOLUTIONS (M-SERIES)
RAGREFHBFRZAERT R (MZRT)

General Features:

—ARASRL -

Powered by Android operating system and PCl PTS 6.x certified. The M30 and M8 are the first-ever
Android smartphone and Android tablet with integrated payment module, which are perfect for retail
and hospitality. Support various kinds of payment options and allow merchants to browse the web, read
emails, check social media, make phone calls, take product pictures or record product videos, etc.

M2 SEE R MRIRIE > 1S PCIPTS 6.x 535E°M30 1 M8 B E MBS EM L T EAN T SR EF ¥
MZe Tk BETENERERA - ZEZIBIMNAN BROUERE  SRBH -TEHLIE
B BE HEEBR R ERRES-

CLASSIC E-PAYMENT SOLUTIONS
BREFMBRGER

General Features:

—RRATEL -

$920

Traditional Linux portfolio with PCI PTS certified, ranging from the D-Series, Q-Series, S-Series, and more.
Support bank card payments, NFC contactless payments, and more.

BHEPCI PTSREEMEFLinuxE R HEDRT] QR SRIF - A ZIRIBIT R NFCIEZBE
EZNE
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Products Highlights (for reference only)
QB Em (EH2E)

PAXSTORE

PAXSTORE, a cloud-based Software as a Service (“SaaS") platform,
connects payment service providers (“PSPs”), acquiring banks,
application developers and merchants, providing one-stop terminal
management and payment services.

Advanced Terminal Management
Industry-leading terminal management features designed to enable PSPs
and acquiring banks manage payment terminals in real time.

Powerful Payment Services Hub

Rich payment industry value-added tools, deliver payment, business
management and consumer data analysis for merchants across diverse
business segments.

4,000,000+ 6,000+

Connected terminals Applications

BARIS FERER

PAXSTORE

PAXSTOREA E i £ BIARFE( SaaS ) F & #
B IRFFMHER  REBRT ERERMER
MEme s BN RIREE R TR -

TEHNRIKER
RAEERBRNRIFEERNE B ARBHE
FE R A U BB SR 1T 1R 4t B RS B 3 S (AR B AR 755

SAREIZ A ARFE RO
BAESENXNTEEETIR RTEEBH
BREEXM - EBEERHEEHEINE
AR#S o

2,200+

Application developers

AR AL
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Corporate Information
~vEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming (Chairman)
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LI Wenjin
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YIP Wai Ming

WU Min
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CHEUNG Shi Yeung
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Corporate Information
~vEEH
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Simplified Corporate Chart
YNSES RS

The following is a simplified corporate chart of the Group’s principal operating subsidiaries up to the date of this report.

PAX Global Technology Limited
(Stock code: 327)
(Bermuda)

Pax Technology Limited
(HK)

100%

Wonder Pax
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(PRC)

100%

Pax Computer
Technology

(Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

(PRC)

100%

Pax Pos
Solutions India
Private Limited

(Indlia)

Pax Technology, Inc.

(USA)

Pax Japan
Kabushiki Kaisha

[NETED))
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95%

CSC Kalia S.r.l

(ttaly)

87%

Kwang Woo
Information &

Communication
Co., Ltd.
(Korea)

70%

Pax ltalia S.r.l.

(Italy)




Simplified Corporate Chart
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Directors and Senior Management
EXREREER

As at 23 March 2022, the date of the Report of the Directors, the
biographical details of the directors (the “Director(s)”) and senior
management of PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) are as
follows:

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

NIE Guoming Chairman

Mr. Nie, aged 59, is the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the general manager of Pax Computer Technology
(Shenzhen) Co. Ltd. (“Pax Technology (Shenzhen)”). He is responsible
for the overall management and strategic development of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). Mr. Nie has over 25 years
of experience in the card payment industry. He joined Pax Technology
Limited (“Pax Technology”) at its founding in March 2000 as the vice
president until January 2001 and subsequently as the president prior
to his appointment as the chairman in June 2010. Mr. Nie previously
worked as an engineer in the Information Technology Department of
the Headquarters of China Merchants Bank in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC") from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Nie graduated from
Tsinghua University in 1984 with a bachelor’s degree in Radio Electronics
and obtained a master’s degree in Radio Electronics Engineering from
Southeast University in 1991. He was appointed as the Chairman and an
Executive Director of the Company in December 2010.

LU Jie Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Lu, aged 57, is the Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director
of the Company and a director in a number of subsidiaries of the
Company. He joined the Group in August 2001 and is responsible for
managing the business development, sales and marketing functions
of the Group. Mr. Lu has over 20 years of experience in sales and
marketing in the electronic payment industry and served a number of
management positions and executive role at Beijing Order Computer
Company (“Beijing Order”), a system integration company, from
1998 to 2001, including general manager of insurance department,
general manager of marketing department and vice president. He had
also worked as an engineer of the Ministry of Geology and Mineral
Resources of the PRC and the Chinese Academy of Geological Sciences
from 1986 to 1994 and from 1994 to 1995 respectively. Mr. Lu holds
a bachelor’'s degree from Chengdu Geology Institute. He obtained an
Executive Master of Business Administration degree from the Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in 2010. He was appointed as the
Chief Executive Officer and an Executive Director of the Company in
May 2013.
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Directors and Senior Management
EXREREER

LI Wenjin

Mr. Li, aged 58, is an Executive Director of the Company and a
director in a number of subsidiaries of the Company. He is responsible
for the Company’s risk management and treasury management and
overseeing operations of Pax Technology, of which he has been serving
as a director since April 2000. Mr. Li has over 30 years of experience
in investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li was the director of Hi
Sun Information Technology Services Limited (“HSITSL”) from August
1997 to May 2005, a Hong Kong company engaging in general trading
and provision of consultancy services. HSITSL provided consultancy
services to Pax Technology from 2002 to 2003. Mr. Li has also been
the managing director of Hi Sun Limited since August 1999 and an
executive director of Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited (“Hi Sun”), a
controlling shareholder of the Company, since June 2001. He has also
been appointed as an executive director of both Hi Sun Limited and Hi
Sun and certain of their subsidiaries. Prior to joining Hi Sun Limited in
1999, he worked for several companies in the PRC and Hong Kong,
including Beijing Order from 1994 to 1995 where he was responsible for
investment and administrative affairs. Mr. Li obtained a master’s degree
in laws from the Peking University in 1989. He was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company in February 2010.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

YIP Wai Ming

Mr. Yip, aged 56, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Yip is currently an
independent non-executive director of Ju Teng International Holdings
Limited (EREBERIZRBRAE]), Far East Horizon Limited (ZR (S
BR/AT), Poly Culture Group Corporation Limited (fRF 215 £ [ A%
MAERA T) Yida China Holdings Limited (fBZFEIZREBRAR),
Huobi Technology Holdings Limited (K %% 2 B PR/A B)) and Peijia
Medical Limited Gz B HEBR/AE)), all of which are companies listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Mr. Yip graduated from The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s
degree in social sciences in 1987. He also holds a bachelor’s degree
in laws from the University of London. Mr. Yip is a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants, and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chinese
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

WU Min

Dr. Wu, aged 50, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Previously, Dr. Wu was an
assistant professor at The Hong Kong University of Science & Technology
Business School and The University of Hong Kong School of Business. Dr.
Wu has been teaching International Accounting Standards, US Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles and Chinese Accounting Standards.
Her academic research achievements in identifying US accounting
restatements and frauds were reported by various media, including the
Wall Street Journal, New York Times, Business Week, Fortune, CNN, etc.
Dr. Wu used to cooperate with major accounting firms and the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (US) in conducting research in the
areas of accounting manipulation and frauds by US listed companies.
She also provides professional interpretation and analysis services for
investment funds on accounting standards and on listed companies’
financial statements. Dr. Wu graduated from the Peking University with
a bachelor’s degree in Economics in 1994 and obtained a master’s
degree in Economics from the Tufts University in 1996 and a Ph.D. in
Accounting from the Stern School of Business, New York University in
2003.
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Directors and Senior Management
EXREREER

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Mr. Man, aged 63, was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive
Director of the Company in December 2010. Mr. Man graduated from
The University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in laws in 1981.
Mr. Man was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in 1984 and has
practised as a solicitor at Joseph S. C. Chan & Co. (formerly known as
Chan and Lo) in Hong Kong since then. He is currently a partner of
Joseph S.C. Chan & Co.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LUO Shaowen

Mr. Luo, aged 53, is the executive vice president and chairman of
Pax Technology (Shenzhen). He is responsible for the research and
development management of the Company’s smart electronic payment
point-of-sale terminals (“E-payment Terminals”) products and supply
chain business (procurement production, quality management and
information technology) and oversees the finance of the operations in
Shenzhen and construction matters. Mr. Luo graduated from Wuhan
University with a bachelor’s degree in economic management. Mr. Luo
has over 20 years of experience in the card payment industry and over
15 years of experience in financial administration and supply chain
management. He joined Pax Technology (Shenzhen) in December 2004
as the chief financial officer. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Luo served
various management positions in Beijing Order and Beijing Hi Sun
Electric Power Information Technology Limited.

CHEUNG Shi Yeung

Mr. Cheung, aged 38, is the Chief Financial Officer and one of the joint
company secretaries of the Company (the “Company Secretary(ies)”).
He joined the Group in October 2016 and is responsible for overseeing
the business development, finance, compliance, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations of the Group. Mr. Cheung graduated from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong with a bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration in 2006 and obtained a master’s degree in Business
Administration jointly from Columbia University, United States, London
Business School, United Kingdom and The University of Hong Kong
in 2021. Mr. Cheung has over 15 years of financial and accounting
related experience. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and an associate of The Chartered Institute
of Management Accountants. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Cheung
worked for an international public accountancy firm and was involved
in a number of audit and assurance, capital market transaction and
advisory projects advising corporate clients including listed companies
and conglomerates worldwide.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERSE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of PAX Global
Technology Limited (“PAX” or “the Company”, together with its
subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased to present the annual report of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the year under review, the Group's revenue, profit for the year,
profit for the year attributable to the owners of the Company and the
proposed final dividend have achieved record highs.

The Group’s revenue amounted to HK$7,196.0 million in 2021,
representing an increase of 27.3% compared to HK$5,650.6 million in
2020. All regions recorded growth, especially in the United States of
America and Canada (“USCA") and Europe, the Middle East and Africa
("EMEA"). The growth was mainly driven by the increase in market
penetration and sales of Android payment terminals.

In 2021, profit for the year was HK$1,092.2 million, representing an
increase of 20.8% compared to HK$903.9 million in 2020. Profit for
the year attributable to the owners of the Company was HK$1,083.8
million, representing an increase of 20.4% as compared to HK$900.1
million in 2020. Basic earnings per share for the year was 98.9 HK cents
(2020: 82.8 HK cents).

The Board has recommended to declare a final dividend of HK$0.15
per ordinary share (2020: HK$0.10) for the year ended 31 December
2021, amounting to a total of approximately HK$162,855,000 (2020:
HK$109,414,000) (assuming no change in the number of shares in issue
on or before the record date for determining the entitlement of final
dividend) subject to the approval of the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERSE

OUTLOOK

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic continued to hit economies across
the world. In the face of such tough times, PAX has managed to turn
these challenges into opportunities and driving forces for business
development. The world is shifting towards an increasingly cashless
society under the pandemic. Bricks-and-mortar merchants have
accelerated their pace of digital transformation, further releasing the
perceived value of deploying smart payment terminals. Demand for PAX
Android smart payment terminals continues in a high-growth trajectory.
Thanks to closer partnerships with acquiring banks and payment service
providers (“PSPs”) across all global regions, PAX continued to help
merchants enhance their digital resilience and grasp the opportunities
presented by the new normal in the post-pandemic era.

As the international leader in the global payment terminal industry, PAX
has been leading the market trend and security upgrade of payment
terminal technology. Over the past two decades, the Group has
consistently invested in research and development (“R&D"), delivering
superior product innovation for customers in over 120 countries, with
particular emphasis in recent years on bringing new-generation Android
smart payment terminals and further enhancing the powerful PAXSTORE
platform.

In the pursuit of product innovation, security is always the top priority
for the Group. There is a rigorous security management system in place
at PAX, which consists of a range of security controls implementing
in the areas of operations and maintenance security in the system
architecture, network security, data protection, privacy compliance
and etc. The Group has attained the ISO/IEC 27001:2013 certification,
which is internationally recognised as the most authoritative and widely
adopted information security management system standard. PAX
payment terminal portfolio and services are certified to comply with
the security standards of the Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) Security
Standards Council, which are the world’s most stringent data security
standards in the industry. With product innovation and expertise of
reaching international security standards, the Group has become a
reliable partner of mainstream international and regional acquiring
banks and payment service providers.

In 2021, sales of Android smart payment terminals fueled the PAX's
impressive results in multiple international markets. The Group's revenue
growth increasing by 27.3% vyear-on-year to HK$7,196.0 million, of
which sales of Android smart terminals grew by 77.5% to HK$3,230.4
million. To enhance shareholder value, the Group also conducted
multiple share buybacks during the year, with an aggregate of 13.2
million ordinary shares repurchased at an aggregate consideration of
approximately HK$86.6 million.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERSE

Looking at performance across each of the Group’s various global
regions, in Latin America and the Commonwealth of Independent States
("LACIS") PAX continued to maintain its market-leading position thanks
to a number of strategic partnerships and a wide product offering. PAX
successfully launched the world's first Android smart PayPhone in Brazil
during the year.

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa ("EMEA"), a major deployment
of Android smart terminals is underway, with PAX achieving success
in numerous markets with its A-series Android portfolio. In Europe,
the Group maintained a robust growth momentum and secured more
market share in Italy, the United Kingdom, Germany, Poland, France and
Greece. In the Middle East and Africa, PAX achieved significant sales
growth in Saudi Arabia, Egypt and Nigeria, whilst more market share
was secured as regional acquiring banks in the GCC (Gulf Cooperation
Council) countries and North Africa took up deployment of Android
smart terminals.

In the Asia Pacific region (“APAC"), PAX recorded excellent performance
in many markets. In India, PAX managed to successfully establish itself
as the leading brand for electronic payment terminals in just a few
years, while in other key markets such as South Korea, Malaysia and
Thailand, PAX achieved positive growth during the year, attributing to
ongoing investment in product and software certification, as well as the
expansion of sales channel network.

In the United States and Canada (“USCA"), sales of PAX Android
products grew significantly compared to 2020. More independent sales
organisations (“ISOs"”) deployed PAX terminals across North America,
as the popularity of contactless payment continues to increase and
the value of Android payment terminals is increasingly appreciated by
restaurants, retailers and other merchant categories.

Looking ahead, the world’s payment terminal market is experiencing
unprecedented changes under the new normal, whether large-scale
chain retailers or small and medium-sized businesses are becoming more
enthusiastically appealed to digitalisation, presenting new opportunities
for the novel Android-based technology solutions. Acquiring banks
and PSPs all over the world are accelerating the deployment of modern
payment terminals with merchants and retailers.
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Chairman’s Statement
EFERSE

Customers, partners and suppliers have always expressed utmost
confidence in PAX. Thanks to PAX's solid business foundation and
strong financials, as well as our innovative product portfolio and loyal
customer base, the Group is equipped with enterprise-wide resilience
and strong risk management capabilities to navigate the diverse
challenges and capture new opportunities, thereby maintaining the
solid leading position in the world. PAX will continue to prioritise R&D
investment in Android smart terminals and the PAXSTORE platform,
as well as devote more resources to payment terminal certification,
software testing, penetration testing and other stringent security-related
control measures, thereby delivering innovative and secure electronic
payment terminals and software solutions for global customers.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to the directors of the company, management
team and employees for their unrelenting dedication. In the face of
multiple challenges, our people have consistently demonstrated a strong
ability to adapt and collaborative spirit. | would also like to express my
sincere gratitude to our customers, suppliers, business partners and
shareholders for their long-term trust and support in PAX.

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EERZAmADH

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The key financial figures are extracted as follows:

A #3501 BR

EMBHEBHROT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
B ZZTTZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET +/(-)
Revenue A 7,195,982 5,650,619 +27.3%
Gross profit EF 2,827,197 2,337,309 +21.0%
Other income Ha A 96,315 77,838 +23.7%
Selling expenses HEMRE (716,234)  (499,321) +43.4%
Administrative expenses THER (958,185)  (781,456) +22.6%
Net impairment losses on financial assets ERIBEZ REFEE (21,580) (65,083) -66.8%
Profit before income tax PRPTEM AR H 1,274,447 1,052,841 +21.0%
Income tax expense FrigfB sz (182,205)  (148,991) +22.3%
Profit for the year FEE&H 1,092,242 903,850 +20.8%
Profit attributable to the owners of the Company &ABFA A B &EF 1,083,774 900,123 +20.4%
Research and development costs (included in e A (BIEEITH
administrative expenses) BEREW) (512,119)  (460,772) +11.1%
As at 31 December
®W+=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
ZEI-F ZZ2TZH
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FET +/(-)
Total current assets BB EME 7,790,106 6,955,116 +12.0%
Total non-current assets EMBNEELBRE 1,031,172 681,943 +51.2%
Total assets BEEBE 8,821,278 7,637,059 +15.5%
Total current liabilities MENEE4E%E 2,263,543 1,954,319 +15.8%
Total non-current liabilities EREaEELE 101,179 109,168 -7.3%
Total liabilities BEEE 2,364,722 2,063,487 +14.6%
Net current assets MENEEFE 5,526,563 5,000,797 +10.5%
Total equity e 4B R 6,456,556 5,573,572 +15.8%
HEERERAERAR —E-—EE£R8 13



Management Discussion and Analysis

EREZA®ADH

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
- ZEZIEfRF +(-)
PER SHARE (IN HK$) ik (BmT)
Earnings per share for the profit attributable EN/NCIESTE DN 3
to the owners of the Company wANEREF]
- Basic —&EK 0.989 0.828 +19.4%
— Diluted —#E 0.957 0.823 +16.3%
For the year ended
31 December
H#E+-B=1+—HL=EE
2021 2020
—E-—#F = -EF
FINANCIAL RATIOS BAFSEE =R
Gross profit margin EF=E 39.3% 41.4%
Net profit margin FFEE 15.2% 16.0%
Revenue KA
i)  Sales by Geographical Region ) HEHEHEEE
793,145 2020
3,252,078
508,346
2,723,604
HK$'000 |
TR e ik 1,149,753
Total 485t Total #8&t
7,195,982 5,650,619
1,268,916

® LACIS

1,881,410

® EMEA
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEZsmAD R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—& -E-SF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAET +/(-)
Latin America and the Commonwealth of I T &= MANIEHHEEF X

Independent States (“LACIS") (TLACIS ) 3,252,078 2,723,604 +19.4%
Europe, the Middle East and UM ~ R R IEM (TEMEA J)

Africa ("EMEA") 1,881,410 1,268,916 +48.3%
Asia Pacific Region (“APAC")* fik&@ (FTAPAC ) * 1,269,349 1,149,753 +10.4%
United States of America and EEHEMEA (TUSCAY)

Canada (“USCA") 793,145 508,346 +56.0%
Total k) 7,195,982 5,650,619 +27.3%
¥ Revenue generated from the China market (excluding Hong Kong, . HE_ZE_—F#+-_B=+—H1I=®

Macau and Taiwan) of HK$243.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: HK$323.4 million) was grouped under the
sales of APAC region.

Revenue increased by 27.3% to HK$7,196.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 from HK$5,650.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. All regions recorded growth, especially
the USCA and EMEA regions. The increase was mainly driven by
the increase in market penetration and sales of Android payment
terminals.
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i)
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w15 iR

Sales by Product Category

i) BERSEHESR

For the year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

B —F “ET°ZTH

HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET +/(-)
Sales of E-payment Terminals products HEBTZNRKESR 7,015,249 5,532,211 +26.8%
Provision of services MRS 180,733 118,408 +52.6%
Total 4BZE 7,195,982 5,650,619 +27.3%

Sales of E-payment Terminals products
E-payment Terminals products include Android smart E-payment
solutions (A-series), Android smart electronic cash register
solutions (E-series), unattended solutions (IM-series & SK-series),
Android smart PayPhone and PayTablet solutions (M-series), classic
E-payment solutions and other accessory items.

Revenue from the sales of E-payment Terminals products increased
by 26.8% to HK$7,015.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 from HK$5,532.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2020. The increase was mainly due to the increase in sales of
Android smart terminals across different regions during the year.

Provision of services

Services income mainly consists of the income generated from
the provision of maintenance and installation services and the
payment solutions services, e.g. SaaS (Software as a Service)
solutions.

Revenue from provision of services increased by 52.6% to
HK$180.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
HK$118.4 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
increase in revenue from provision of services was mainly due to
the growth in revenue generated from Saa$S solutions.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEZsmAD R

Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021 was 39.3%,
representing a decrease of 210 basis points as compared to 41.4% for
the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease was mainly driven by
the increase in costs as a result of the appreciation of Renminbi (“RMB")
and the increase in the price of certain raw materials.

Other Income

Other income comprises primarily interest income, government subsidies
and value-added tax refund. It increased by 23.7% to HK$96.3
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from HK$77.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, mainly due to the increase in
government subsidies.

Selling Expenses

Selling expenses increased by 43.4% to HK$716.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 from HK$499.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The growth was mainly driven by the increase in sales
commission and employee benefit expenses of sales staff.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased by 22.6% to HK$958.2 million for
the year ended 31 December 2021 from HK$781.5 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly due to the increase
in employee benefit expenses of administrative and R&D staff.

Net Impairment Losses on Financial Assets

The Group recognised a net impairment lossess on financial assets of
HK$21.6 million and HK$65.1 million for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 respectively. The amount recognised consisted of the
expected credit losses assessed on both individual and collective basis.

Profit for the Year and Profit Attributable to the Owners of
the Company

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year was HK$1,092.2 million,
representing an increase of 20.8% compared to HK$903.9 million in
2020. In 2021, profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company was HK$1,083.8 million, representing an increase of 20.4%
as compared to HK$900.1 million in 2020.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEZsmAD R

Other Events
Construction Contracts for the PAX Smart Terminals

Industrial Park Project

On 20 July 2021, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company entered
into two construction contracts with an independent third party
company in relation to the construction works of the PAX Smart
Terminals Industrial Park Project for the consideration of approximately
RMB417.4 million (equivalent to approximately HK$501.4 million) (tax
exclusive and subject to adjustments). The transactions contemplated
under the construction contracts constituted a discloseable transaction
of the Company under Chapter 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules”). For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 July 2021.

Independent Investigation of PAX Terminals by Unit 42,

Search Warrant against Pax US and Media Reports

On 14 December 2021, the Company published an announcement
on the results of an independent investigation on the network
communications of PAX Terminals conducted by Unit 42 by Palo
Alto Networks, Inc. (“Unit 42"), an independent third-party, that no
malicious traffic or events had been identified in the network traffic
activity reviewed. The investigation was commissioned in response
to the court-authorised search conducted at the Florida office and
warehouse of Pax Technology, Inc. (“Pax US"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, by officers from the Federal Bureau of
Investigation and the Customs and Border Protection of the U.S. (the
“Incident”) on 26 October 2021 and certain media reports (the “Media
Reports”) containing statements regarding PAX terminals, to which
the Company had also provided clarification by way of announcement
published on 29 October 2021. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 14 December 2021 and 29
October 2021.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there has been no development
in relation to the Incident since the announcement of the Company
dated 14 December 2021, and no material financial impact on the
Group in respect of the Incident and the Media Reports.

Liquidation of Shanghai Kashuo

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 16
November 2017 and the relevant disclosure in the Company’s 2017
annual report concerning Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology
Company Limited (“Shanghai Kashuo”) and its subsidiaries.

In July 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo’s application for
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy
Law of the People’'s Republic of China. As at 31 December 2021, the
liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo was still underway. Should
Shanghai Kashuo liquidate, the Group is expected to recognise a
potential gain of up to approximately HK$60 million in reversal of its
existing liabilities.
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Market Analysis and Industry Trends

While the COVID-19 pandemic continued to hit economies across the
world in 2021, it also acted as a powerful catalyst in the development
of electronic payments. The global economy is accelerating towards an
increasingly cashless society, with the adoption of electronic payments
becoming stronger than ever. According to the World Payments Report
released in 2021, non-cash transactions are expected to grow at a
compound annual growth rate (“CAGR") of 18.9% between 2021 and
2025, reaching 1,842 billion in volume by 2025. Industries such as retail
and catering are accelerating the deployment of modern generation
Android payment terminals to adapt swiftly to the new normal.

Faced with unprecedented global demand for innovative electronic
payment solutions, PAX has successfully embraced the opportunities
presented, strengthening partnerships with acquiring banks, payment
service providers (“PSPs”) and independent sales organisations (“ISOs")
all over the world. Thanks to our distinct competitive edges in terms of
innovative product portfolio and superior supply chain management,
the Group has secured even more orders and garnered further client
recognition. In 2021, the Group achieved record-high revenue and profit
for the year, surging by 27.3% and 20.8% respectively. Sales growth
in the USCA and EMEA regions were particularly impressive, surging by
56.0% and 48.3% respectively, while PAX continued to expand in other
global regions such as the Asia Pacific and Latin America.

Android smart terminals and PAXSTORE deliver intelligent

value

As a leading international enterprise specialising in payment terminals,
product innovation, high-quality products and above all security
continue to be the cornerstone of PAX's enterprise philosophy. There is
a rigorous security management system in place at PAX, which consists
of a range of security controls implementing in the areas of operations
and maintenance security in the system architecture, network security,
data protection, privacy compliance and etc. The Group has attained
the ISO/IEC 27001:2013 certification, which is internationally recognised
as the most authoritative and widely adopted information security
management system standard. PAX payment terminal portfolio and
services are certified to comply with the international security standards
of the Payment Card Industry (“PCI”) and Europay, Mastercard, Visa
("EMV") requirements, and many other standards, laws and mandatory
regulations in countries and regions worldwide. With product innovation
and expertise of reaching international security standards, PAX has
become a trusted partner of many acquiring banks and PSPs around the
world over the years.
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Likewise, PAX Android smart payment terminals in combination with our
suite of Saa$S solutions bring distinct value propositions to clients, which
is rapidly reshaping the payment terminal market landscape. Riding on
PAX Android smart terminals as the interface of SaaS solutions, our
clients are enabled to create one-stop solutions with cost-saving and
efficiency enhancement for merchants of diverse sizes and business
segments. Forward-thinking acquiring banks and PSPs have realised
the potentials of smart payment terminal technology, and as a result,
are incorporating PAX solutions as a key strategic priority, to realise
the modernisation of their payment acceptance infrastructure. Sales of
Android smart payment terminals increased sharply by 77.5% year-on-
year to HK$3,230.4 million, becoming an important driving force for
revenue growth.

Throughout the pandemic, more and more brick-and-mortar retailers,
restaurants and other merchants began implementing omni-channel
retailing, integrating e-commerce and physical sales channels to boost
income. The Group’s PAXSTORE and value-added solutions are also
certified to comply with Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard
(PCI-DSS). Powered by PAX Android smart payment terminals and
software applications, merchants can securely manage e-commerce
orders, create automated marketing campaigns, improve inventory
management, etc. Through PAXSTORE, acquiring banks and PSPs
are further empowered to efficiently manage their payment terminal
estates in real-time, optimise help-desk resources, reduce high on-
site maintenance costs and deliver innovative value-added application
services for different merchant categories with greater flexibility.

PAXSTORE has experienced a phenomenal growth since its launch, as of
31 December 2021, over 4 million smart payment terminals connected
and over 6,000 software applications available to merchants. During
2021, Saa$ solutions revenue rose significantly by 193.0% year-on-year
to HK$42.4 million. PAX is confident that as the volume of terminals
connected to PAXSTORE and other SaaS products grows at a rapid pace,
a large-scale application of the Group’s SaaS solutions will continue to
be realised in the future.
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Global Regional Analysis

LACIS
In Latin America and the Commonwealth of Independent States, PAX
continued to lead the market with its innovative product portfolio.

Latin America is one of the fastest-growing mobile payment markets
in the world. According to the World Bank, almost half of the adult
population remains unbanked, creating favourable growth conditions
for mobile and electronic payments. In Brazil, government initiatives
stimulate substantial growth within the Fintech sector, and as a result,
the adoption of electronic payment methods continues to flourish. In
particular the instant payment system, PIX, launched by the Central
Bank of Brazil has swiftly gained popularity and PAX payment terminals
fully support the PIX payment method.

PAX successfully launched the world’s first Android smart PayPhone
M30 in Brazil during the year. The Group’s new M-series portfolio can
operate like consumer Android smartphones while incorporating secure
payment acceptance modules certified to major industry standards.

In Argentina, PAX achieved high growth during the year by partnering
with more PSPs and ISOs. The Group has also continued to strengthen
investment and sales efforts in other promising markets such as Mexico
and Chile.

EMEA

In Europe, the Middle East and Africa, large-scale deployment of
Android smart payment terminals is underway. PAX has been achieving
success in numerous markets with its A-series Android portfolio, driving
remarkable sales growth of 48.3% in the region.

In Europe, the Group maintained a robust growth momentum. Thanks
to the high demand for PAX Android products and the PAXSTORE
platform, the Group has gained more market share in Italy, the United
Kingdom, Germany, Poland, France and Greece. During the pandemic,
the contactless payment transaction limits were raised in most European
countries, which contributed to the uptake of cashless payments. The
Group achieved breakthroughs in niche sectors such as unattended self-
service, multilane retail and transportation.

In the Middle East and North Africa, PAX continued to strongly
dominate in Saudi Arabia and Egypt and achieved significant sales
growth in 2021. More market share was achieved as acquiring banks in
the GCC (Gulf Cooperation Council) countries and North Africa began
deployment of Android smart terminals.

In Sub-Saharan Africa, financial inclusion initiatives by local governments
and banks continued to accelerate the adoption of cashless transactions.
Nigeria continued to be a fast-growing market for PAX, while the Group
also explored new partnerships with some major acquiring banks and
PSPs in South Africa and neighboring countries.
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APAC

According to the World Payments Report released in 2021, the Asia
Pacific region will continue to lead the global cashless growth with an
estimated CAGR of 28.3%. The Group performed particularly well in
a number of countries, as payment institutions continue to commit to
cashless systems as well as new-generation payment methods such as
e-wallets and digital currencies, creating more opportunities for the
payment terminal industry.

In India, PAX successfully established itself as the leading brand for
electronic payment terminals in just a few years, becoming an important
growth engine for the Group in the APAC region. Fueled by the digital
payment measures of the Central Bank of India, demand for PAX
products by local acquiring banks and PSPs was particularly high during
the year and the full range of the PAX Android portfolio continued to
gain traction in India.

In other fast-growing APAC markets, in particular South Korea, Malaysia
and Thailand, PAX achieved decent growth and continued to invest in
sales channel expansion and local product certifications. In 2021, more
acquiring banks and PSPs chose to partner with PAX.

USCA

In the United States and Canada, the adoption of contactless payments
by merchants continues to accelerate amid the pandemic, fueling strong
demand for payment terminals. PAX became the preferred business
partner of more acquiring banks, PSPs and ISOs, and achieved a notable
growth of 56.0% to HK$793.1 million.

PAX holds the distinction of being the first provider to deliver Android
smart payment terminals in the North America, earning an esteemed
reputation for its state-of-the-art payment products in the market. An
increasing number of 1SOs have deployed PAX terminals across North
America, as the popularity of contactless payment continues to increase
and the value of Android payment terminals is increasingly appreciated
by restaurants, retailers and other merchant categories. In 2021, sales
of the Android products significantly grew by more than 80% in this
region compared to the year before.

North America continues to be a strategic market for the Group. In the
U.S., the overall transaction size of America’s mobile and electronic
payments market is growing rapidly. According to an eMarketer report,
the number of in-store mobile payment users in the U.S. is expected to
increase by approximately 6.5 million every year, reaching 125 million
in 2025. The payment terminal market in the U.S. will offer enormous
potential for PAX in the years ahead. PAX is well positioned and will
continue to strategically acquire further market share.
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Management Strategy

Focus on R&D to develop innovative and diversified

terminals and software solutions

The challenges brought by the pandemic are forcing the retail and
catering industries to embrace a digital-first mindset in order to expand
their customer reach beyond traditional approaches. PAX will remain
devoted to the value creation strategy, leveraging the Group's leading
position in Android smart payment terminal technology innovation to
enable merchants all over the world via the acquiring banks, PSPs and
ISOs to explore more business opportunities and improve operational
efficiencies. The Group will continue to invest in smart terminal product
roadmap and a suite of cloud-based SaaS solutions, as well as reinforce
the one-stop payment ecosystem of PAXSTORE.

The key focus will continue to be product quality, reliability and security.
PAX will continue to devote more resources to payment terminal
certification, software testing, penetration testing and other stringent
security-related control measures. The Group will continue to strive
to enhance industry security standards, thereby delivering innovative,
reliable electronic payment terminals and software solutions for global
customers.

Strengthen global sales network to further cement PAX’s

leading position in the international markets

PAX will continue to work closely with its international channel
partner network, deepening ties with existing customers and seeking
new strategic partnerships, expanding the suite of PAX products
and solutions available to broader market segments and customer
categories. The Group shall continue exploring merger and acquisition
as well as investment opportunities that could bring complementary
synergy to PAX's business. By expanding its diversified solutions and
payment-related innovative technologies, the Group is confident of
gaining more global market share and enhancing its international
leading position.

Reinforce supply chain to lay a solid foundation for

sustainable business development

As global acquiring banks, PSPs and ISOs accelerate the deployment
of payment terminals in response to the post-pandemic demand,
efficient supply chain management has become an important part
of the Group’s sustainable development. To timely deal with the
intensifying global component shortage, PAX promptly and decisively
implemented a series of strategic plans to achieve efficient inventory
management and components procurement. Indeed, the Group's
outstanding performance in supply chain management, as well as its
comparatively faster product assembling and delivery capabilities, has
become a competitive edge for PAX to secure more orders and customer
recognition.
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In a view to further strengthen the supply chain, PAX has implemented
the construction of a new industrial park in the Zhongkai High-
Tech Zone, Huizhou City, China. The construction is underway and
is expected to be completed in the fourth quarter of 2022 at the
earliest. This new industrial park will significantly increase the Group's
production capacity to support the strong growth in future global
demand, enabling PAX to seize the enormous opportunities in the
international payment terminal market.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the years of 2021 and 2020, the main source of funding to
the Group was the proceeds generated from operating activities in the
Group's usual course of business. Certain financial data is summarised
as follows:

R/E—SREHERE GERERPEBMNE
HliEemeRRMEXE BRIBEAFE
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MEEERMBEIR
R_E-_—RIFTEFE AEENEEER
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As at 31 December

®W+=ZBA=+—H
2021 2020
—EZ—F TETEF
Current ratio (times) TRENEEE () 3.4 3.6
Quick ratio (times) RENEEE (12) 2.5 2.7

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
and short-term bank deposits in an aggregate amount of HK$3,533.0
million (2020: HK$3,805.8 million) and no borrowings (2020: same).
As at 31 December 2021, the Group reported net current assets of
HK$5,526.6 million, as compared with HK$5,000.8 million as at 31
December 2020. For the year ended 31 December 2021, net cash
generated from operating activities was HK$347.7 million, as compared
with HK$735.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2020. As at 31
December 2021, the Group had no borrowings and the gearing ratio is
not applicable (2020: same).

Capital Structure and Details of Charges

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no borrowings and banking
facilities (2020: same). There was no charge on any assets of the Group
(2020: same).

24 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

RWZIE-_—F+-HA=+—H Zx&£E%HE
RehResEBYREHETEREF A
3,533.0B8 8 (ZTE%FF :3,805.888
B UEEE (CEIEF  BL)  RIFT
T+ ZRA=t+—H AEERERBEE
FES,5266BEBT M_EZEF+°AH
=+—HAJA50008HEEBT - HE_T " —
E+_B=+—BLEEE KEXFMEYN
R FEAMIIABERAT MBEE_S -
F+ZHA=+—HIEEEA73S08EEBTe
75’5:7:—3—‘1— B=+—H Ax&EBLEE
CERBEILEERNER(CEZEE FL) -

BARRBRIEAFE
RIZEZ—F+A=+—R A&EELE
BERBTEEEE CE2TF FL) &
EETENEINEEFRIR ( CE-FFH
£)e



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEZsmAD R

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents were denominated in the following currencies:

rTE- ER-E-SE+-A=+-8>
FEENRSRESSENH U TG
A

As at 31 December

®W+=ZA=+—H
2021 2020
ZEI—F ZZTTZH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Renminbi (“RMB") AR 2,455,509 2,529,613
US dollar (“US$") ET 741,970 884,286
Hong Kong dollars ("HK$") BT 200,190 223,603
European dollar (“EUR") BRIT 84,944 111,167
Indian Rupee (“INR") ELE 27,291 25,602
Others HAth 23,050 28,470
3,532,954 3,802,741

Significant Investment
The Group had no significant investment as at 31 December 2021
(2020: Nil).

Material Acquisition and Disposal of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets
Save as disclosed above, there was no specific plan for material
investments or capital assets as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Exchange Rates Exposure

The Group derives its revenue, makes purchases and incurs expenses
denominated mainly in RMB, US$, HK$, EUR and INR. The majority of
assets and liabilities are denominated in RMB, US$, HK$, EUR and INR
and there are no significant assets and liabilities that are denominated in
other currencies. Currently, the Group has not entered into agreements
or purchased instruments to hedge the Group's exchange rate risks. Any
material fluctuation in the exchange rates of HK$ or RMB may have an
impact on the operating results of the Group.

The management considers that the foreign exchange risk with respect
to US$ is not significant as HK$ is pegged to US$ and transactions
denominated in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the same
functional currency. The Group manages foreign currency risk by closely
monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates.
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Contingent Liabilities
The Group had no significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

Human Resources and Remuneration Policies

The total number of employees of the Group as at 31 December 2021
was 1,654 (2020: 1,677). The following table shows a breakdown of
employees of the Group by functions as at 31 December 2021 and
2020:

HAEE

AEEBR _E_—F+"B=-+—HUEET
AEARAREBB(CE_BF  HE) o
ANE R R G ER

A BT —F+_HA=Z+—H AEERELHE
HAE1,654N (ZEZETFE 1,677N) c FRET!
AR —FERCECEFE+_F=+—H
RIEBAEZONSEREHE !

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H

2021 2020
eI ZETTEHF
Management SIRfE 13 12
Sales and after-sales services and marketing HEREBRBURTIGER 356 384
Research and development bfeE 855 817
Quality assurance = 76 81
Administration and human resources TERAIER 58 55
Accounting g5t 36 36
Production, procurement and inventory control YE-RERGEEES 260 292
1,654 1,677

The Group ensures that its remuneration packages are comprehensive HAEBBEHFMSTBE2EAEARS|H-EE

and competitive. Directors are entitled to a fixed director’s fee,
discretionary bonus and other benefits, which are determined with
reference to the performance of the individual and the Company,
market practice and conditions as well as the Group’s corporate goals
and objectives in accordance with the remuneration policy of the
Company. Employees are remunerated with a fixed monthly income plus
discretionary annual performance related bonuses. Share options are
granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group to reward their
contributions under the share option scheme of the Company, details
of which are set out in the Report of the Directors. The Group also
sponsors selected employees to attend external training courses that suit
the needs of the Group's business.

Disclaimer:

Non-GAAP measures

Certain non-GAAP (generally accepted accounting principles) measures are
used for assessing the Group’s performance. These non-GAAP measures are
not expressly permitted measures under GAAP in Hong Kong and may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures for other companies. Accordingly, such
non-GAAP measures should not be considered as an alternative to operating
income as an indicator of the operating performance of the Group or as an
alternative to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity.
The use of non-GAAP measures is provided solely to enhance the overall
understanding of the Group current financial performance. Additionally because
the Group has historically reported certain non-GAAP results to investors, the
Group considers the inclusion of non-GAAP measures provides consistency in our
financial reporting.
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company wishes to highlight the importance of the Board in
ensuring effective leadership and control of the Company, transparency
and accountability of all aspects of operations and that its business is
conducted in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Company also recognises the importance of good corporate
governance to the Group’s healthy growth and has devoted
considerable efforts to identifying and formulating corporate
governance practices appropriate to the Group’s needs.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code Provisions”)
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

In formulating and implementing its corporate governance practices,
the Company has applied the Principles and complied with all applicable
Code Provisions for the year.

The Board periodically reviews and monitors the Company's policies
and practices on corporate governance or compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements and employees’ compliance manual to ensure
that the Group’s operations are conducted in accordance with the
standards of the CG Code and applicable disclosure requirements.
Directors and senior management are provided with appropriate
ongoing training, continuing professional development for regular
updates of the legal and regulatory requirements relevant to their
duties.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted a written code regulating the securities
transaction of Directors and executive officers named in this annual
report (“Securities Transaction Code"”) on terms no less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules.

Specific enquiry had been made to all Directors, whereas each of them
has confirmed compliance with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and Securities Transaction Code throughout the year and
up to the date of this annual report.
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The Company has also established written guidelines on terms no
less exacting than the Model Code regulating the Directors, senior
management and employees, who because of his/her office or
employment is likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Company or its securities, in respect of their transactions of securities of
the Company.

The key corporate governance principles and practices of the Company
are summarised as follows:

THE BOARD

Responsibilities

The overall management of the Company’s business is vested in the
Board, which assumes the responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success of
the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All Directors make
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board reserves its powers over decision of all major matters which
include, inter alia, the approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those which may involve
conflict of interests of substantial shareholder(s) or Director(s)), financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant financial
and operational matters.

All Directors are provided with full and timely access to Board papers
and relevant information, as well as the advice and services of the
Company Secretary(ies), with a view to ensuring that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

Upon request to the Board, each Director may seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances to assist with the
discharge of his/her duties as a director at the Company’s expense.

The day-to-day management, administration and operation of the
Company are delegated to the senior management. Clear directions as
to the powers, scope of delegation and relevant arrangements were
given to the senior management and subject to periodic review to
ensure that they remain appropriate to the Company’s needs.

Reporting to the Board and prior approval of the Board are necessary
before the senior management entering into any material transactions

and assuming significant commitments on behalf of the Company.

The Board has the full support of the senior management to discharge
its responsibilities.
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Composition
The Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspective
appropriate to the requirements of the business of the Group.

The Board currently comprises six members, consisting of three
executive Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.
The balanced composition of executive and independent non-executive
members, as equal board members, upholds the effective exercise of
independent judgment of the Board.

The Board currently comprises the following Directors:

Executive Directors:

NIE Guoming (Chairman)

LU Jie (Chief Executive Officer)
LI Wenjin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing Rules
from time to time.

An updated list of Directors (by category) identifying their role and
function is maintained on the Company’s and the Stock Exchange's
websites.

The biographical information of the Directors and their relationship
between the members of the Board, in particular, between the
Chairman and the Chief Executive, if any, are provided in the “Directors
and Senior Management” section of this annual report.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors
The Company has established formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.

All Directors are appointed for specific tenures, subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years and re-election at annual general
meeting and the key terms and conditions of their appointment are set
out in formal letters of appointment.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing on 23 May 2019
for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019 for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li
Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in accordance with the terms of
the respective service contracts.
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Training for Directors and Company Secretaries

Newly appointed Directors and Company Secretaries receive induction
on the occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that he/she
has a proper understanding of the business and operations of the
Company and is fully aware of his/her responsibilities under applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the Group’s various governance and
internal control policies. The Company also, at its expense, arranges and
provides suitable training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of a listed company director.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Company has arranged and funded in-house trainings for Directors in
the form of seminar and provision of training materials. A summary of
training received by the Directors during the year ended 31 December
2021 according to the records as provided by the Directors is as follows:

Name of Directors

EFRARMEEIN
MEREERATWERNELZETHERIHE
NE EERREETREARDEFTREF &
EETHRERBRZR BERERUKRETE
EEEEARMNMBEZEBRR TABE UL
FRBTEERLTATEFTNAT Ik
BENSEULHRBMEBERE -

ARBRBBEREFSREATEER UHE
EREREMBEENNHRKE FRABDECERR
TS EREHRBIENAESZHKREY
REHFIN - REEFRENCE  EFNEE
TR -FF+RA=t+—HLEFERZHNIE
FIENT -

Training on
regulatory updates,
corporate governance,
inside information or
other relevant topics

HEREM EES
NEHEE
BEEg Hth48R8 A5
Executive Directors HITES
Nie Guoming =B 4
Lu Jie E AN v
Li Wenijin FEXE 4
Independent Non-Executive Directors BIJERITES
Yip Wai Ming =2 4
Wu Min 2 v
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X B 4

During the year, the Company Secretaries received no less than 15 hours
of relevant professional training to update their skills and knowledge.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liabilities

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage
in respect of legal action against the Directors and officers of the
Group against losses or liabilities sustained or incurred arising from
or incidental to execution of their duties. The insurance coverage is
reviewed on an annual basis or any intervals as deemed appropriate by
the Board.

30 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

FRAEMECERA DS/ NRRERE
FREI > UE AR BER A #H

ESkEHRBENTEE
ARBEREEREERERBERTRE
ARENELENWNEEENBRNEEME
HEERTHLHBERRE -RFRLEESF
NEFEIRBENTAREETRE



Corporate Governance Report
EEERRS

Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance

During the year, four regular Board meetings were held at approximately
quarterly intervals for, among others, reviewing and approving the
financial and operating performance, the final results for the year ended
31 December 2020, results for the three months ended 31 March 2021,
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2021 and results for
the nine months ended 30 September 2021, and considering, reviewing
and/or approving the overall strategies and policies of the Company.

The attendance of individual Directors at the four regular quarterly
Board meetings (not including other ad hoc Board meetings held
from time to time and any other meeting(s) of members of the Board
in compliance with the CG Code), committee meetings and general
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

EFTERREFTLERR
FRANSTEBRTHORERETETTH
N (HpaE) SERAMEMBREERER &

BE_Z_ZEF+_BA=+—HLEFEMNZ
FEXB BE_T_—F=ZA=+—HL=A

BNER B#E"T_—F/B=+HLXE
ANHHEERBE_ZE_—FAB=+H
IEhBEBRWES UREE BHKRHHME
FRATEERERBER -

REENBE_Z”_—F+A=+—HLt
FEHEOEERZEEEFEER (FEEH
fth B R1T E’JTEHH%$EED%E’Z$H‘E¢¥
EATANESEHENENAEMEER)
EEEERRRAGHHFELHEIINT 2

Attendance/Number of Meetings”

SHRUR/BORE

Audit  Nomination Remuneration Regular
Committee ~ Committee ~ Committee Board General
Meetings Meeting Meeting Meetings* Meeting

ENEZEY R4ZEE HilZEe EREEg
Name of Directors EEe & 2% ik g BRERAE
Nie Guoming =EHR NATER  NATBRE  NAFRBER 444 11
Lu Jie BA NARER  NATEBR  NATER 4/4 17
Li Wenjin ENE N/A RiEF 1/1 11 444 11
Yip Wai Ming E&H 212 17 i 4/4 i
Wu Min B8 212 17 i 4/4 i
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles X Bt 22 NATBR  NATER 4/4 17

= Directors may attend meetings in person, by telephone or through other £ iR ?J%ZIK’Aj BRBME (TRABME) &S

means of video conference in accordance with the Bye-laws (“Bye-laws”)
of the Company.

* Pursuant to the Bye-laws, not all Directors were required to attend the
rest of the Board meetings which mainly dealt with the consideration and
approval of ordinary business transactions.

During the year, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of other
Directors.
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Practices and Conduct of Board Meetings
Board meeting schedules and agendas are made available to the
Directors in advance.

Notices of regular Board meetings have been served to all Directors at
least fourteen days in advance and relevant agenda and accompanying
board papers have been disseminated in full to the Directors within
reasonable time before the meeting. Reasonable notice, as permitted
by the Bye-laws under relevant circumstances or otherwise agreed, has
been given for other Board and committee meetings.

The Company Secretary(ies), as delegated by the Chairman, are
responsible for preparing the agendas of board meetings, taking into
account any matters the Directors may propose to include, ensuring that
all Directors are given opportunity to include matters in the agendas
and approving the agendas. In order to enable the Directors to make
informed decision, agendas and accompanying board papers, together
with all appropriate, complete and reliable information are sent to all
Directors or all committees members at least three days before each
Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors appraised
of the latest developments and/or financial position of the Company.
The Board and the individual Directors also have independent access to
the senior management to make further enquires or when they require
further information, in addition to those volunteered by the senior
management.

The Company Secretary(ies) attended all regular Board meetings and,
when necessary, other Board and committee meetings to advise on,
among others, statutory compliance, corporate governance matters and
to ensure that the Company’s policies and procedures were properly
followed.

The Company Secretary(ies) is responsible for preparing and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. The minutes
recorded sufficient details of matters considered, decisions reached,
concerns raised and dissenting views expressed, if any. Draft and final
versions of minutes are circulated to the Directors for comment and
records within a reasonable time after each meeting. The final version
is kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and open for the Directors’
inspection.

According to current Board practice, any material transaction or matter
which involves conflicting interests of a substantial shareholder or a
Director, are dealt with by a duly convened physical Board meeting, at
which independent non-executive Directors having no material interest
in the transaction should be present. Any Directors or any of their close
associates having material interests in the transaction or matter shall
abstain from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving such transactions.
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Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles and responsibilities of Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Lu Jie
respectively as Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of
the Company (the “CEQ") have been clearly divided and defined. The
clear division of the management of the Board and the day-to-day
management of business ensures a balanced power and authority such
that no concentration of power should vest in any one individual.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible for the effective
functioning of the Board in accordance with good corporate governance
practices and establishes corporate governance procedures. With the
assistance and support of the Company Secretary(ies) and the senior
management, the Chairman is also responsible for ensuring that the
Directors receive in a timely manner adequate information, which must
be accurate, clear, complete and reliable, and appropriate briefing on
issues arising at Board meetings, and that all key and appropriate issues
are discussed by the Board in a timely manner.

The Chairman also encourages the Directors to fully and actively
participate in the Board’s affairs, taking the lead to assure that the
Board acts in the best interests of the Company. The Chairman also
promotes a culture to facilitate effective contribution and encourages
the Directors to express dissenting views and concerns and allow
sufficient discussion of issues before decisions are made.

The CEO focuses on implementing objectives, policies and strategies
approved and delegated by the Board. He is in charge of the Company’s
day-to-day management and operations and is also responsible for
developing strategic plans, formulating and reviewing the organisational
structure, control systems and internal procedures and processes for the
Board’s approval.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors possess a wide range of
business and financial expertise, experiences and, through participation
in board meetings, offer independent judgment on issues of strategy,
policy, performance, accountability, resources, key appointments and
standard of conducts. Through taking the lead where potential conflicts
of interests arise, serving on the Board committees, examining the
Company’s performance in achieving corporate goals and objectives
and monitoring performance reporting, the independent non-executive
Directors has become an integral part of the healthy growth of the
Company.
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During the year, the independent non-executive Directors attended the
annual general meeting of the Company, details of which are set out
on page 31, enabling them to develop a balanced understanding of the
views of the shareholders.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yip Wai
Ming, Dr. Wu Min and Mr. Man Kwok Kuen, Charles, was appointed
for a contractual term of one year subject to renewal on a yearly
basis and re-election in accordance with the Bye-laws. Such term shall
be terminated: (i) by either party giving the other not less than two
months’ written notice; (ii) forthwith without compensation, on ground
of disqualification, gross or willful misconduct or negligence of such
Director, or (iii) any failure of passing a resolution by the shareholders to
be re-elected as a Director, whichever is earlier.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met
the requirements of Rules 3.10(1), 3.10(2) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive Directors, representing half of the Board and with
at least one of the independent non-executive Directors possessing
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company confirms that it has received written annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive Director concerning his/her
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and all
independent non-executive Directors are considered independent in
accordance with the guidelines for assessing independence set out in
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, for overseeing specific aspects of the Company's affairs.
Each Board committee was established with defined written terms
of reference setting out its authorities and duties and requiring the
Board Committees to report back to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations (unless otherwise restricted by applicable legal
or regulatory requirements). To provide transparency, the terms
of reference of the Board committees are made available on the
Company's and the Stock Exchange’s websites and hard copies of the
same are available to the shareholders upon request.
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Each Board committee consists of a majority of independent non-
executive Directors and is respectively chaired by an independent non-
executive Director. Chairman and members of each Board committee as
at the date of this report are set out below:

Audit Committee

2YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

SMAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Nomination Committee
WU Min (Chairman)
AYIP Wai Ming

*LI Wenjin

Remuneration Committee
2YIP Wai Ming (Chairman)
AWU Min

*LI Wenjin

s Independent non-executive Director
* Executive Director

The Board committees have been provided with sufficient resources to
perform their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company's expense.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board on 1 December
2010. The Audit Committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors (including at least one member possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise). None of the members of the Audit Committee
is a former partner of the Company's existing external auditor.

The main duties of the Audit Committee include, among others, the
followings:

(@)  toreview the financial statements, reports, accounting policies and
practices and consider any significant or unusual items raised by
the Company’s staff responsible for the accounting and financial
reporting function, compliance officer or external auditor before
submission to the Board;

(b) to review the Company’s relationship with the external auditor
with reference to its work performed, fees and terms of
engagement, and make recommendation to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and, if appropriate, removal of
external auditor;
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(©) to review the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
financial reporting system, audit process, the Group’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems, including
but not limited to adequacy of resources available to its respective
functions, staff qualifications and experience and training
programmes; and

(d) to consider and identify risks of the Group and consider
effectiveness of the Group’s decision making processes in crisis
and emergency situations and approve major decisions affecting
the Group's risk profile or exposure.

The written terms of reference describing the authority and duties of
the Audit Committee was prepared and adopted in accordance with
the CG Code, the "Principles of Auditor Independence and the Role
of Corporate Governance in Monitoring an Auditor’s Independence”
issued by the Technical Committee of the International Organization of
Securities Commissions and “A Guide for The Formation of An Audit
Committee” published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021 to review the half-yearly and annual financial results
and reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control and risk management systems, effectiveness of internal audit
function, the auditor’s independence and objectivity. Full minutes of the
meetings are duly kept by the Company Secretary(ies) and draft and
final versions of the same have been sent to all committee members for
comment and records, within reasonable time afterwards in accordance
with the relevant Code Provisions. The Audit Committee also met with
the Company’s auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers, twice during the
year and recommended its re-appointment as the Company’s external
auditor to the Board, which has taken no different view in respect of the
Audit Committee’s recommendation.

At the end of 2021 and the date of this report, there are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant

doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2021
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010 and comprises two independent non-executive
Directors (one of whom being the chairman of the Nomination
Committee) and one executive Director. Its terms of reference was
prepared and adopted with reference to the CG Code and its principal
duties include, among others, the review of the structure, size and
composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment and succession
planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of the
independent non-executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee carries out the process of selecting and
recommending candidates for directorships based on the balance of
expertise, skills, experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business requirements of
the Group and other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.
External recruitment agency may also be engaged to carry out the
recruitment and selection process when necessary. The Company has
always maintained diversified selection criteria in its hiring process
as measurable objectives, taking into account a wide range of
attributes including age, gender, educational background, professional
experience, industry skills, expertise and experience and such policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) was reduced to writing in 2014. To facilitate
sustainable and balanced development of the Company, the Nomination
Committee regularly reviews the Board Diversity Policy from nomination
to appointment, with an objective to achieve a diversified spectrum
of Directors with varying perspectives, educational background and
expertise, ranging from in-depth knowhow in the payment industry,
sales and marketing talents to professional qualifications in the legal
and accounting fields. Each Director has accumulated experience in
his respective field of expertise for at least 10 to 30 years. Regardless
of their background or experience, the Directors commonly share and
acquire the talent and competence to drive the development of the
industry, being the ultimate attributes that the Nomination Committee
will uphold and carry through in the talent selection process.

Appointment of Directors is based on objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board, and decisions of the
Nomination Committee are based on the merits and contribution of the
selected candidates.
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The Nomination Committee has also adopted a nomination policy (the
“Nomination Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedure
of nominating, appointing and re-appointing a Director. The selection
criteria used in assessing the suitability of a candidate include, inter
alia, his/her academic background and professional qualifications,
relevant industry experience, character and integrity and whether he/
she can contribute to the diversity of the Board underpinned in the
Board Diversity Policy. The procedure of appointing and re-appointing a
Director is summarised as follows:—

- nomination and invitation of suitable candidates by any member
of the Nomination Committee or the Board;

- evaluation of the candidate by the Board based on all selection
criteria as set out in the Nomination Policy and the Board Diversity
Policy;

- performing due diligence in respect of each candidate and making
recommendation for the Board's consideration and approval;

- in case of nomination of an independent non-executive Director,
assessing the candidate’s independence under the relevant Code
Provisions and the Listing Rules;

- where nominating an independent non-executive Director for
election at general meetings, having due consideration of matters
under Code Provision B.3.4;

- in the context of re-appointment of retiring Directors, reviewing
the candidate’s overall contribution and performance and making
recommendations to the Board and/or the shareholders for
consideration in connection with his/her re-election at general
meetings; and

- convening a meeting of the Board to consider the appointment or
re-appointment of the candidate as a Director.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year ended
31 December 2020 to, amongst others, (i) review the structure, size,
diversity and composition of the Board; (ii) assess the independence
of the independent non-executive Directors; (iii) consider and make
recommendation to the Board on the re-appointment and re-election
of the retiring Directors and (iv) review and recommend the continuing
adoption of the Board Diversity Policy and Nomination Policy.
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Pursuant to the Bye-laws, Mr. Nie Guoming, the Chairman of the
Board and an executive Director, and Dr. Wu Min, an independent non-
executive Director, shall retire by rotation and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting
of the Company (the “"AGM"). According to Code Provision B.2.3, any
further appointment of independent non-executive director serving
more than 9 years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by shareholders. As Dr. Wu Min has served the Company as an
independent non-executive Director for more than 9 years, a separate
resolution shall be proposed for her re-election at the AGM.

Upon the annual review of the Board’s composition taking into account
the Board Diversity Policy and the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Committee formed the view
that the Board has maintained an appropriate mix and balance of
skills, knowledge, experience, expertise and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business requirements of the Company and the
independent non-executive Directors remain independent. Taking into
account the aforesaid and each of the retiring Directors’ confirmation
to give sufficient time and attention to the Company's affairs
subsequent to the re-appointment, the Nomination Committee made
a recommendation to the Board for considering the standing for re-
election at the AGM of the aforesaid retiring Directors, namely Mr.
Nie Guoming and Dr. Wu Min. The Board, taking into account the
recommendation and other factors as considered relevant, has decided
to further recommend Mr. Nie Guoming and Dr. Wu Min to stand for re-
election at the AGM.

The Company's circular to be dispatched in April 2022 contains detailed
information of the retiring Directors standing for re-election.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board on 1
December 2010. Its terms of reference was prepared and adopted with
reference to the CG Code and its primary objectives and duties include
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
and structure, remuneration packages of the Directors and the senior
management and compensation arrangements relating to dismissal
or removal. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible for
establishing transparent procedures for developing such remuneration
policy and structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her
associates will participate in deciding his/her own remuneration, which
is determined with reference to the performance of the individual and
the Company, market practice and conditions as well as the Group's
corporate goals and objectives.
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The Remuneration Committee normally meets to review the
remuneration policy and structure and make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management and other related matters, including without limitation
the compensation arrangements relating to their termination and
dismissal. The human resources department is responsible for collection
and administration of the human resources data and proposing the
remuneration structure and remuneration packages of the Directors and
senior management to the Remuneration Committee for consideration.
The Remuneration Committee shall consider and consult the Chairman
and/or the Board about these proposals. The Remuneration Committee
held one meeting during the year ended 31 December 2021 to review
and recommend the remuneration packages of the Directors and senior
management, to establish a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy and to assess the performance of the
executive Directors and approve the terms of their respective service
contracts.

The remuneration payable to the members of senior management,
including any share-based payment expenses, by band for the year
ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:
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MWEBERZ 2T EEAHEFEFHES-
ANERBPIEEREREEANEREEE
THHFMERREZTRSREEAEZ H
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Number of
individuals
Remuneration bands M 4B B ANE
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 27,000,00078 7T 1
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000 8,500,001 75 59,000,000/ 75 1

Further particulars relating to Directors’ emoluments and the five highest
paid individuals as required to be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to
the Listing Rules are set out in Note 10 and Note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Corporate Governance Function

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties which includes, among others, formulating and reviewing the
Group's policies and practices on corporate governance, reviewing and
monitoring the training and continuous professional development of the
Directors and senior management, the Group’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, formulating
and reviewing the code of conduct, guidelines and compliance manual
applicable to employees and Directors, monitoring their compliance of
the same and reviewing the Group’s compliance with the CG Code and
relevant disclosure obligations.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Board and the Directors

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment in annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and complying with other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements.

The Directors also acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021.

Auditor’s Statement

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about its
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on pages 69 to 78.

Senior Management

The senior management has provided the Board with sufficient
explanation and necessary information enabling the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before the
Board for approval.

Monthly updates have also been provided by the senior management
to all members of the Board to enable proper discharge of duties by the
Board as a whole or each member individually by giving them balanced
and understandable assessment of the Company's performance,
position and prospects in sufficient detail.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has developed the Group’s internal control, risk assessment
and management systems and acknowledges its overall responsibility for
reviewing and maintaining an adequate and effective risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis to safeguard the
interests of shareholders and assets of the Group. The Board, through
the Audit Committee, evaluates the effectiveness of the systems at least
annually to ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes, budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions and is kept apprised of
significant risks that may impact the performance of the Group.
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Risk Management and Internal Control Systems

The risk management and internal control systems of the Company
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not
absolute assurance against all risk issues. We have employed a bottom-
up approach for identification, assessment and mitigation of risk at all
business unit levels and across all functional areas.

Process used to identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks

During the process of risk assessment, the Audit Committee identifies
the risks of the Group and decides on the respective risk levels and the
Board shall assess and determine the nature and extent of the risks that
are acceptable to the Group when achieving its strategic objectives.
Taking into consideration the risk response, i.e. the necessary risk
mitigating measures, the relevant departments and business units shall
be assigned to implement the risk management solutions in accordance
with their respective roles and responsibilities. The identified risk
together with the risk response will be recorded at the risk register and
subject to the Board's oversight.

Main features of Risk Management and Internal Control
Systems

The key elements of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Company include the establishment and maintenance of a risk
register to keep track of and record identified risks, the assessment
and evaluation of risks, the development and continuous update of
responsive procedures, and the ongoing testing of internal control
procedures to ensure their effectiveness.

An ongoing risk assessment approach is adopted by the Company
for identifying and assessing the key inherent risks that affect the
achievement of its objectives. Risks are classified by (i) likelihood of
occurrence as Unlikely (1), Possible (2) and Likely (3) and (ii) resulting
impact as Minor (1), Moderate (2) and Significant (3). The risk degrees
determine the level of management'’s attention and risk treatment effort
required.
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Process used to review the effectiveness of the Risk
Management & Internal Control Systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

In view of the Company’s business and scale of operations, the Board
considers that the internal audit function would be executed most cost-
effectively through designated internal audit personnel (“IA Personnel”)
working with and as assisted by an independent consulting firm (the
“Internal Control Auditor”) to conduct semi-annual review of the
Company'’s risk management and internal control systems.

During the year, the Internal Control Auditor conducted semi-annual
reviews of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems in accordance with the scope of review agreed
and approved by the IA Personnel and requirements under CG Code.
The Internal Control Auditor reported to and made recommendations
to the IA Personnel for correction and mitigation of any internal
control defects revealed. The IA Personnel considered that the
recommendations would be effective and was satisfied that there had
been no major deficiency noted in the Group's risk management and
internal controls systems being reviewed. The Internal Control Auditor
and IA Personnel regularly report to the Audit Committee the results of
the activities pertaining to the adequacy and effectiveness of internal
controls, including but not limited to, any indications of failings or
material weaknesses in those controls, based on which, the Audit
Committee assists the Board to ensure that the financial reporting
system, internal control system, risk management system, regulatory
compliance and associated procedures are sufficient and effective,
and cooperates with the Internal Control Auditor and IA Personnel to
ensure their access to information necessary to fulfil their duties and
responsibilities with respect to risk assessment and risk management.
Accordingly, the Audit Committee and the Board considered during the
year, the risk management and internal control systems to be effective
and have been implemented with adequate resources during the year.

Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board has adopted a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information (the “Inside Information Policy”). The Inside Information
Policy stipulates the obligations of the Group in relation to restriction
on sharing non-public information, handling of rumours, unintentional
selective disclosure, exemptions and statutory waiver to the disclosure of
inside information, external communication guidelines and compliance
and reporting procedures. Management takes all reasonable measures
from time to time to ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent
breach of any disclosure obligations. Employees are required to promptly
bring any possible leakage or divulgence of inside information to the
attention of the Chief Financial Officer, or his delegates, who will notify
the Board timely and accordingly, in which case and in the event that
there is evidence of material violation of the Inside Information Policy,
the Board or designated appropriate persons will decide the course of
actions for rectifying the problem and avoiding recurrence.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the Company in
respect of the Group's annual audit and other audit related services and
non-audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
approximately HK$2,420,000 and HK$228,000 respectively.

SHAREHOLDER RIGHTS AND INVESTOR RELATIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

44

Procedures for Requisitioning a Special General
Meeting

Shareholder(s) holding as at the date of deposit of the requisition
for a special general meeting not less than one-tenth of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company may, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited in accordance
with the Bye-laws and the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, require
the Directors to call a special general meeting for the transaction
of business specified in the requisition.

Procedures for Putting forward Proposals at General
Meetings

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one-twentieth of the paid-up
capital of the Company carrying the right to vote at general
meetings of the Company or not less than 100 shareholders
may together, at their expense, provide a written request to the
attention of the Company Secretary(ies) signed and deposited
in accordance with the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 to put
forward proposals at general meetings.

Communication with Shareholders and Investors

General Meetings

General meetings of the Company provide a direct forum of
communication between shareholders and the Board. The
Company held one general meeting in 2021 being the annual
general meeting held on 18 May 2021 (the “2021 AGM").
Notice of the 2021 AGM was duly sent in accordance with the
requirements under the Listing Rules, applicable laws and the
Bye-laws. All members of the Board attended the 2021AGM
and adequate measures were taken to provide effective
communication with shareholders and to enable effectively
communication of their views to the Board. At the 2021 AGM,
the Directors were made available to answer questions and
poll procedures were explained to the shareholders in detail
in accordance with the requirements under the CG Code. The
Company’s external auditor also attended the 2021 AGM to
answer any questions about the conduct of the audit, the
preparation and content of the auditor’s report, the accounting
policies applied and its independence.
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Other Communications
Shareholders may also contact the Company Secretary(ies) to
direct their written enquires to the Board.

The Company is committed to enhancing communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
maintains an open dialogue with institutional investors and
analysts to keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Board regularly reviews the Company’s shareholders
communication policy (which has been made available at the
Company's website) to ensure that the shareholders and potential
investors at large are provided with ready, equal and timely access
to balanced and understandable information about the Company,
including its financial performance, strategic goals and plans,
material developments, corporate governance and risk profile, in
order to enable shareholders to exercise their rights in an informed
manner, and to allow active shareholders’ engagement with the
Company.

The Company also maintains a website at www.paxglobal.com.hk,

where updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information and news can always be found.

Constitutional Documents
There has been no change in the Company’s constitutional documents
during the year and up to the date of this annual report.

On behalf of the Board

NIE Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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The Directors present their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL ANALYSIS
OF OPERATIONS

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and the
Group is principally engaged in the development and sales of electronic
funds transfer point-of-sale (”E-payment Terminals”) products, provision
of maintenance and installation and payment solution services.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by geographical
segments is set out in Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a leading E-payment Terminals solutions provider and one
of the most active global players. The Group was founded in 2000 and
the Company went listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) in December 2010. The strategy of PAX is to
focus on two key particular customer groups (financial institutions and
third-party merchant acquirers) by offering various integrated payment
solutions services.

Further details of the business review of the Group, details of proposed
dividends and discussion on the Group's future business development
are provided in the Chairman’s Statement section on pages 9 to 12
and Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 26.
Particulars of any important event affecting the Group can be found in
the Management Discussion and Analysis section on pages 13 to 26 and
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

The aforementioned references under this sub-section to other parts of
this annual report form part of this Report of the Directors.

POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

In addition to disclosure in the section headed “Exchange Rates
Exposure” in Management Discussion and Analysis, the Group is also
faced with other risks and uncertainties which might affect the Group's
business, financial condition, operating results or growth prospects
leading to a divergence from expected or historical results. The principal
key risk factors and their potential impact are summarised below. While
the risk factors below are not exhaustive, there may be other risks
currently inapparent or immaterial to the Group which could be revealed
or become material in the future.
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While grasping the business and growth opportunities confronting
COVID-19 in light of the accelerating global cashless initiatives, the
Group encounters risks and uncertainties arising from suspension of
work and postponed delivery of products by suppliers resulting from
national and local regulations on epidemic prevention and control
policies. To minimise the negative impact of the pandemic to the Group,
a series of precautionary and control measures have been implemented
in our offices across the globe, including the adoption of comprehensive
and co-ordinated approach and measures to enhance our supply
chain management, through responding promptly, staying alert to the
situation, and working in an open and transparent manner.

The payment solutions are rapidly evolving in pace with the continuous
technological developments and changing customer demands, where
lagging behind the dynamics may drive customers to our competitors,
and in turn affect our business and prospects. Building on our strongly
established R&D fundamentals, the Group will continue to invest
resources in R&D to develop a spectrum of industry leading products
and offer cutting-edge payment solutions to customers in order to
remain competitive.

In terms of compliance risks, the Group is subject to complex and
changing laws and regulations in different countries, which expose the
Group to increased costs and potential liabilities. In particular, due to our
substantial presence in the PRC, our business and prospects are affected
by changes in industry-specific Chinese government policies. To ensure
full compliance, the Group closely monitor regulatory requirements,
engage professional advisers when necessary and make timely responses
to policy and regulatory changes.

In addition, the ongoing international trade disputes and relevant
policy changes may result in tariffs and other measures that could
adversely affect the Group’s business. For example, trade tensions may
lead to a comprehensive series of tariffs imposed on our exports by
the importing countries. Tariffs increase our product costs, resulting in
possible reduction of profit margin or reduced product competitiveness
for customers due to elevated selling prices. The Group will closely
monitor any changes in connection with the trade tension and adjust its
strategies accordingly.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group values the importance of protecting the environment in the
process of operation. The Group’s major wastes comprise of terminal
machines and tools used and disposed by the customers. To mitigate
the adverse impact on the environment, waste machines and tools
are transferred to government-recognised recycling companies for
undergoing electronic waste recycling and decomposition. In recent
years, we have also strengthened the green office concept by promoting
paperless office, use of energy-saving electrical appliances such as LED
light pipes and inductive faucets, wastes classification and recycling, and
encouraging video conferencing in place of physical business trips to
reduce energy consumption and carbon footprint.
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COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

The Group seeks to uphold high standard of integrity in all aspects of
business and is committed to ensure that its affairs are conducted in
accordance with applicable laws and regulatory requirements and has
formulated and adopted various internal control measures, approval
procedures and training within all business units at all levels of the
Group.

The relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact on
the Group's business and the compliance measures adopted and
implemented during the year are outlined below:-

Provisions on the Administration of Compulsory Product
Certification

Key scope

The Group’s E-payment Terminals products are required to pass the
national compulsory product certification (i.e. China Compulsory
Certification) and be marked with the certification mark before they can
be delivered, sold, imported or used in other business activities.

Compliance measures

The Group conducts quality assurance capability inspections on
factories, including but not limited to production process controls and
inspections, internal quality audits, etc., and conducts type tests on
end products to ensure that products are in strict compliance with the
Compulsory Product Certification requirements in terms of structure,
safety-critical components and key components that have impact on
electromagnetic compatibility.

The Group has also established product certification management
procedures, which clarify the application process of our certification
products, their routine maintenance and the use and management
method of our product certification marks, in order, to ensure that the
Group meets the requirements of the Compulsory Product Certification
requirements for product certification.
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Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China; Product
Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China

Key scope

Agreements among natural persons, legal persons and other
organisations for the establishment, modification or termination of
a relationship involving civil rights and obligations are subject to the
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China.

The Product Quality Law of the People’s Republic of China is applicable
to all activities of production and sales in the PRC. The Group shall fulfill
all relevant product quality responsibilities and obligations in the PRC.

Compliance measures

The Group has adopted internal monitoring and control measures to
record the entire process concerning the entering into, performance and
amendment, etc., of contracts to control contract risks.

In addition to implementing policies to require suppliers to sign quality
assurance agreements and related documents, the Group has also set up
strict material warehousing inspection procedures and product delivery
inspection procedures to ensure that product quality complies with legal
requirements.

Sales of Goods Ordinance (Chapter 26 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) (“SOGO"); Supply of Services (Implied Terms)
Ordinance (Chapter 457 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“S0S0™)

Key scope

SOGO regulates the sales of goods by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOGO provides that, in a contract for the sale of goods by description,
there is an implied condition that the goods shall correspond with the
description. It also provides that where a seller sells goods in the course
of a business, there is an implied condition that the goods supplied
under the contract are of merchantable quality, except where an
exception condition is met.

SOSO regulates the supply of services by the Group in Hong Kong.
SOSO provides that in a contract for the supply of service where the
supplier is acting in the course of a business, there is an implied term
that the supplier will carry out the service with reasonable care and
skill. It also provides that under a contract for the supply of a service
where the supplier is acting in the course of a business, if the time
for carrying out the service is not fixed by the contract or is not left
to be determined by the course of dealing between the parties, there
is an implied term that the supplier will carry out the service within a
reasonable time.
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Compliance measures

The Group has adopted appropriate internal control, quality control
measures, customer feedback system and implemented standardised
product return policies to ensure compliance with SOGO and SOSO in
relation to the supply of goods and services in Hong Kong.

During the year, there has been no violation or breach of relevant laws
and regulations that had a significant impact on the Group.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Group emphasises on maintaining good relationship with its
stakeholders and considers it a key element to sustainable business
growth.

Employees

The Group has always been people-oriented and has attached great
importance to human resource management. We attract excellent
talents through fair recruitment policy and provide employees with
training opportunities, good career development prospect and growth
opportunities. From time to time, we offer our employees remuneration
packages that are comprehensive and attractive. Some employees
are granted options under the Company's share option scheme in
recognition of their contribution. We also value our employee’s physical
and mental development. Diverse events and activities are organised for
the employees for fostering work-life balance and personal growth.

Customers

The Group is committed to offering our customers products and services
to the best of our ability. We highly value comments and suggestions of
our customers and have always maintained effective communications
with the customers. We will continue to reach out for current and
prospective customers through, inter-alia, on-site visits and major
customers satisfaction surveys. We believe that customers’ feedback
would help us to identify areas of improvement and advance us to
achieve excellence.

Suppliers

Maintaining good relationship with suppliers is essential to the Group's
business performance and growth because suppliers can have direct
influence over the quality of the products and services and customer
satisfaction. We adopt a “Management Measures for Suppliers” in
respect of the supplier selection procedures, quality testing methods and
comprehensive appraisal and evaluation system on potential and existing
suppliers and their products and performance. We are committed
to establishing a close and long-term cooperation relationship with
business partners.
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RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 79.

DIVIDEND

The Board’s goal is to bring sustainable returns to shareholders whilst
retaining adequate reserves for the Group's future development.
Pursuant to the Company’s dividend policy, dividends may be
recommended, declared and paid to shareholders from time to time,
determined at the sole and absolute discretion of the Board, taking into
account the following factors:

. Group'’s financial results and general financial condition;

° the level of the Group’s debts to equity ratio and return on equity;
o liquidity position and capital requirement of the Group;

. the Group's current and future operations;

° the Group's business development strategies and future expansion
plans;

° the general market conditions;

° any relevant requirements of the Listing Rules and applicable
laws, rules and regulations and the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company; and

o any other factors that the Board considers relevant.
During the year,

- a final dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share for the year ended
31 December 2020, amounting to approximately HK$109.8
million, was declared and paid to the shareholders of the
Company; and

- an interim dividend of HK$0.12 per ordinary share for the six
months ended 30 June 2021 (2020: HK$0.07 per ordinary share),
amounting to approximately HK$131.8 million, was declared and
paid to the shareholders of the Company.

In addition, a special dividend of HK$0.10 per ordinary share declared
on 18 December 2020, amounting to approximately HK$109.3 million
was paid to the shareholders of the Company on 22 January 2021.
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The Board has recommended a payment of final dividend of HK$0.15
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$0.10 per ordinary share) to shareholders of the Company whose
names appear on the register of members of the Company at the
close of business on Thursday, 2 June 2022, subject to the approval
of shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company which will be held on Thursday, 12 May 2022
(the "AGM"), and if passed, the final dividend will be paid on Tuesday,
21 June 2022. For determining the entitlement to the proposed final
dividend, the register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 31 May 2022 to Thursday, 2 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to
qualify for the final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong (the “Share Registrar”) not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 30
May 2022. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the total dividend
per ordinary share amounted to HK$0.27 (2020: HK$0.27), subject to
the shareholders’ approval of the proposed final dividend at the AGM.

RECORD DATE FOR DETERMINING ELIGIBILITY TO
ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE AGM

Record date (being the last date for registration of any share transfer
given there will be no book closure) for determining the entitlement of
the shareholders of the Company to attend and vote at the AGM will
be Thursday, 5 May 2022. All transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Share Registrar, for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 5 May 2022.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and of the
Company during the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and in Note 27 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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DONATIONS

Charitable donations of approximately HK$174,000 were made by the
Group during the year (2020: HK$110,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE OPTIONS AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital are set out in
Note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”, no
equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group, or subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme adopted on 2 May 2019
(“Share Option Scheme”).

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward eligible
participants who have contributed or will contribute to the Group and
to encourage eligible participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole.

Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme include any Director,
officer, employee or consultant of any member of the Group and any
other groups or classes of participants which the Board, in its absolute
discretion, considers to have contributed or will contribute, whether
by way of business alliance or other business arrangement, to the
development and growth of the Group. The Board recognises persons
other than the Group’s personnel may also contribute to the Group’s
development and growth if such persons can contribute in the capacity
of distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners or other service providers of the Group. The Board will apply
the aforesaid in any consideration of potential eligible participants that
are not the Group's personnel.
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The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise
of share options granted to each eligible participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1.0% of the total number of the shares of the Company in issue.
For options granted to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director, or any of their respective associates, the said limit
is reduced to 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue and HK$5
million in aggregate value based on the closing price of the Shares on
the date of each grant.

The exercise price for the share options shall be determined by the
Board and must be not lower than the highest of:

(1) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant;

(2) the average closing price of the shares as stated in the daily
guotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(3) the nominal value of the shares.

There is no minimum period for which a share option must be held or
performance targets which need to be achieved by the grantee before
the share option can be exercised. However, such restrictions may be
imposed on a case by case basis as terms of the grant.

The grantees of share options shall each pay the Company HK$1 in
acceptance of the Company's offer to the grant of option within 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of grant.

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of all options to
be granted under share option scheme will be 82,514,550 shares, being
7.5% of the total number of shares in issue on 2 May 2019, the date of
adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

Subject to the early termination or amendment by an ordinary resolution
in general meeting of shareholders and/or resolutions of the Board,
the Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10
years commencing on the date of adoption on 2 May 2019 and expiring
on the tenth anniversary thereof.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no share option was
granted, cancelled or lapsed, and a total of 9,698,000 share options
(which were part of the share options granted to the employees on 2
October 2019) were exercised, and the weighted average closing price
of the shares immediately before the dates on which the options were
exercised was HK$8.90 per share. The particulars of the share options
under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:
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MOVEMENTS IN THE SHARE OPTIONS OF THE AT BB EEE)
COMPANY
Number of Number of
outstanding outstanding
Closing price share options share options
immediately held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed Cancelled held as at
before the 1 January during during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant date of grant  Exercise price 2021 the year the year the year the year 2021
RIEZ-& RZEZ-&
-B-A +ZRA=+-H
24 2 Fifs2Z
L D ) WA i MR
% b=k HigmE e ERELE EARH ERfE FRRH EREH BREXE
(HK9) (HKS)
(87) (B7)
Directors
%
Nie Guoming 2 October 2019% 3530 3570 1,000,000 - - - - 1,000,000
ZEH ity K- = g
Lu Jie 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
EA —E-A\E+RACH¢
Li Wenjin 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 11,000,000 - - - - 11,000,000
FXE “E2-AE+ACH
Total for Directors 23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000
Employees
8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.530 3.570 46,584,000 - (9,698,000) - - 36,886,000
(45t) “E-A\F+RACH
Total for Employees 46,584,000 - (9,698,000 - - 36,886,000
[EEME
Total 69,584,000 S (9,698,000) S 5 59,886,000
oy
g 30% of the share options were vested on the date of grant, a further 30%  * 30%EREENRREBHEB 5930%E

were vested on the first anniversary of the date of grant and the remaining
40% were vested on the second anniversary of the date of grant. All share
options are immediately exercisable after being vested to the grantees. The
exercise period of these share options shall be 5 years from the date of

grant, subject to the aforesaid vesting period.

u As at the date of this report, a total of 59,886,000 shares (representing
approximately 5.52% of the shares in issue as at the date of this Report)

are available for issue under the Share Option Scheme.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had reserves available for
distribution as calculated under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(as amended) amounting to HK$143,952,000 (2020: HK$45,082,000).
However, the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of

HK$1,191,367,000 (2020: HK$1,243,352,000) may be distributed in the
form of fully paid bonus shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws and no
restriction against such rights under the laws of Bermuda.

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and financial position of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out on page 187.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

During the year, the Company repurchased an aggregate of 13,232,000

ARk f#

REERE—AN—FQEZE &E:]) 5t8 >
ARBR _BE_—F+"HB=+—HEA%
143,952,000 cEH I H DK (ZE 2 F !
45,082, 000%7—5) o JAT > 25 /A B B] LUK B 4L &
IR HEEBER TP A #01,191,367,000%8 7T
TEBTELE :1,243,352,0005 70) BIERIE o
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ZIRPITNER S RARIRE

HFMBHE

AEBRBEREMBREENESE KT HER
A EEHNE187TE -

BE -HWENREE:ES
RER AR R ER & $13,232,000

ordinary shares at an aggregate consideration of approximately f& & E % > 48 #ﬁ%%’\]%86,630,870%7{: =3
HK$86,630,870 on the Stock Exchange as follows: BT

No. of shares Total
repurchased Consideration
BiEE K% Consideration per share Paid
Date of Repurchase B&[E1 H #A #HE BRAE Bt ERE
Highest HK$ Lowest HK$ HK$
REBTT RIEBT BT
19 January 2021 :gi F—H+hH 800,000 8.40 7.88 6,505,000
22 April 2021 2 —FMAZ+ZH 800,000 8.87 8.63 7,017,280
8 July 2021 2%+ AN\H 796,000 8.85 8.69 6,962,600
4 November 2021 “Z2_—-F%+—AWmA 1,600,000 6.20 5.70 9,705,890
10 November 2021 g2 —F+—H+H 1,122,000 6.16 5.80 6,810,820
18 November 2021 - —-F+—A+N\H 1,500,000 6.66 6.47 9,891,080
24 November 2021 B2 —%F+—AZ+mAE 1,466,000 6.55 6.37 9,515,710
1 December 2021 2 —4%+ZF—H 1,477,000 6.36 6.10 9,292,120
9 December 2021 “E-—%#+"FAH 1,650,000 6.07 5.92 9,939,510
17 December 2021 —E-—-F+"H+tH 1,700,000 5.49 5.36 9,217,580
24 December 2021 B -F+"A”+mHH 321,000 5.55 5.47 1,773,280
Total amst 13,232,000 86,630,870
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The Board considers that the share repurchases were in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders and would lead to an
enhancement of the net assets value per share and/or earnings per
share of the Company. As at the date of this report, all of the above
repurchased shares were cancelled and the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares accordingly
and the balance of consideration was charged against the share
premium account.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares or other
listed securities during the year.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:
NIE Guoming

LU Jie

LI Wenijin

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
YIP Wai Ming

WU Min

MAN Kwok Kuen, Charles

Pursuant to the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every three years at
the annual general meeting of the Company.

Mr. Nie Guoming and Dr. Wu Min will retire and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

Separate resolutions shall also be proposed for the re-election of Dr. Wu
Min, who has served the Company as an independent non-executive
Director for more than 9 years, at the AGM pursuant to Code Provision
B.2.3.
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DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

As at the date of this report, each of the executive Directors has entered
into a service contract with the Company for a term of three years
commencing, from 23 May 2019 for Mr. Lu Jie and 1 December 2019
for Mr. Nie Guoming and Mr. Li Wenjin, unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of their respective service contracts.

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has an unexpired service contract with the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of the Directors and the senior management
are set out on pages 6 to 8.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Changes in the information of the Directors required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules are set out below:

Name of Directors

EEHA

Details of changes

BEHE

EENRBELH

RAERESEH WTEFERBEEEATFI L
BRHBFEX EANEENEHRE_T-NELA
“+=HE MBERBLENEXE REMNE
HE-Z-AF+ZR—HE BB=%F K
FEA—ARBERBEOBERT UL L

BERNIDKETZREAFRELEEDN

EFUEAERITUEAEAERTAR —FR
#BE CEERERIN) RIENRF G-

EEREREEBREFS
EEREREBENEEF BRI HeEsH
EFEENZEE

B EHRAF1B351BMMFRAETFTRENES
BEREBHEINMT -

Nie Guoming

= [F P

Lu Jie

=
= N
== AN

Li Wenijin
FXE

Yip Wai Ming
BE&H

Wu Min
28

Man Kwok Kuen, Charles

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$2,360,000 with effect from 1 January 2022.
BTE_"HF—A—Hi FEESFHEEEF22,360,0008 7T

Annual Director’s fee revised to HK$300,000 with effect from 1 January 2022.

] BE_E__F—H—HE FEESHEEEF 4300,00087T°
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

A permitted indemnity provision for the benefit of the Directors
and officers of the Group is currently in force and remained in force
throughout the financial year.

Throughout the year, the Company has maintained appropriate directors
and officers liability insurance cover providing indemnity against liability,
including but not limited to liability in respect of legal action against
the Directors and officers thereby sustained or incurred arising from or
incidental to execution of duties of his/her offices.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
Director and the chief executive of the Company (the “Chief Executive”)
in the Company’s shares (the “Shares”), underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")),
as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code”) in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules are as follows:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the Company

i |
EESTRYREIRX
AEBEERSREEAB 2 EHEFHRME

BXRFENBEEEE—BEN-

REFE AABDERBEENEETRSHRE
BABSERBUBESE HDAEERR
REEkSREBEASHABTEBREMEE
BN HEERERFAREE

ESRRITBHERMN RS « HARAAR( K MR
SRz R

R —F+"A=+—H ' ZFEBEFEREFA
Tﬁﬁﬂlwﬁ (M7E 4 %"%JZJ) R ARRAE K B
=8 (O BERIAEEY (TEEMBPER
i) %’Xvﬁﬂ) E’JK@THxTﬁ (M 1) ~EKAF
EERMDERESET  EEELARATIRESE
HERHERBIEIEFENETLMIEE L
MARB M ERI0FF S EHETAESETES
RoZESTE (MEEFE)) EMEARE K
ERBMERZABERAE (M) WikER K&
HKEWMT

T AE)EREE.10BTHE Ek

Approximate

Personal Other percentage of
Name of Director Capacity interests interests Total” shareholding
- A
EEgs et BAED Hitigzo BE BAaERL
Nie Guoming (Chairman) Beneficial owner 4,200,000 1,000,000 5,200,000(L) 0.48%
ZER (FR) BEnEAA
Lu Jie (Chief Executive Officer) Beneficial owner 8,870,000 11,000,000 19,870,000(L) 1.82%
BN (THaE) BERBEEA
Li Wenjin Beneficial owner 2,890,000 11,000,000 13,890,000(L) 1.27%
FNE BmEBA
Notes: T -
(i) The letter “L" denotes a long position in Shares. (i) TLIRTEROETE-
(i) These represented the underlying interests in Shares in respect of share (i) 8RR HPWHEEKD  BEHEFRESE T
options granted to the respective Director subject to certain vesting TRNEBIKRENE §$ BN ANES

conditions, the details of which are provided in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” in this Report of the Directors.

* The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares in issue
as at 31 December 2021 which was 1,092,974,000 ordinary shares.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING B
SHARES

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders (not being a Director or the Chief Executive) in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as

FER R AR Fe A8 RA AR 19 O R 2 B 33k

BAERBRBEESTRPERHFE336FFE
TafFrEN RZE-_—F+__A=+—
H>TERET (MIFESHITHRE) REAQE
WD RAERRMDTFAEEN B RXE N

follows: 155
Approximate
Class of Total number percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity securities of Shares® shareholding®
BRERATE g1 HE5EER LR BoOLE®
Hi Sun Technology (China) Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary 364,000,000 (L) 33.30%
(“Hi Sun") B@EA A Zim
BfERE (FE) BRAR (&%)
FMR LLC Interest of controlled Ordinary 76,603,500(L)® 7.01%
corporations Ziahg
REAEER
Brandes Investment Partners, L.P. Investment manager Ordinary 57,334,000(L) 5.25%
KREKIE =R
Notes: M5k -

60

The letter “L” denotes a long position in Shares.

The percentage is calculated based on the total number of Shares in issue 2.
as at 31 December 2021 which was 1,092,974,000 ordinary shares.

These shares are held by FMR LLC through various corporations 100% 3.

directly or indirectly controlled by it.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed below and in Notes 17 and 33 to the consolidated
financial statements, the Group did not enter into any other connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which is subject to
disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules during
the year ended 31 December 2021.

Connected Transaction

Non-exercise of the right of first refusal

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 15
December 2021 in relation to the non-exercise of the rights of first
refusal by Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (“Wonder Pax”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, to acquire equity
interest in Megahunt Technologies Inc. (formerly known as “Mega Hunt
Microelectronics (Beijing) Limited”) (“Megahunt”).

Megahunt was owned as to approximately 3.64% by Wonder Pax
and approximately 65.73% by Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited
("Megahunt HK") respectively. On 15 December 2021, Wonder
Pax received a notice of transfer from Megahunt HK in respect of
Megahunt HK's intention to transfer (the “Transfer”) an aggregate
of approximately 20% equity interest in Megahunt (the “Relevant
Interest”) at an aggregate consideration of approximately RMB208.7
million (equivalent to approximately HK$255.3 million) to certain
transferees (the “Transferees”).

Pursuant to the investment agreement entered into between Wonder
Pax, Megahunt, Megahunt HK, Hi Sun and certain other independent
third parties, Wonder Pax shall be entitled to purchase the Relevant
Interest (or any part thereof) on the same terms and conditions
as offered by Megahunt HK to the Transferees (the “Right of First
Refusal”).

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax decided not to exercise the Right
of First Refusal to acquire the Relevant Interest (or any part thereof).
No consideration was payable or received by the Group pursuant to
the non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal. Wonder Pax also entered
into an agreement with an independent third-party purchaser (the
“Purchaser”) and Megahunt to dispose of its entire approximately
3.64% equity interest in Megahunt to the Purchaser at a consideration
of approximately RMB43.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$53.4
million) (the “Disposal”), and a gain of approximately RMB22.0 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$26.5 million) was recognised in the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Pursuant to the non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal and
subsequent to the completion of the Disposal which took place on
28 December 2021, Wonder Pax no longer held any equity interest in
Megahunt.
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In light of the uncertainties over the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group continues to maintain a prudent stance in evaluating investment.
The non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal is in line with the Group's
investment objectives.

Hi Sun is a substantial shareholder of the Company and is therefore a
connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. As Megahunt HK is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hi
Sun, Megahunt HK is an associate of Hi Sun and hence a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
As such, the non-exercise of the Right of First Refusal constitutes a
connected transaction of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Continuing Connected Transactions

Framework agreements with Hi Sun

Hi Sun and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Hi Sun Group”) are
connected persons (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company.
Accordingly, transactions between the Group and Hi Sun Group
constitute connected transactions for the Company under the Listing
Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group, from
time to time, entered into individual agreements with the Hi Sun
Group relating to (i) the supply of E-payment Terminals Products (the
“E-payment Terminals Transactions”) to Hi Sun Group under the 2019
Framework Agreement (as defined below); and (ii) the purchase of
Chips (the “Chips Transactions”) from Hi Sun Group under the 2020
Chips Framework Agreement (as amended and supplemented by the
Supplementary Agreement) (as defined below) respectively. These
transactions constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

i. Supply of E-payment Terminals Products
On 5 December 2018, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2019 Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and Hi Sun Group
agreed to purchase E-payment Terminals Products for a term
of 3 years commencing on 1 January 2019 and expiring on 31
December 2021.

The annual caps of the total contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions under the 2019 Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 31 December
2020 and 31 December 2021 were all set at HK$170,000,000
and the actual aggregate contract value for the E-payment
Terminals Transactions for each of the three years ended 31
December 2019, 31 December 2020 and 31 December 2021
were approximately HK$47,498,000, HK$38,595,000 and
HK$26,220,000 respectively.
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As the sale of the E-payment Terminals Products to Hi Sun Group
is in line with the business model of the Group and can continue
to generate stable income for the Group in the China market, the
Company entered into another framework agreement (the “2022
Framework Agreement”) with Hi Sun on 23 December 2021,
pursuant to which the Group agreed to sell and Hi Sun Group
agreed to purchase the E-payment Terminals Products. The term
of the 2022 Framework Agreement commenced on 1 January
2022 and will expire on 31 December 2024. The annual caps of
the total contract value for the sale and purchase of E-payment
Terminals Products under the 2022 Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2022, 31 December
2023 and 31 December 2024 were set at HK$20,000,000.

During the year, the Group has followed the internal control
measures and policies in determining the prices and terms of
the individual agreements governing the E-payment Terminals
Transactions, and all E-payment Terminals Transactions were on
terms no less favourable to the Group than those offered to
independent third parties for products of comparable quality,
quantity and specifications.

Purchase of Chips

On 30 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement (the “2020 Chips Framework Agreement”) with Hi
Sun, pursuant to which the Group agreed to purchase and Hi
Sun Group agreed to sell the mag-stripe card security decoder
chips (the “Security Decoder Chips”), the security micro controller
unit chips (the “Security Micro Controller Unit Chips”) and
the contactless reader chips (the “Contactless Reader Chips”,
collectively with the Security Decoder Chips and Security Micro
Controller Unit Chips, the “Chips”) for a term of 3 years
commencing on 1 January 2020 and expiring on 31 December
2022.

The Board envisaged that the annual caps contemplated under the
2020 Chips Framework Agreement could not meet the business
needs of the Group. On 10 September 2021, the Company and Hi
Sun entered into a supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental
Agreement”) to revise the annual caps for the two years ending
31 December 2021 and 31 December 2022 under the 2020 Chips
Framework Agreement, in order to cope with the strong and
increasing market demand for the Group’s E-Payment Terminals,
the upward price adjustment of Chips due to chips shortage and
general upsurge of production costs and the Group's production
capacity assurance measures, in view of the relatively high
utilisation rate of the annual caps.

ii.
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The annual caps of the total contract value for the Chips
Transactions under the 2020 Chips Framework Agreement (as
revised and supplemented by the Supplemental Agreement)
for the three years ending 31 December 2020, 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2022 were set at HK$80,000,000,
HK$120,000,000 and HK$140,000,000 respectively. The actual
aggregate contract value for the Chips Transactions for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and the year ended 31 December
2021 were approximately HK$76,607,000 and HK$118,332,000
respectively.

The Board considers that the entering into of the 2020 Chips
Framework Agreement and the Supplemental Agreement would
ensure continuous and stable supply of the Chips for production
of the Group’s E-Payment Terminals related products and reduce
the production costs by saving the operational costs in sourcing
suitable market suppliers, as the Chips supplied by the Hi Sun
Group were fit for the Group’s production needs and with
specifications not commonly supplied by other market suppliers.

Purchase of the Chips under the 2020 Chips Framework
Agreement (as revised and supplemented by the Supplemental
Agreement) is on a non-exclusive basis, and the Group maintains
its discretionary right to source the Chips from other suppliers.
During the year, the purchase price of the Chips under the 2020
Chips Framework Agreement (as revised and supplemented by the
Supplemental Agreement) were determined by making reference
to the prices of other products sold by Hi Sun Group and the
prices of similar products sold by third party suppliers in the
industry. The Group has also adopted internal control measures
in respect of, inter alia, determining the prices and terms of the
individual agreements governing the prices and terms for the
Chips Transactions and sourcing for comparable suppliers. The
Chips Transactions were on terms no less favourable to the Group
than those available from independent third parties.
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The Board including the independent non-executive Directors has
reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and confirms
that these transactions were entered into by the Company in
accordance with relevant pricing policies, and that these transactions
were conducted:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are
fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31 December
2021 in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagement Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Board
confirms that the auditor has issued to the Board an unqualified letter
confirming the matters in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing
Rules in respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed
above for the year ended 31 December 2021 as being in order. A copy
of this letter has been provided to the Stock Exchange.

The Company has complied with the applicable requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with respect to the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Please also refer to Notes 17 and 33 to the consolidated financial
statements for other details.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A summary of significant related party transactions made during the
year is disclosed in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
All related party transactions that constituted connected transactions
or continuing connected transactions (as the case may be) (other than
those described in the section above headed “Connected Transactions”)
under the Listing Rules are exempt from reporting, annual review,
announcement and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company confirms that it
has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2021.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION AND CONFLICTS OF
INTERESTS

A deed of non-competition was entered into between the Company and
Hi Sun on 1 December 2010 ("Deed of Non-Competition”), pursuant
to which Hi Sun shall not compete either directly or indirectly with the
Group’s principal business activities in such geographic territories in
which the Group operates.

Hi Sun has signed an annual declaration (“Declaration”) of compliance
with the Deed of Non-competition confirming its compliance with the
non-competition undertakings in the Deed of Non-Competition during
the year. The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned undertakings and consider that Hi Sun has complied
with the Deed of Non-Competition during the financial year ended 31
December 2021.

DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Li Wenjin (“Mr. Li"”), an Executive Director, concurrently serving as an
executive director of Hi Sun and a director of certain of its subsidiaries,
is interested in 6,400,000 shares of Hi Sun, representing 0.23% of its
issued shares as at 31 December 2021, and hence required to abstain
from voting on any resolution of the Board in respect of any particular
transaction or business involving any actual or potential conflict of
interest between the Group and the Hi Sun Group.

Notwithstanding Mr. Li's aforesaid interests in the Hi Sun Group, the
Board considers that Mr. Li is not interested in a business competing
or is likely to compete either directly or indirectly with the Group’s
business, taking into account the Deed of Non-Competition, the
Declaration, any implications thereunder and the independent non-
executive Directors’ subsequent review thereof.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors or any of their respective
associates is interested in any business competing or is likely to compete
either directly or indirectly with the Group’s business that is discloseable
under Rule 8.10(2) of the Listing Rules.
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TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS
OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance in which any Director or any entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested directly or indirectly subsisted at
any time during or at the end of the year, nor was there any contract
of significance between the Group and a controlling shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries, or any contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year ended 31
December 2021 attributable to the Group’s major suppliers and
customers are respectively as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 16.5%
— five largest suppliers combined 33.5%
Sales

— the largest customer 34.6%
— five largest customers combined 47.5%

None of the Directors, their close associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the number of
issued shares of the Company) has any interests in any of the suppliers
or customers disclosed above.

PENSION SCHEMES

The subsidiaries operating in Hong Kong are required to participate in
a defined contribution retirement scheme (“"MPF Scheme”) set up in
accordance with the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, under which employers and employees are each required
to make regular mandatory contributions calculated at 5% of the
employee’s relevant income (“Mandatory Contributions”) to the MPF
Scheme, subject to the minimum and maximum relevant income levels
as prescribed by law. Employees may also make voluntary contributions
additional to Mandatory Contributions.

Any Mandatory Contributions paid for and in respect of an employee
are fully and immediately vested in the employee once paid to the
trustee of the MPF Scheme and any investment return derived from the
investment of the Mandatory Contributions is also fully and immediately
vested in the employee. The employees are entitled to all of the accrued
benefits derived from the employer's Mandatory Contributions upon
retirement at the age of 65 years old, death or total incapacity, subject
to other applicable provisions of law.
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In addition, pursuant to the government regulations in the PRC, the
Group is required to contribute in favour of the employees in the PRC
an amount of approximately 7% to 22% of their basic wages to certain
retirement benefit schemes. The local municipal government undertakes
to assume the retirement benefits obligations of those workers of the
Group.

There is no arrangement where contributions may be forfeited under
the defined contribution schemes of the Group.

The Group also operates a defined benefit pension plan for employees
working in Korea. The plan is administrated by an independent trustee
with its assets held separately from those of the Group. The plan is
wholly funded by contributions from the Group. The actuarial valuation
of the plan was prepared by certified insurance actuaries of Dlog
Actuarial Consulting, who are registered with the Financial Services
Commission of Korea, using the projected unit credit method. The
key actuarial assumptions adopted in the actuary report prepared by
Dlog Actuarial Consulting in calculating the net balance of defined
benefit obligations of approximately WON508,978,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$3,359,000) as at 31 December 2021 are the
annual discount rate and salary growth rate being 3.53% and 3.95%
respectively.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the
Directors confirm that the Company has maintained at all times during
the year sufficient public float as prescribed by the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers
who has remained as the Company’s auditor for each of the preceding
three years and will retire and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company.

On behalf of the Board

Nie Guoming
Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
VR ES T

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of PAX Global Technology Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of PAX Global Technology Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are set out
on pages 79 to 186, comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended;
and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Impairment of receivables

. Provision for inventories

70 PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

ERHNER

RPACREEBEEGAMAGRMN(ERES
ZR)ETES -RFEXFEN TEENSE
FEERRS ZBEL B RS M BRET K
ENEFISDPFEE—D M-

HPIEGE RFMESHES REETERE
EMAHEANBEARRREHER

L NYR K
REEBEHMAGTEMN(EXTSMER
TR UTERITRL) - RMABIK B
B wEETTRIPHEMERERESE-

FREtEE
FREBFFEERBEHMANEEHE -BRY
FRGREMBRENEARDBEENTIR B
EEREARMABABREGEUBRERY
ARRKETREN KT THELEFER
HEBHNER-

HPEBT PR NERETSTEBALT
s  BWRIERE

s TFEHEMA



Independent Auditor’'s Report
VR ES T

Key Audit Matter
FRREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAERERARESEE

Impairment of receivables

Refer to Note 3.1(b)(ii) (financial risk factors), Note 4(a)
(critical accounting estimates and judgments) and Note
21 (trade and bills receivables and other financial assets at
amortised cost) to the consolidated financial statements
EBEIH S EN S 1)) (B BABEZE) W a24(a)

(BEEZE5E51TRAE) BRIE21 (BIERA R EWE 5%
e 17 i 2K 51 AR 2 B % i B )

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had gross trade
receivables of HK$2,214.1 million and provision for
impairment of trade receivables of HK$138.1 million.
Provision is made for lifetime expected credit losses on trade
receivables.

KN_Z_—F+"_A=+—H> ESEENBWRME
BER2,2141 888 BERFABREENR138.188
B EEEMNEURRNEBRAEREERBTRES
e

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on provision for impairment losses of trade
receivables included:

BPHEMEERE T LBRUIRFAEGIBREB 2 B2
FEE:

- Understood, evaluated and validated the key control
procedures over the management’s estimation of
expected credit losses allowance and periodic review
of aged receivables and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors associated with estimating the expected credit
losses;

- BER -TEARISEEEMRBCEESERER
ERZAHRRBGRIENEREEERER  LiBRE R A
G TRBEEEEERMNMGNITREREERH

tES REBERKT  FEERERRENEE &

B2 5

- Obtained management’s assessment on the expected
credit losses allowance of receivables. We corroborated
and validated management’s assessment based on the
historical settlement pattern from the past 3 years,
correspondence with the customers, evidence from
external sources including the relevant market research
regarding the relevant forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors used in management’s
assessment.

- NS EEENRKFRRIEERBEEANTG-
?ﬂ'ﬁ%ﬁ\ BE-—FEERA -EHERNENKKE
SNERERIRHIEE R (BIERREEERN DMEEPTWHE’J
AEMER MEBEERAZENTHMR) ' EFEL
e BB AT -
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Key Audit Matter
FRREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAERERARESEE

Management applied judgment in assessing the expected
credit losses. Receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
of receivables are assessed individually for provision for
impairment allowance. Expected credit losses are also
estimated by grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for
likelihood of recovery, taking into account the nature of the
customer, its geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying expected credit loss rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the receivables. The expected
credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit
losses experienced from the past 3 years and are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.
EEEERHEHTERBEERR - HNENEFEEMF
AENEFRFLCWRMEEFETEERRBNBBRIES TR
(B 5 B (R B Bl 5T o R S TREAE B 1R > HER
NEWRIETEREE M E BB MUK IREAE R
REESGEERBRFEETDE  UERFGHEFD
et 36 FE AR TR HRME B RS IR X AE R A W AR IR RY AR 0 4B
BH-THHREERBEXREBEBI=FLRNELEES
BEE TEARABURMRBEERABEEER AU ARRR
BEREMEBKRBEBEINEZESERR -

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the trade
receivables and the estimation and judgment involved in
determining the expected credit losses allowance of the
trade receivables.
EMEAILEREENRBRANERHE URTE
TE FEUS BR R TR HR 15 B RS 1R 2 B Iy 0 Je & 5t A0 1 i o
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- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile
of trade receivables by checking to the underlying sales
invoices; and

- FERTHEEEEER UEHEH AR BKIRR
BREC 2 ZEREE 5

- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent settlement of
trade receivables against bank receipts.

- MBS RXERBTHREIEBBERRNEEER
A E 15N o

Based upon the above, we found that the estimation and
judgment made by management in respect of the expected
credit losses allowance and the collectability of receivables
were supportable by the available evidence.

ERLHRE RMEREEENREFIERBEES
BEFERTWEMFRENGS RABEISNEEX

o
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Key Audit Matter
FRREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAERERARESEE

Provision for inventories

R

Refer to Note 4(b) (critical accounting estimates and

Jjudgments) and Note 20 (inventories) to the consolidated
financial statements

E B RN TA0b) (BE S 5L 51 R E) RITEE20
(&)

The Group held inventories of HK$2,071.3 million as at 31
December 2021. Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value (“NRV"). The cost of inventories
may not be recoverable if those inventories are aged and
damaged, if they have become obsolete, or if their selling
prices have declined. For the year ended 31 December 2021,
the Group has made provision for inventories of HK$15.9
million.

BEEER S _—F+__B=1+—HIFEFEHN2,071.3
BB T - FENNEREAES#IEFEE (TR FE])

ZBRBREIR - HEEEERE - BR - BHENEET
B QIR gE B A RO FEMREA -BE T _—F+°H
=t+—HLEEE SEEFREFEREFHENISIEER

JT ©

Management determines the lower of cost and NRV of
inventories by considering the ageing profile, inventory
obsolescence and estimated selling price of individual
inventory items.

EEEEEFEMAKRIERFEZREER @8
BREFENER - FERSBRNENFENRAES-

Our audit procedures in relation to management’s
assessment on NRV and obsolescence of inventories
included:

KM EHMERETREEIERFERERTBR
WITHEAEREE
- Understood, evaluated and validated the key

control procedures over the management’s
estimation of the NRV of the inventories
and conducting periodic review on inventory
obsolescence, and assessed the inherent risk of
material misstatement by considering the degree
of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk associated with estimating NRV of the
inventories;

- ER - TEERRIEEEGSFEUEZRFERE

HH%V@ SERNBEREZERERF LRBERAM
SAEEREFFEARNGEN I EEREREM

lﬁJ—LB K SHEERERRANE S R ;

- Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of provision of inventories to assess the
effectiveness of management 's estimation process;

- FEETHENLEERAENERUGIEEEREM®
STREFRIANAL

- Observed client’s inventory counts to identify
whether there is any damaged or obsolete

inventory
- HEGSETER UHHBESBEMAIBEIBE
@E‘i:

- Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
ageing profile of individual inventory items
by checking to the underlying procurement
correspondence and invoices;

- PEREHERRBEMNRER
AIFEEEBEER Z EEY ;

2 DU 75 =0R SE
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Key Audit Matter
FRREEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RPN EANAERERARESEE

Management calculates the NRV at each period end based
on the estimated selling price less selling expenses, which
requires significant judgments and assumptions to be
made to determine the estimated selling price of individual
product, including historical experience of selling products
of similar nature and expectation of future sales based on
current market conditions.
EEENHBAEBREHER X R ERIRNETE
RPE TECENERZEAEEBR AL EKRAR
REx BEEZEUTHELAMUEEERNERUAKE
RAEMRERREEFEL TR

Management consistently applies a provisioning
methodology for slow moving inventories based on
inventory ageing and makes specific provision for long aged
inventories. Management also conducted periodic review on
inventory obsolescence, including performance of periodic
inventory counts and review of holding period for individual
inventory items.

EEERGFEFRN THFEEERBEE R A I
MEHREFEFHECRE - EBETEMEERS
BREETEHES OECHETFERM RBERER
FERENFERH-

We focused on this area due to the estimation of provision
for inventories involves significant judgment and various
uncertainties as a result of changing technology, customer
demand and competitors actions.
RMBAILEREENHFENRERFIRERN
B URRMEHMAR - ERBRKGEFEZTAERS
BAHBRRAER -
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- Tested on a sample basis, the subsequent usage
of significant inventory items, obtained through
the usage report subsequent to the year end as
a basis to identify inventory obsolescence. Where
there are no subsequent usage of the respective
items after the year end, we discussed with
management its assessment on estimated future
utilisation, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders and marketability of
the relevant finished goods by using our industry
knowledge and external market analysis, as
appropriate; and

- MHBEAFXAHEEFERFEREZERER B
BRSFEAREBNERRE  #ALBERKES WA
FAEERERBIEAS  HMEEEEENmE
HEAESEERKREAREL 2L BBRHEMHIT
EHHMIEHIE N WMBER) ERBERAEES
B SHESTEREMAEMMEHEENNEE &

- Tested on a sample basis, the NRV of selected
inventory items, by comparing the selling price
subsequent to the year end, against the carrying
values of these individual finished goods. Where
there are no subsequent sales of the respective
finished goods after the year end, we discussed
with management as to the realisable value of
the products, corroborating explanations with the
inventory ageing, sales orders, historical margins,
and current market conditions by using our
industry knowledge and external market analysis,
as appropriate.

- MHBEARAAREEFEEEZIERFE TR

EER-WRERBTEHENABARA R RMHE
HEEENRZEMNERE TEBRMET
ENRAMIBHHZON MER) - ERBEBEE
FH HETE BEENXRLIRTHRNERE-

Based on the procedures described, we found the
estimations of management in relation to the provision
for inventories were supportable by available evidence.
REMAER  RMEREEEFAFEERE 2G5
BIEST:SEA 2
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

{ parr |
HtE2
ERREFRAHHMESAE -HMEE 8
FRANFABEER  EFEEGREMBTERER

HPIB IR BT RS o

RABGEEMHTRENERENREEME
B RATAHZEEMEREREMTEA

eI
EECEitim o

EERMNRSHBRENES  HANSE
ERBHMERE THBEF ZEHEMEER
RRAGEMBRRNAMESSBRERR
THRNBREFEERNEBAEUFEEEN
SRR BB °

BERBEMAERTHI A IRAMIBSEME
BEEEXRERRL  HAFERRSZEE-
HBESE HKFIRLEEFKRS-

EERENZEEMGEMBRREAX
ENEE

BERREFREERBEEEGHMNAEB/HH
(BEMBREEN) REE(ATRA ) B
BRERBEEMTSNGEEMBRE X
HAREEEMBRRNBEE A AFEAR
MFRERMENNERERRAFAENA
BIEHIES-

ERBEEEVHRRE EFA8TME &8
EREEENE TEERBR T RELR
BEEEBNER URERFREER 5
ER-BRIFEZERR BSHEEBEUFLL
2o EAMBRNERTR-
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Companies Act 1981
of Bermuda and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the

reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

s HEERARFBLKESHERNNBEM
TR 4G50 o IRIRPTE BV B 51 /RE > HEE
EETFHEEEENRERERNERTE
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EETERFELEE -
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Hin Gay Gabriel.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 March 2022
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Consolidated Income Statement

EERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+"_BA=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
—E-—F —Z°FTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Revenue A 5 7,195,982 5,650,619
Cost of sales tHE R A 7 (4,368,785) (3,313,310)
Gross profit EF 2,827,197 2,337,309
Other income HAh A 5 96,315 77,838
Other gains/(losses), net Hithks,~ (B518) 348 5 50,459 (2,115)
Selling expenses HERMS 7 (716,234)  (499,321)
Administrative expenses THER 7,8 (958,185)  (781,456)
Net impairment losses on financial assets EMEEZREFERE 7 (21,580) (65,083)
Operating profit T 1,277,972 1,067,172
Finance costs MEER 9 (6,979) (8,285)
Share of results of investments accounted for  FE{LIZHEZS Z AR
using the equity method KREXEE 19 3,454 (6,046)
Profit before income tax BRFER 1S FiiEm F 1,274,447 1,052,841
Income tax expense FriEEs 11 (182,205)  (148,991)
Profit for the year FEHAN 1,092,242 903,850
Profit attributable to: FE(EEF :
Owners of the Company EN/NESIESTE N 1,083,774 900,123
Non-controlling interests JEITERE R 8,468 3,727
1,092,242 903,850
HK$ HK$
per share per share
BRAET BRET
Earnings per share for the profit EREFEA
attributable to the owners of FEEER 2 SRER
the Company:
— Basic — &K 12(a) 0.989 0.828
— Diluted — 8 12(b) 0.957 0.823

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated ~ 5586ZE 186 E HIMI sk Jh 4R & M I R B H b 56
financial statements. 7o
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Year ended 31 December

BE+"_BA=+—HLEFE

2021 2020
B —EEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihEz3 FHET FHET
Profit for the year FRiER 1,092,242 903,850
Other comprehensive income/(loss), Hit2mEmka~ (B518) »
net of tax NpRRIE
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to  BZ B EF HEFEmzEH
profit or loss
Exchange differences arising on translation of B ESINHTE A BB 7R =
the financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ~ E4ERIE R Z%E 81,383 184,195
Release of exchange reserve upon disposal of  HEMBATBERZ
a subsidiary HMEE R S (756)
Items that will not be reclassified to FTEEMPIETRm o HE
profit or loss
Change in value of a financial asset at fair value —IBIRAFEsT A HEMEE W E
through other comprehensive income ZEREEZBENE 17(b) 360 (7,966)
Remeasurement of post-employment BB RNEBENE
benefit obligation 329 59
Total comprehensive income for the year, FEZ2EUNELEEE > NRRIE
net of tax 1,174,314 1,079,382
Total comprehensive income FEE 2 U 4R%E :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KRBFHBA 1,169,229 1,079,198
Non-controlling interests JEEER = 5,085 184

1,174,314 1,079,382

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 5586 EF 186B MM st /hfr & M R T E I
financial statements. e
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HEEERRR

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
B ZZTEF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
MisE FAET FAET
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BERRE 14 485,527 129,240
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 282,477 291,137
Intangible assets EBEEE 16 32,909 39,964
Financial assets at fair value through BAFESIAB®Z
profit or loss TREE 17(a) 124,269 130,120
Financial asset at fair value through BATEst A AHEMEERGE 2
other comprehensive income EREE 17(b) 2,827 2,467
Investments accounted for using the BREDEARZIEE
equity method 19 20,580 21,702
Loan to an investment accounted for using BHEREIARZREZEN
the equity method 33(b) - 4,781
Other non-current assets HMIERs & E 22 4,967 4,966
Deferred income tax assets RILFTISMEE 29 77,616 57,566
Total non-current assets EREBEELEE 1,031,172 681,943
Current assets MENEE
Inventories b= 20 2,071,285 1,629,901
Other current assets HMmgh&E 22 63,190 47,707
Other financial assets at amortised cost R AY R EtEMEE 21 18,609 22,087
Trade and bills receivables & W BR = B FE U 22 4% 21 2,081,977 1,434,253
Restricted cash ZREIRE 23 22,091 15,345
Short-term bank deposits DHAERITE K 24 - 3,082
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 25 3,532,954 3,802,741
Total current assets MEBEEEE 7,790,106 6,955,116
Total assets BERE 8,821,278 7,637,059
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to the owners of EATFE AEGER
the Company
Share capital Rg 7~ 26 109,298 109,284
Reserves #E 27 6,377,831 5,492,658
6,487,129 5,601,942
Non-controlling interests JEERR RS (30,573) (28,370)
Total equity e e 6,456,556 5,573,572

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

e
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
HAEEREAER

As at 31 December

®w+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —Z°FTF
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FHET FET
LIABILITIES &8
Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Lease liabilities HEEE 15 84,648 93,811
Deferred income tax liabilities REPFIEREE 29 11,389 7,953
Other non-current liabilities HMIEmenas 5,142 7,404
Total non-current liabilities ERENEELEE 101,179 109,168
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade payables FE{TBR R 28 1,668,823 1,371,267
Other payables and accruals H AN FE (T AR AR K FE 51 R 1B 28 504,229 485,459
Current tax liabilities EHREaE 58,537 68,817
Lease liabilities HEaE 15 31,954 28,776
Total current liabilities BB EEE 2,263,543 1,954,319
Total liabilities BE4EEE 2,364,722 2,063,487
Total equity and liabilities EEkhaFEiEsE 8,821,278 7,637,059

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of #HiGEHHBREN _E__F=H_-+=H

Directors on 23 March 2022 and were signed on its behalf. EESgtE THTMIESRAKREES-
NIE GUOMING LI WENJIN
EEHA EXE
Director Director
E-Eo EE

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 586ZE 186 BRI sEhir &M HHRFRPE R I
financial statements. 7o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mAEmEHR

Attributable to the owners of the Company

FATFEAELS
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment - comprehensive Non-
Share Share Treasury Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total  controlling Total
capital premium shares reserve reserve reserve reserve Teserves reserve earnings reserves interests equity
BATE
HARMEE
Wiz
BE  RAER Bk EAHE  BRENE CEEUHG SREEEE  HBEE 0 NEEE  RERY BBME  FEREE RENE
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR TR FiEn FEn FEn TEn TEn TEn TEn TR FiEn FiEn FEn
For the year ended 31 December 2021~ HE=F——
+ZAZt-HLEE
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZB_—F-A-HZ&H 109,284 1,243,352 - (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 1341 37,962 4,484,700 5,492,658 (28,370) 5,573,572
Comprehensive income 2ENE
Profit for the year ERER - - - - - - - - - 1,083,774 1,083,774 8,468 1,092,242
Other comprehensive income/(loss) ~ E 2 / (i)
Exchange differences arising on translation &S/ B AT EHE
of the financia statements of foreign EEZERZE
subsidiaries - - - - - - - - 84,808 - 84,808 (3,425) 81,383
Change in value of a finandial asset at —BRATEIALMEE
fair value thiough other comprehensive Wz $REEZ BEAE
income - - - - - - 360 - - - 360 - 360
Remeasurement of post-employment FEAENERENNE
benefit obligation - - - - - 27 - - - - 27 Y] 39
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ER2EREHEE - - - - - 27 360 - 84808 1083774 1,169,229 5085 1174314
Transactions with owners BEEAZRR
Repurchase of the Company's shares ER TR (k)
(Note 26) (956) (85,637) (367) - - - - - - - (86,004) - (86,960)
Dividends to the shareholders of BaRAREZRS
the Company - - - - - - - - - (241,580)  (241,580) - (241,580)
Dividends to  non-contralling BANBATFARER
interest in a subsidiary ®E - - - - - - - - - - - (3,857) (3,857)
Share option scheme B
- Value of services provided (Note 10) -BRERBNEE
(H310) - - - - 13,668 - - - - - 13,668 - 13,668
— share options exercised (Note 26) ~BiTIERRIE (H3k20) 970 33,652 - - - - - - - - 33,652 - 34,622
Acquisition of non-controling interests of WA BN AR ER
asubsidiary (Note 18) (Kz18) - - - - - - - (3.792) - - (3.792) (3.431) (123)
Total transactions with owners REBAZRBRE 14 (51,985) (367) - 13,668 - - (3,792) - (241,580) (284,056) (7,288) (291,330)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZB-F
+ZR=+-Bzik 109,298 1,191,367 (367) (414,978) 172,332 (68) (17,668) (2,451) 122,710 5,326,894 6,377,831 (30,573) 6,456,556
The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated 5586E 186 BRI sEhir &M HEHRFRNE R
financial statements. bal
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

reEmE

EIES

Attributable to the owners of the Company

EATREAES
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Share  Employment  comprehensive Non-
Share Share Capital option benefit income Other Exchange Retained Total controlling Total
capial premium reserve resenve resene resene reseves resenve eamings reserves interests equity
BATE
SAHMEE
Wiz
RE RGEE  EAHEE  BREHE TEEAHE SREEHR HftE NERE  REERA HEEE  HEREE  REEE
HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Thn T i Thn Thn ThEn TEr TEr Thn Thn T T
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZF-RET-ASt-ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZEZFF-F-H268 110,019 1,274,530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 134 (149,028) 3,834,670 4,655,926 (26,593) 4739352
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Profit for the year EREf - - - - - - - - 900,123 900,123 3027 903,850
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Eft2ENE/ (58
Exchange differences arising on translation of the ~ BEESNHBATMBRREEZ
financial statements of foreign subsidiaries ERER - - - - - - - 187,746 - 187,746 (3,551) 184,195
Release of exchange reserves upon HENBLARERCERER
disposal of a subsidiary - - - - - - - (756) - (756) - (756)
Change in value of a financial asset at fairvale ~ —BRATEFAEMEEREZ
through other compreensive income SREEEENE - - - - - (7.966) - - - (7,966) - (7.966)
Remeasurement of post-employment BERENEBENHE
benefit obligation - - - - 51 - - - - 51 8 59
Total comprehensive income{loss)for the year FREENE/ (8 L8 - - - - 51 (79%6) - 186,990 900123 1,079,198 8 107938
Transactions with owners BEEAZRR
Repurchase of the Company's shares (Note 26) ERRATNRI (H320) (2,028 (76,031) - - - - - - - (76,031) - (78,059)
Dividends declared to the shareholders of BERGAIREZRE
the Company - - - - - - - - (250,093) (250,093) - (250,093)
Dividends to a non-controlling interest in a subsidiary E4HBAT ERRER 2 RE - - - - - - - - - - (2.221) .21
Share option scheme B
~value of senvices provided (Note 10) -ERERRNEE (0 - - - 38,805 - - - - - 38,805 - 38,805
- share options exercised (Note 26) ~Bf7fERRiE (o) 1293 44853 - - - - - - - 44,853 - 16,146
Disposal of a subsidiary HERBAT - - - - - - - - - - 266 266
Total transactions with owners BEENIRGRE (735) (31,178) - 38,805 - - - - (250,003) (242,466) (1,91) (245,162)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIBIZE
+ZR=t+-BZ4&H 109,284 1,243,352 (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 134 37962 4,484,700 5,492,658 (28,370) 5573572

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 43
mAaRERER

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLFE

2021 2020
- ZETERF
Notes HKS$'000 HK$'000
M5k FHET FHET
Cash flows from operating activities RELBENIRERE
Cash generated from operations KEMBRE 30(a) 562,829 1,011,491
Hong Kong profits tax paid BB BTSN (129,744)  (233,757)
China corporate income tax paid BT EMRER (64,108) (24,252)
Overseas income tax paid BEEINTIER (14,339) (10,149)
Interest paid BAFE (6,979) (8,285)
Net cash generated from operating activities REEERIREFEE 347,659 735,048
Cash flows from investing activities KREFEFNRERE
Proceeds from disposal of an investment HE—BEDEARZEEN
accounted for using the equity method P8R 19 13,861 =
Investment in an investment accounted KRE—BEEREARZEE
for using the equity method - (11,127)
Proceeds from disposal of a financial asset HE—BERAFESAEBERZ
at fair value through profit or loss ERREENFER 17(a) 53,371 =
Investment in a financial asset at fair value KRE—BEAFEFAEBE@Z
through profit or loss B 17(a) . (22,495)
Decrease/(increase) in short-term bank deposits  f8HASE4T 2 20R L, (3E0) 3,065 (157)
Repayment of loan to an investment accounted ¥ZEZHAARZ HEZ BIUER
for using the equity method 4,600 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEY* KR RHRE (344,869) (60,155)
Purchase of right-of-use assets BETHAREE (2,832) (58,306)
Interest received 2UFIE 38,036 38,861
Net cash used in investing activities KREEHMAIRE S (234,768)  (113,379)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEFEESNRERE
Acquisition of non-controlling interests of WHEF R IR R
a subsidiary 18 (7,223) -
Repayment of loan from the non-controlling BIERBIFERERZEE
interest 30(c) - (2,220)
Principal elements of lease payments HEaGELAEEMm 2R 30(c) (33,859) (29,899)
Payments for repurchase of the Company's EIEE A A BB AD Z IR
shares 26(a) (86,960) (78,059)
Dividends paid to the shareholders of BN ABRENRR
the Company (350,864) (140,810)
Dividends paid to non-controlling interest B EHE A IEE R R
in a subsidiary AR E (3,857) (2,227)
Proceeds from issuance of shares in connection 17158 B8 B 7 2247 R 1D P18 =N 58
with the exercise of share options 34,622 46,146
Net cash used in financing activities MEEEPTAIRE R (448,141)  (207,069)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and HEaRESEEYMN GRL)
cash equivalents b I pE R (335,250) 414,600
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning FRERIREEEY
of the year 3,802,741 3,230,005
Exchange gains on cash and RERBSEEYNER KNS
cash equivalents 65,463 158,136
Cash and cash equivalents at end FRAEKRINEEEY
of the year 25 3,532,954 3,802,741

The notes on pages 86 to 186 are an integral part of these consolidated $86ZE 186 E M sEh iz & M FHHRERNE R
financial statements. 7o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

86

GENERAL INFORMATION

PAX Global Technology Limited (the “Company”) is an investment
holding company and together with its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "“Group”) are principally engaged in the
development and sales of electronic funds transfer point-of-sale
("E-payment Terminals”) products, provision of maintenance and
installation and payment solution services (collectively, referred to
as the "E-payment Terminals solutions business”).

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda.

The Company's shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 20
December 2010.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of units of Hong Kong dollars (HK$'000), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented,
unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI"”), financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVPL") and post-employment benefit
obligation, which are measured at fair values.

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to
exercise its judgment in the process of applying the Group's
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(a)

()

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following
amendments to accounting standards for
the first time for the annual reporting period
commencing 1 January 2021:

. Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase
2 — amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

. Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions -
amendments to HKFRS 16

The amendments listed above did not have
any impact on the amounts recognised in prior
periods and are not expected to significantly
affect the current or future periods.

New standards and interpretations not yet
adopted

Certain new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations
have been published that are not mandatory
for this reporting period and have not been
early adopted by the Group. The Group is in
the process of assessing the impact of adopting
these new accounting standards, amendments
to accounting standards and interpretations on
its current or future reporting periods and on
foreseeable future transactions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2

88

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when
the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has
the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are
fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated

from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer

to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment
of the transferred asset. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the

Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of
changes in equity and consolidated balance sheet

respectively.

(ii) Associated companies

Associated companies are all entities over which the
Group has significant influence but not control or joint
control. This is generally the case where the Group
holds between 20% and 50% of the voting rights.
Investments in associated companies are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting (see (iv) below),

after initially being recognised at cost.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEGHBEEE @
POLICIES (continued)
2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 22 FERAKRESEFHE®
(continued)
(i) Joint arrangements (i) &=

Under HKFRS 11 “Joint Arrangements”, investments
in joint arrangements are classified as either joint
operations or joint ventures. The classification depends
on the contractual rights and obligations of each
investor, rather than the legal structure of the joint
arrangement. The Group has joint ventures.

Interests in the joint ventures are accounted for using
the equity method (see (iv) below), after initially being
recognised at cost in the consolidated balance sheet.

(iv) Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group's share of
the post-acquisition profits or losses of the investee in
the consolidated income statement, and the Group’s
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividend
received or receivable from associated companies are
recognised as a reduction in the carrying amount of
the investment.

When the Group's share of losses in an equity-
accounted investment equals or exceeds its interest in
the entity, including any other unsecured long-term
receivables, the Group does not recognise further
losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associated company are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’'s interest in these entities.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the asset transferred. Accounting policies of equity
accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investment
is tested for impairment in accordance with the policy
described in Note 2.10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

(continued)

(v) Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A
change in ownership interest results in an adjustment
between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative
interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to non-controlling interests
and any consideration paid or received is recognised in
a separate reserve within equity attributable to owners

of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity
account for an investment because of a loss of control,
joint control or significant influence, any retained
interest in the entity is remeasured to its fair value
with the change in carrying amount recognised in
the consolidated income statement. This fair value
becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as
an associated company, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss or transferred
to another category of equity as specified/permitted by

applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an
associated company is reduced but joint control or
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss

where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

° liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

° equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquired entity on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired
entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
The excess of the
. consideration transferred,

° amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired
entity, and

o acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair
value of the net identifiable assets of the business acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the consolidated
income statement as a bargain purchase.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combinations (continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date. Any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of an
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing the
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the Executive Directors that make strategic decisions.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation
(a) Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group's entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates or the currency in which funds from
financing activities are generated (the "functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the
Company's functional and the Group's presentation

currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are remeasured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in

the consolidated income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated income
statement, within “finance costs”. All other foreign
exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated income statement on a net basis within

“administrative expenses”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the date when the fair value was determined.
Translation differences on assets and liabilities carried
at fair values are reported as part of the fair value gain
or loss. For example, translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets and liabilities such as equities
held at FVPL are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as financial assets at FVOCI are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates
of the transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of any net investment in foreign
entities, and of borrowings, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to the consolidated income
statement, as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in other comprehensive income.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2

FTESHEEBRE ®

2.6 SMEIBRE @)
© ZEEFZF

MEEREEZREETEF
BN ER (2B BIR
RENG®) NEBERMBR
o EUATHARABRERZERE
iz

i BEEEBRRAMEINE
EREE BEE B
mERRE ;

(i BWIEROWA R H
BigFTHEXRRE > (I
WFHELIFZERS
HE@BTEXRARBN
R GEABERI - EUE
BRT WA RS HR %
RZEMEXRRE) ; &

(i) PRERALEEENERE
BEAMEE WD TR

=
At ©

RERESRE R BEBEIH
BEREEAKREFEREEELE
BYBE L Z BRI HoAth 2 E W ek
sl EHEBIINEFHEE
BRZREFRSDNEAE
Mo ERRE R E BN AR S U
mREMFESHENE DU
mEEE

WEE ERE LN EERA
TSR ARSI E R
5 7 0 £ 1 10 3% I 1 B 3 44
HoELMEREBELMD
B35 PR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(d) Disposal and partial disposal of foreign

operation

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a
disposal of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign
operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a
subsidiary that includes a foreign operation, a disposal
involving loss of joint control over a joint venture that
includes a foreign operation, or a disposal involving
loss of significant influence over an associated
company that includes a foreign operation), all of the
currency translation differences accumulated in equity
in respect of that operation attributable to the owners
of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

In the case of a partial disposal that does not result
in the Group losing control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, the proportionate share
of accumulated currency translation differences are
re-attributed to non-controlling interests and are
not recognised in profit or loss. For all other partial
disposals (that is, reductions in the Group’s ownership
interest in associated company or joint ventures that
do not result in the Group losing significant influence
or joint control), the proportionate share of the
accumulated exchange difference is reclassified to
profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their

residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 5% - 10%

20% or over lease terms,
whichever is shorter

Leasehold improvements

Office furniture and equipment  18% - 25%

Plant and equipment 9% - 33%

Motor vehicles 18% - 25%
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.
An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income
statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Construction in progress represents property, plant and
equipment under construction or pending installation, and is
stated at cost less impairment losses. Cost comprises direct
costs of construction including borrowing costs attributable
to the construction during the period of construction.
No provision for depreciation is made on construction in
progress until such time as the relevant assets are completed
and ready for intended use.

Intangible assets

(a) Goodwill

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that
it might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the goodwill
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

(b) Brand names, contractual customer

relationships and others

Brand names, contractual customer relationships
and others acquired in a business combination are
recognised at fair values at the acquisition date.
These intangible assets have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over their expected lives from 5 to 10 years to
allocate the cost of them.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.9 Land use rights (included in right-of-use assets)

Land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Cost represents upfront
prepayments made for the rights to use the land for periods
varying from 20 to 50 years. Depreciation of these right-of-
use assets is charged to the consolidated income statement
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease or, when
there is an impairment loss, the impairment is charged to the
consolidated income statement.

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill not subject to amortisation is tested annually for
impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired. Other
assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are
grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
identifiable cash inflows which are largely independent of
the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHME®
POLICIES (continued)

211 REREMEREE
2.11.1 Classification 2111 7248

2.11 Investments and other financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income, or
through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this
will depend on whether the Group has made an
irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to
account for the equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.

2.11.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are
expensed in the consolidated income statement.

o Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group's business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories to classify the debt
instruments:

(M

Amortised cost

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using
the effective interest rate method. Any
gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and
presented in “other gains/(losses), net”.
Impairment losses are presented as a
separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)
Debt instruments (continued)

@)

Fair value through other comprehensive

income

Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through other comprehensive
income, except for the recognition of
impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit or loss.
When the financial asset is derecognised,
the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in other comprehensive income
is reclassified from equity to profit or loss
and recognised in “other gains/(losses),
net”. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method.
Impairment expenses are presented as
a separate line item in the consolidated
income statement.

Fair value through profit or loss

Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at
FVPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at FVPL is
recognised in the consolidated income
statement in the period in which it arises.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

2.11.3 Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group's
management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in other
comprehensive income, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments
continue to be recognised in “other gains/
(losses), net” in the consolidated income
statement when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at
FVPL are recognised in “other gains/(losses),
net” in the consolidated income statement
as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal
of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

2.114 Impairment
The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its debt
instruments carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables.

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the consolidated balance sheet when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
method. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour cost and related
production overheads (based on normal operating capacity).
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

2.14 Trade and bills receivables

Trade and bills receivables including retention money
receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and bills receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with the
objective to collect the contractual cash flows and therefore
measures them subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method less provision for impairment.

When a trade receivable is uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account for trade receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited against “net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents include cash on hand and deposits held at call
with banks, with original maturities of three months or less.

2.16 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs
directly attributable to the issue of new shares or options
are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the
proceeds.

Where any group company purchases the Company’s equity
instruments, for example as the result of a share buy-back
or a share-based payment plan, the consideration paid,
including any directly attributable incremental costs (net of
income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable to the
owners of the Company as treasury shares until the shares
are cancelled.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Payables are classified as current liabilities
if payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are
presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
values and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

2.18 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the
fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated balance
sheet when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. The difference between
the carrying amount of a financial liability that has been
extinguished or transferred to another party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred
or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the

Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset for
its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for

their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for

capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which

they are incurred.

2.20 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income
statement, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date in the countries where the
Company's subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation
and considers whether it is probable that a taxation
authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment. The
Group measures its tax balances either based on the
most likely amount or the expected value, depending
on which method provides a better prediction of the

resolution of the uncertainty.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred tax liabilities are not
recognised if they arise from the initial recognition of
goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not accounted
for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted at the
balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the

deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise

those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

(c) Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances
relate to the same taxation authority. Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has
a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and

settle the liability simultaneously.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits
(a) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision, where
appropriate, is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by

employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Post-employment pension obligations

The Group operates various post-employment
schemes, including both defined benefit and defined

contribution pension plans.

The liability or asset recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension
plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair
value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is
calculated annually by independent actuaries using the

projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation
is determined by discounting the estimated future
cash outflows using interest rates of high-quality
corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation.
In countries where there is no deep market in such
bonds, the market rates on government bonds are

used.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)
(b) Post-employment pension obligations

(continued)

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the
discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit
obligation and the fair value of plan assets. This
cost is included in employee benefit expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Remeasurement gains and losses arising from
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised in the period in which
they occur, directly in other comprehensive income.
They are included in “employment benefit reserve” in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and
“reserves” in the consolidated balance sheet.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation resulting from plan amendments or
curtailments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated income statement as past service costs.

The Group also operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme
(the “Pension Scheme”) set up pursuant to the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
all of its employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are
made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the consolidated income
statement as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the Pension Scheme. The assets of
the Pension Scheme are held separately from those
of the Group in an independently administrated
fund. The Group's employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed to the Pension
Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to vesting fully
in the contributions, in accordance with the rules of
the Pension Scheme.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Employee benefits (continued)

(b) Post-employment pension obligations

(0

(continued)

The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions
are recognised as an employee benefit expense when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction
in the future payments is available.

In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"),
the Group is required to contribute an amount
to certain retirement benefit schemes based on
approximately 7% to 22% of the wages for the year
of those employees in the PRC. The local municipal
government undertakes to assume the retirement
benefits obligations of those employees of the Group.
Contributions to these retirement benefits schemes
are charged to the consolidated income statement as
incurred.

Profit-sharing and bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for
bonuses and profit-sharing, based on a formula that
takes into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company'’s shareholders after certain adjustments.
The Group recognises a provision where contractually
obliged or where there is a past practice that has
created a constructive obligation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment

transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions;

excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, remaining an employee of the entity
over a specified time period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period
which is the period over which all of the specified
vesting conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates, if
any, in the consolidated income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share
capital (nominal value) and share premium.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
R E M BRI

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 FEEHHEHME®
POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Share-based payments (continued) 2.22 URMHAERZT @

(b) Share-based payment transactions among

group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiaries
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital
contribution. The fair value of employee services
received, measured by reference to the grant date
fair value, is recognised over the vesting period as an
increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with
a corresponding credit to equity in the parent entity
accounts.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition
(i) Sales of goods

The Group develops and sells E-payment Terminals
products. Sales are recognised when control of the
products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customers, the customer has accepted
the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation
that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the

products.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to pay
consideration and the amount is already due, before
the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group
recognised its contract liabilities under other payables
and accruals as receipt in advance from customers in

the consolidated balance sheet.

(ii) Provision of services

Revenue from providing services is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Revenue from maintenance and installation and
payment solution services is recognised based on the
actual service provided as at the end of the reporting
period as a proportion of the total services to be
provided because the customer receives and uses the

benefits simultaneously.

2.25 Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis

using the effective interest method.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (as lessee)

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset
is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the fixed lease payments. Lease
payments to be made under reasonably certain extension
options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group,
where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by
the individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect
changes in financing conditions since third party financing
was received and makes any adjustments specific to the
lease, e.g. term, country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Leases (as lessee) (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability,
° prepayment, and
° any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter
of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-
line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a
purchase option, the right-of-use asset is depreciated over
the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of premises and
all leases of low-valued assets are recognised on a straight-
line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases
are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

2.27 Value-added tax refund

Value-added tax refund is recognised in “other income”
in the consolidated income statement when there is a
reasonable assurance that the refund will be received which
generally occurs upon the receipt of the approval of tax
refund from the local tax bureau.

2.28 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised in “other
income” in the consolidated income statement at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all the
attached conditions.

2.29 Research and development

Research expenditure is expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible
assets when it is probable that the project will be a success
considering its commercial and technological feasibility,
and costs can be measured reliably. Other development
expenditures are expensed as incurred. Development costs
previously recognised as an expense are not recognised as an
asset in a subsequent period.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.30 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company's
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors, where
appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk, price risk, cash
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i)  Foreign exchange risk

The Group's foreign currency transactions are
mainly denominated in Renminbi (“RMB"),
HK$, United States dollar (“US$"), European
dollar ("EUR") and Indian Rupee (“INR"). The
majority of assets and liabilities are denominated
in RMB, HK$, US$, EUR and INR, and there
are no significant assets and liabilities that are
denominated in other currencies. The Group
is subject to foreign exchange rate risk arising
from future commercial transactions and
recognised assets and liabilities denominating in
a currency other than HK$, RMB, US$, EUR and
INR, which are the functional currencies of the
major operating companies within the Group.
The Group currently does not hedge its foreign
currency exposure.

The management considers the foreign exchange
risk with respect to US$ is not significant as HK$
is pegged to US$ and transactions denominated
in US$ are mainly carried out by entities with the
same functional currency. The Group manages
its foreign currency risk by closely monitoring the
movement of the foreign currency rates.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(@)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with HK$ as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2021, if RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit
for the year and equity of the Group would
have been approximately HK$6,932,000 (2020:
HK$6,753,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference
on translation of RMB denominated cash and
cash equivalents and the current account with a
related party.

As at 31 December 2021, if EUR had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against HK$ with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$2,252,000 (2020:
HK$4,258,000) lower/higher, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of EUR denominated cash and cash
equivalents, trade receivables and the current
account with a related party.

For the companies with RMB as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2021, if HK$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against RMB with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$15,554,000 (2020:
HK$15,434,000) higher/lower respectively,
mainly as a result of the foreign exchange
difference on translation of HK$ denominated
cash and cash equivalents and the current
account with a related party.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial

risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)
(i)

(i)

(i)

Foreign exchange risk (continued)

For the companies with EUR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2021, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against EUR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$2,089,000 (2020:
HK$729,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

For the company with INR as their functional
currency

As at 31 December 2021, if US$ had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against INR with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year and equity of the Group would have
been approximately HK$4,343,000 (2020:
HK$7,894,000) higher/lower, respectively, mainly
as a result of the foreign exchange difference on
translation of US$ denominated current account
with a related party.

Price risk
The Group is not exposed to commodity price
risk.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The income and operating cash flows of the
Group and the Company are both substantially
independent of changes in market interest
rates. Both the Group and the Company have
no significant interest-bearing assets, except
for deposits placed with banks and loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method.

As at 31 December 2021, if interest rates on all
interest-bearing bank and cash deposits (2020:
all interest-bearing bank and cash deposits and
loan to an investment accounted for using the
equity method) had been 50 basis points higher/
lower with all other variables held constant,
post-tax profit for the year and equity of the
Group would have been HK$13,058,000 (2020:
HK$14,939,000) higher/lower respectively, due
to higher/lower interest income earned on the
deposits (2020: deposits and loan receivable
balances).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(iij) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)
As at 31 December 2021, there was no
outstanding interest-bearing borrowing in the
Group's consolidated balance sheet (2020:
same).

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, other
financial assets at amortised cost, financial assets
at FVPL, restricted cash, short-term bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents and loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method.

The carrying amounts of financial assets at FVPL (Note
17(a)), other financial assets at amortised cost (Note
21), trade and bills receivables (Note 21), restricted
cash (Note 23), short-term bank deposits (Note 24),
cash and cash equivalents (Note 25) and loan to an
investment accounted for using the equity method
(Note 33(b)) represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

(i)  Risk management

To manage this risk, deposits of the Group
are mainly placed with state-owned financial
institutions and reputable banks. The Group has
policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
reputable and creditworthy customers with an
appropriate financial strength, credit history and
an appropriate percentage of down payments. It
also has other monitoring procedures to ensure
that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(@)

(i)

Risk management (continued)

In addition, the Group reviews regularly the
authorisation of credit limits to individual
customers and recoverable amount of each
individual trade receivables to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk. Sales
of goods and services to the top five customers
constituted 47.5% (2020: 49.7%) of the Group's
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021.
They accounted for approximately 49.9%
(2020: 30.7%) of the gross trade receivable
balances as at 31 December 2021. Collections
of outstanding receivable balances are closely
monitored on an ongoing basis to minimise such
credit risk.

Impairment of financial assets

Trade receivables for sales of goods and provision
of services of the Group are subject to the
expected credit loss model. While other financial
assets at amortised cost, bills receivables,
restricted cash, short-term bank deposits, cash
and cash equivalents and loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method are
also subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade receivables. The Group measures the
expected credit losses on a combination of both
individual and collective basis.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued)

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Trade receivables (continued)

Measurement of expected credit loss on
individual basis

The receivables relating to customers with known
financial difficulties or significant doubt on
collection of receivables are assessed individually
for provision for impairment allowance. As at 31
December 2021, the balance of loss allowance in
respect of these individually assessed receivables
was HK$87,833,000 (2020: HK$88,399,000).

The following table presents the balances of
gross carrying amount and loss allowance in
respect of the individually assessed receivables as
at 31 December 2021 and 2020:
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As at 31 December

R+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F “EBTEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Gross carrying amount RE4AE 87,833 88,399
Loss allowance BRERE (87.,833) (88,399)
Net carrying amount REFE - -

Measurement of expected credit loss on
collective basis

Expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on
shared credit risk characteristics and collectively
assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category,
and applying the expected credit loss rates to
the respective gross carrying amounts of the
receivables.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBRKRERE @
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 EEEREE @&
(b) Credit risk (continued) b) EEEME ®
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) (i) THEERE B
Trade receivables (continued) FEWEERR (&)
Measurement of expected credit loss on LR EFEHIEE
collective basis (continued) BB (4B)

The expected credit loss rates are determined
based on historical credit losses experienced
from the past 3 years and are adjusted to reflect
current and forward-looking information such as
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of
loss allowance in respect of these collectively
assessed receivables was HK$50,315,000 (2020:
HK$26,916,000) based on the weighted average
expected credit loss rate of 2.37% (2020:
1.86%).

Impairment losses on receivables are presented
as "net impairment losses on financial assets”
in the consolidated income statement. When
a receivable is uncollectible, it is written off
against the allowance account for receivables.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously
written off are credited against the same line
item.

Cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, short-
term bank deposits, bills receivables, loan to
an investment accounted for using the equity
method and other financial assets at amortised
cost

There is no loss allowance for cash and cash
equivalents, restricted cash, short-term bank
deposits, bills receivables, loan to an investment
accounted for using the equity method and
other financial assets at amortised cost as at 31
December 2021 (2020: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c)

Liquidity risk

With prudent liquidity risk management, the Group
aims to maintain sufficient cash and cash equivalents
and ensure the availability of funding through an
adequate amount of available financing, including
short-term bank borrowings. Due to the dynamic
nature of the underlying businesses, the Group’s
finance department maintains flexibility in funding
by maintaining adequate amount of cash and cash
equivalents and flexibility in funding through having
available sources of financing.

Surplus cash held by the operating entities over
and above the balance required for working capital
management are transferred to interest-bearing bank
deposits with appropriate maturities to manage its
overall liquidity position. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group maintained cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$3,532,954,000 (2020:
HK$3,802,741,000) that are expected to be readily
available and sufficient to meet the cash outflows of its
financial liabilities, hence, management considers that
Group’s exposure to liquidity risk is not significant.

As at 31 December 2021, no banking facilities were
available to the Group (2020: same).
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HHRAKRERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BEEMBEZ ®
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) © FTEETREE @
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative TRIBEBEEHGR THEES
financial liabilities into relevant maturity grouping MEBEND T BREEWN
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet ETEEsHEaErsABHE
date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts B4R TRMIEEN TR
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted BEHNERUBRBERE AR
cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their IR EER A W+ 2@
carrying values as the impact of discounting is not BRERNAGRESENHEHERR
significant. Bo
Between
Less than 1and Over
1 year 5 years 5 years Total
DR—F —ERE AENE wst
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FHET FET

At 31 December 2021 RIZ-_—£+"A=+—H
Trade payables FE(TERR 1,668,823 - - 1,668,823
Other payables and accruals EL (T BR TR FE 5t 30 1E 153,478 1,973 - 155,451
Lease liabilities BESE 37,701 50,650 64,928 153,279
Total Kt 1,860,002 52,623 64,928 1,977,553
At 31 December 2020 RIZ2IEF+ZHE=+—H
Trade payables FE(TRRER 1,371,267 - - 1,371,267
Other payables and accruals HAE AR R st FE 242,088 3,994 - 246,082
Lease liabilities HEaE 34,974 65,158 63,862 163,994
Total 4t 1,648,329 69,152 63,862 1,781,343
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2 Capital management

The Group regards its shareholders’ equity as capital. The
Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares, repurchase the Company's shares or sell assets to
reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by total capital.
Total debt includes borrowings of the Group. Total capital is
calculated as “equity” as shown in the consolidated balance
sheet plus total debt.

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December
2021 and the gearing ratio is not applicable (2020: same).
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation

0,

Fair value hierarchy

The table below analyses the Group's financial
instruments carried at fair values as at 31 December
2021 and 2020 by level of valuation techniques used
to measure fair values. Such inputs are categorised into
three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s financial
assets that are measured at fair values as at 31

December 2021.
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F1E
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Level 2 Level 3 Total

H2E $3/E k]

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FTER FTERT

Financial assets

Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss
— Unlisted investment fund

Financial asset at fair value
through other
comprehensive income
- Unlisted equity investment

EMEE

BAFESABRZ
ETMEE
—kLHREES

BATESARMEZE
Wz ERMEE

—JFEmRARE

- 124,269 124,269

- 2,827 2,827
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 MBRRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATFEM@®
(i)  Fair value hierarchy (continued) () 2FEER @
The following table presents the Group's financial TREJNAEEBRZZZEF
assets that are measured at fair values as at 31 +ZA=+—HEAFEE
December 2020. ZEMEE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F1E 528 SE3E ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FExT FET
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value BRATESABREZ
through profit or loss TREE
— Unlisted investment fund —JEHREES - - 104,290 104,290
— Unlisted equity investment —JELTRAKE - - 25,830 25,830
Financial asset at fair value BRAFESARMEER
through other Wamz EMEE
comprehensive income
— Unlisted equity investment —JELTRAKE - - 2,467 2,467
There were no transfers of financial assets THBENMBEEATFESZ K
and liabilities between the fair value hierarchy DEZERERLEER (Z
classifications during the year (2020: same). BETEBFEIFL)
(a) Financial instruments in Level 1 (a) F—EZHTA
The fair value of financial instruments traded EEBRTEEENS®
in active markets (such as publicly traded TE(MNABRRXTZHITE
derivatives, and trading and equity securities) is MRS REHEFESE) B
based on quoted market prices at the balance NFEE REEEEHNS
sheet date. The quoted market price used for BHRETE - SMEERT
financial assets is the current bid price. These AT EREBEAEREA
instruments are included in level 1. B-BEMIAESASE—
AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

()

(ii)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

(b) Financial instruments in Level 2
The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by
using valuation techniques which maximise
the use of observable market data and rely as
little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If
all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

(c) Financial instruments in Level 3
If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case
for the unlisted equity investment and unlisted
investment fund.

Valuation techniques used to determine fair
values

The Group's finance department includes a team that
performs the valuations of financial assets required
for financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair
values. As part of the valuation process, this team
reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO) and
external valuers will be engaged, if necessary.

In applying the discounted cash flow technique,
management has taken into account the estimated
amount that the Group would receive to sell the
instrument at the balance sheet date, taking into
account current interest rates and the current credit
worthiness of the counterparties. Where discounted
cash flow techniques are used, estimated future cash
flows are based on management’s best estimates and
the discount rate is a market related rate for a similar
instrument at the balance sheet date.

3 BEEABEERE®

3.3
()

(ii)

BERKEARAR

DFEGE @

L FEER @

b) FZEZHIA
WIEEBRHIZEEEN
ERMITE WMBINMTET
B) UEERMEE QT
B BEXAUHEDS
B TREBRMOKES
RNBEMS - ELAMN
AFEFREBEMBERHY
BHEATBEERE A
BIAStAS ZHe

0 F=EzHIR
E-ENZEERBA
BELIFUARTEENS
LHEAE AARIA
SFAB=ZMR-BRIFL™
RERERIFLHTRE
BEE2HBER-

EE L FIEFT RIS BT

AEBYMBHREERMBRS
FREMETEMEEMLE (B
BHEIBAFTE BB -G
BREET ZBEEEEQER
MBEEER TNARERE
B SMER 5 (B AT o

RAMBRERERME &
EREE AAEREWERLR
EERHEIARNMGS SR
REANZEURHEFHREER
R HERMBRHRERER
o AEtRKRFEREBREE
Br&EEENREMGSRER
UTEMNEBTHBREXRME
Ho

—E_—FER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRMsE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

128

unobservable inputs (level 3)

Specific valuation techniques used to value level 3
financial instruments include techniques such as
discounted cash flow analysis and net asset value
model. There are no changes in valuation techniques
during the year (2020: same).

The following table presents the changes in level 3
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December
2021:

3

FA %5 LA

B2 @)

3.3 ATEMEt @

(i)

BEEXT AT 25

BIAFEE (E3/E)
BUMEIBERM T AMGEN
BEMERMEERRRER
ENMEREEFAERERAEE
fiT o R ARFE > i (B B 7 0
@E(CBRZBEFAL) -
TRENHEE_ZE_—F+_
B=Z+—HIEREIBER
TAENEEH .

Financial asset

at fair value
through other
Financial assets at fair value comprehensive
through profit or loss income
BATERA
Hittz2®E
BATEEA 6
BiREZEMEE EWMEE
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
investment equity equity
fund investment investment
JFELEH L L
REES RxRE RxEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THT THET THET
Balance at 1 January 2021 RZEZ-E—A—BZ&% 104,290 25,830 2,467
Fair value gains on revaluation REBHEREINEGATE
recognised in profit or loss gk (ftsE17(a))
(Note 17(a)) 16,970 26,480 -
Fair value gain on revaluation REMZEKEFEDN
recognised in other comprehensive  EfHATEURE (517(b))
income (Note 17(b)) - - 360
Disposal (Note 17(a)) HE (F3E17() - (53,371) -
Exchange realignment ERAE 3,009 1,061 -
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZBZ—&+-A=+—-HZ
£EeR 124,269 - 2,827
Unrealised gain recognised in AR BN ZAER
the consolidated income statement Az A HERA
attributable to balances held at BRAZ RERKE
the balance sheet date 16,970 - -

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
R E M BRI |

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMBERBRERE®
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ATFEMT®
(i) Fair value measurements using significant (iii) 1EHEAT TGN 25
unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued) B FlEHE (F3E) )
The following table presents the changes in level 3 TREVNEE_Z_ZF+_
financial instruments for the year ended 31 December B=+—HIFAEIEEH
2020: TEMES :
Financial asset
at fair value
through other
Financial assets at fair value comprehensive
through profit or loss income
BATEA
Etz®E
BATERA l§nwd
BanZeHMEE EHEE
Unlisted Unlisted Unlisted
investment equity equity
fund investment investment
LM JELEm LM
REES BA%E TN
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TEL
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZEZ_EF—-A—Hz&H% 104,707 - 10,433
Addition (Note 17(a)) AE (H5E17() - 22,495 -
Fair value (losses)/gains on revaluation P 8% IRESRM B (A F{E
recognised in profit or loss (8518 /Wuad (EE17(2)
(Note 17(a)) (7,130) 1,889 -
Fair value loss on revaluation REMEEREPHEDRH
recognised in other comprehensive  EfHAT{ERE (ffz¥17(b))
income (Note 17(b)) - - (7,966)
Exchange realignment ERAE 6,713 1,446 -
Balance at 31 December 2020 RZBE-ZEF+-A=+—HZ
R 104,290 25,830 2,467

Unrealised (loss)/gain recognised in ~ Bt45 58 AR 246
the consolidated income statement P4z A FERA
attributable to balances held at MRz AR (B58) /&
the balance sheet date (7,130) 1,889 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKEE @
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 3.3 AFEMGE @

(i) EHEATATHEZEHA S
BIRFEEE (F3E) (7

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

Quantitative information about fair value measurements ERFEREARRTATR R AR

using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3): ENAFENE (3B NE=
Hig

(a) Financial asset at fair value through other @) BAFEFARMZEK

comprehensive income - unlisted equity
investment

The key unobservable assumptions used in the
valuation of the unlisted equity investment as at

mZEHBEE—IFLETR
ZFRE
RZBZ-—FRZFZF

F+-A=+—H %L

31 December 2021 and 2020 are: MRAEEGHERANE
ENUBREBRA
At 31 December
R+ZRA=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
HERM FOUERBAYE —EZ-F ZRITE
Discounted cash flow analysis Pre-tax discount rate 18.2% 17.7%
WIRREREDNN MATRLER X
Terminal growth rate 2.0% 2.0%
KIEHRE
Compound annual growth rate 24.6% 23.9%

HEFEER

As at 31 December 2021, the pre-tax
discount rate used to compute the fair value
is 18.2% (2020: 17.7%). If the discount rate
shifted upward by 1%, the impact on other
comprehensive income would be HK$223,000
(2020: HK$280,000) lower. The higher the pre-tax
discount rate, the lower the fair value.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

3

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HEEKEE @

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)

3.3

(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted investment fund

The key unobservable assumption used in the
valuation of the unlisted investment fund as at 31

(b)

(0

NEE R @
(i) EHEATATHEZEHA S
BIRFEEE (F3E) (7

()

BATFEFIA B ZEH
BE-FLHREEE
RZEZ-—FR-ZF-F

F+-A=+—H %L

December 2021 and 2020 are: MHREESHERBNE
ERIHRERER -
At 31 December
R+ZB=+—H
Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2021 2020
fhERM AHREBAYE ZEZ—F TR
Net asset value (note) N/A N/A N/A
BEFE (W) TEHA TiER B
Note: ST
As at 31 December 2021, the Group has determined W_E®2_-—F+ A

that the audited net asset value approximates fair
value of the unlisted investment fund after applying a
portfolio discount of 10% (2020: 10%).

Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted equity investment

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group disposed the unlisted equity investment
(Note 17(a)). The key unobservable assumptions
used in the valuation of the unlisted equity
investment as at 31 December 2020 are:

©

=+ HBAEERTEEE
RLBEHEESTEIONE £
EREEFEMRENRIEL
TREESHNAFE(ZE
ZEF 1 10%) °

BATFEAR D Z 2/
BE—FIHREIRE

KEBR_T - —F
+-_BA=+—BLEE
AHEFELTRARE
(MHEE17(a)) cRZEBZ
EE+"A=+—H"3F
EHRAEEEERB
NEEFTERBHRS

At 31 December

Valuation technique Unobservable inputs 2020
RIEZEH
EERM AR RBAHNE +ZB=+—H
Market comparable Adjusted price-to-earnings ratio multiple 24.0
companies model (times)
BRI ABRE AETREEY (E)
Binominal option pricing model Risk free rate 3.0%
“EAMGEERER 2 i ¥
Expected volatility of 50.4%

underlying share

MR (D TR R 1R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRMsE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (continued)
(iii) Fair value measurements using significant

unobservable inputs (level 3) (continued)

(c) Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss — unlisted equity investment (continued)
As at 31 December 2020, the adjusted price-
to-earnings ratio multiple used to compute the
fair value is 24.0 times. If the adjusted price-to-
earnings ratio multiple shifted downward by 1
time, the impact on the profit or loss would be
HK$1,241,000 lower. The lower the adjusted
price-to-earnings ratio multiple, the lower the
fair value.

3.4 Fair value of financial assets and liabilities
measured at amortised cost
The fair value of the following financial assets and liabilities
approximate their carrying values:

o Loan to an investment accounted for using the equity
method

. Other financial assets at amortised cost

o Trade and bills receivables

o Restricted cash

° Short-term bank deposits

° Cash and cash equivalents
o Trade payables

° Other payables and accruals

o Lease liabilities
3.5 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to

offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements and
similar arrangements as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements -

gkt e

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments used in preparing the consolidated
financial statements are evaluated based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal to the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
credit loss rates (Note 3.1(b)(ii)). The Group uses judgment
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates at the balance sheet date.

(b) Provision for inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. The cost of inventories is written down to net
realisable value when there is an objective evidence that
the cost of inventories may not be recoverable. The cost of
inventories may not be recoverable if those inventories are
aged and damaged, if they have become wholly or partially
obsolete, or if their selling prices have declined. The cost
of inventories may also not be recoverable if the estimated
costs to be incurred to make the sales have increased.

The amount written off in the consolidated income
statement is the difference between the carrying value
and net realisable value of the inventories. In determining
whether the inventories can be recoverable, significant
judgment is required. In making this judgment, the Group
evaluates, among other factors, the duration and extent by
all means to which the amount will be recovered.

(c) Income taxes and deferred taxation
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision
for income tax. There are many transactions and calculations
for which the ultimate determination is uncertain. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such difference will
impact the current tax and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax
losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different.

E g st s RFIER

FB IS R S A 2 B 85 ¥ 3% BY 1 ot B 1 M -
Eﬁﬁ\ BAEERREMAR  BEEDR
HEEARBRATHEEAEHERENSE
fFmE

AEBELABARRNMGT RRRK %
JH:%E%WFET”EE’J stastE LV EBRR
BRGRER - TXHINEBAARE
giﬁ/ﬁ*ﬁ?—ﬂﬁﬁﬂzﬁf‘é%éﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
SREEFRERBENME KRR

(@) FEUWGRIERI(E
FEBERBENERRBHRES
BEEZ RREEBWRIARES R
B (MEE3.1(b)(i) ~MRAEEH &
EERBEEERBEORKREANTR
L/US’ZHUE?I“EEJ F B ZFRR

EESTEREZBARE-

(b) FEEHE
FEERARASRFEME
2RI BRI E AR o fis 75 % %1 58 5 7R
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BRI B o 1 1F H A R F B B > &
EEEE (HpaiE) UEFHFK
WelBl & ERRY R B R BT o

(€ FiSHRIEIEHI R
HATSHREE BER BREY
SR E -FZRH KREED
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BRVCREETFAR  ARER
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REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS/ 5

(LOSSES), NET

The Group is principally engaged in the development and sales
of E-payment Terminals products, provision of maintenance and
installation and payment solution services. Revenue, other income
and other gains/(losses), net recognised during the year are as

WA~ Bt AR L fth ezt~ (8548)
FEE
FEETENERERPEEFZMAR
mMEM RRHEERCERIIBRT
ZRB -NARFEEREBAUAHi
WM E st (B538) B ERMT ¢

follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=1+—HIEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZZTZ2H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Revenue WA

Sales of E-payment Terminals products HEBTZNRKESR 7,015,249 5,532,211

Provision of services AR 180,733 118,408

7,195,982 5,650,619

Other income Hhug A

Interest income (note (i) FEWA FEEG)) 38,036 38,861

Government subsidies (note (ii) BT L (B %)) 34,847 17,658

Value-added tax refund (note (ii)) EERIER (FEEGD)) 10,105 13,845

Others (note (i) HAth (B 5%ii)) 13,327 7,474

96,315 77,838

Other gains/(losses), net Hihks, ~ (§518) 7258

Fair value gains/(losses) on financial assets AT EFABG@mZ

at fair value through profit or loss TRMEEZATFERE, (18 43,450 (5,241)

Gain on disposal of an investment accounted HE—BREREARZ
for using the equity method LB W 7,009 =
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB ARz W= - 3,126
50,459 (2,115)

Notes: B 5E -

(i) The amount includes HK$275,000 interest income from a loan (i) HE_ S _—F+_ ﬁ =+t—H %
to a joint venture for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: THOERBEELBDERNAE
HK$247,000) (Note 33(a)). WA #275,0008 0 (Z2ZFF !

247,000%7) (MsE33(a)) °

(i) The amounts mainly represent the Group's entitlement to value- (i) ZEeRBEEEAEERPREHEE RH
added tax refund and government grants in relation to sales and ZRITHERGELM=ZANIGER
research and development of self-developed software products in BRREHERA -ZFEELRER
the PRC. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies B B A E R
attaching to these grants.

(iii) The amounts includes HK$6,314,000 service income from joint (iii) ZETREEEREAEATNRB WA

venture (2020: HK$1,168,000) (Note 33(a)).

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

SEGMENT INFORMATION 6 SEEH
The management reviews the Group's internal reporting in order EEEERNAEBANIRSEUFHERIR
to assess performance and allocate resources. The management THEER EEERBRATESH
has determined the operating segments based on the internal BERUEHERBATHNRNPREMET
reports reviewed by the Executive Directors to make strategic EBEPE - AEEFENRETETFIZMNE
decisions. The Group is principally engaged in the E-payment MR REBREEERALTERL
Terminals solutions business, and the management considers that EE—XBoME.
the Group operates in one single business segment.
The Group primarily operates in Hong Kong, the PRC (excluding REBFEREB -HEH (BB B
Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan), the United States of America (the BERIN  ERARBRANLE -EEE
“US") and ltaly. The management assesses the performance of the i AEREERAZHB RSN
Group from a geographic perspective based on the locations of B EAERMNKIR
the subsidiaries in which revenues are generated.
The management assesses the performance of the operating EEEBRESELE RN (BB Bt
segments based on a measurement of segmental operating profit/ STEEE D ENRIER -
(loss).
An analysis of the Group’s revenue and results for the year by RERFEFEREDBASNAEBRRA
segment is as follows: REGDWUWT !
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-TZ-—F+ZH=+—HLEFE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan  and others us Italy  Elimination Total
FE (FE
MR
aERS  EERHM %H X7 b k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
TER TER FERT FERT FET TR
Revenue from external customers RESMEE R HWA 674,039 5,388,845 793,145 339,953 - 7,195,982
Inter-segment revenue DEEWA 4,994,294 603,906 - - (5598,200) -
Total revenue ‘A 5668333 5992751 793,145 339,953 (55982000 7,195,982
Segmental earnings/(losses) before interest ~ DEEBRFIEZH RIE ER

expense, taxes, depreciation and amortisation  #35E1Z R,/ (5518)

(“EBITDA"/*(LBITDA)") (TEBITDA 1,/ (LBITDA) 1) 783,805 556,043 (30,852) 41,506 (4,147) 1,346,355
Depreciation (Note 7) E (WEt7) (45,082) (7,029) (8,418) (3,556) - (64,085)
Amortisation (Note 7) B (H5E7) - (2,625) - (1,673) - (4,298)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) HEICE R/ (5518 738,723 546,389 (39,270) 36,277 (4,147) 1,277,972
Finance costs HHER (6,979)
Share of results of investments accounted EEREREARNGELE

for using the equity method 3,454
Profit before income tax FaPrGM AT 1,274,447
Income tax expense RS (182,205)
Profit for the year FE&EA 1,092,242

HERKREARAR —ZZ—55H
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e MBmRMsE

6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SDEEN®
Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZZTEFA=+-HILEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
FE (BB
Al
BERS  BEKREHM £ EXF i EakE]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FER FERT FTERT TR THER
Revenue from external customers RESMEEREIRA 652,424 4,219,244 508,347 270,604 - 5,650,619
Inter-segment revenue DR 3,700,974 497,671 - = (4,198,645) =
Total revenue EVON 4,353,398 4,716,915 508,347 270,604 (4,198,645) 5,650,619
Segmental EBITDA/(LBITDA), excluding D 4EEBITDA/(LBITDA)
impairment of goodwill (FEEEERE) 594,986 696,493 (151,230) 19,293 (17,259) 1,142,283
Depreciation (Note 7) e (MEE7) (38,582) (6,175) (8,031) (3.127) - (55,915)
Amortisation (Note 7) i ET) - 2,779 - (1,718) - (4,497)
Impairment of goodwill (Note 7) BERE (H:7) - - - (14,699) - (14,699)
Segmental operating profit/(loss) SEICE R/ (5518 556,404 687,539 (159,261) (251) (17,259) 1,067,172
Finance costs HHER (8,285)
Share of results of investments accounted MR E RN EEE
for using the equity method (6,046)
Profit before income tax PRPTISRAT R 1,052,841
Income tax expense Frismpms (148,991)
Profit for the year EEREF 903,850
The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2021 and N2 —F+ZA=+—HHREE
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December ErREUERBEE_ZE-_—F+°A
2021 are as follows: —t+—HIEFEERHEENHTENT
As at 31 December 2021
RIBZ-F+ZA=+-H
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (B
ot
aERN) EFERHEM %H X7 188 Ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FHER FHER FHER THET
Segment assets NEEE 6,548,697 3,587,739 497,778 211,321 (2,024,257) 8,821,278
Segment liabilities NEER 2,181,376 1,191,298 813,833 133,525 (1,955,310) 2,364,722
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6 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6 SEEN®
Year ended 31 December 2021
HE-TZ-—F+ZH=1+—HLEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macauand  Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy  Elimination Total
HE (B
g
aERN) EFERHEM £S5 BAR g k]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER FHER FHET TET TET TER
Additions to non-current assets FRBEE (FEESHIAR
(excluding financial instruments and BIEFMGREE) WRE
deferred income tax assets) 384,352 4,300 4,415 5,703 - 398,770

The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 December 2020 and
additions to non-current assets for the year ended 31 December

2020 are as follows:

A CECEF+__B=1+—HMOEE
ERBBURBE_SE_F+_A
—t+—HIEFEERHEENTEN T

As at 31 December 2020
RZZ2_2F+”-F=+-H

PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
HE (B
B i
Bk  BEREHM % BAF il ek
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR TR FiER FHER THET
Segment assets NEBE 5,642,056 3,141,544 435,042 148,861 (1,730,444) 7,637,059
Segment liabilities NEEE 2,070,041 874,419 711,746 80,363 (1,673,082) 2,063,487
Year ended 31 December 2020
HEZTEFA=+—HIEE
PRC,
excluding
Hong Kong,
Macau and Hong Kong
Taiwan and others us Italy Elimination Total
hE (B
i)
aERn  EBREM E3El] BAR i %
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FER FTET TR TER
Additions to non-current assets ERBEE FEESMIAR
(excluding financial instruments and BIEFMEREE) WARE
deferred income tax assets) 148,023 12,437 1,996 1,370 - 163,826
BHERBBEEARAT TR 137
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

In 2021, additions to non-current assets mainly comprise additions
to property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets (2020:
same).

In 2021, revenue of approximately HK$2,492,679,000 (2020:
HK$2,207,453,000) is derived from the largest customer,
representing 34.6% (2020: 39.1%) of the total revenue, which
is attributable to the Hong Kong operating segment (2020:
same); revenue of approximately HK$364,535,000 (2020:
HK$203,977,000) is derived from the second largest customer,
representing 5.1% (2020: 3.6%) of the total revenue, which is
attributable to the US operating segment (2020: same).

Information provided to the Executive Directors is measured
in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group is mainly domiciled in Hong Kong, the PRC, the US and
Italy.

The Group’s non-current assets by geographical location, which
is determined by the geographical location in which the asset is
located, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

DEER @

B ERBEERBIES
EME RERREREAEEENTE
(CT-TEFL) -

A TE T — 9 BA##2,492,679,000748
T (ZEZZ4 :2,207,453,00087T) 9
WATDRERAEL » ZE WAL E W
AB34.6% (ZE_ZT4F :39.1%) 57
BREBEBNTF (CZ_ZF FL)-
A #(#9364,535,0008 0 (ZE - &F !
203,977,000 7T) WIRA TS ZRBE AR
P ZEWALBBRANS 1% (ZTE-Z
Fi136%) IHBREEEBSH (T
“ZEIFL) -

MATEEFRENFEN FREEHH
WERATTE e

AEBEBUEFE  PE EBEREAF
7yt it o
ReBEMEME DN EAERIFABE
EHINWMT :

As at 31 December

w+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—fF “E-EH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

Non-current assets JEREEE

PRC, excluding Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan FE (BB RPIKREERIN 887,346 529,418
Hong Kong and others AR REAM 73,249 76,791
us EHE 38,930 42,109
Italy BAH 31,647 33,625
1,031,172 681,943
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MBmRMsE

7 EXPENSES BY NATURE

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling expenses, administrative
expenses and net impairment losses on financial assets are

analysed as follows:

7 BUEHISHREX

SPAHENT HERZ - THERKSE
MEEZREFBEONNT

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020

—BC—F “ETTEF

HKS$'000 HK$'000

THET FHET

Costs of inventories sold (Note 20) EHREFEMA (5E20) 4,244,556 3,060,546

Provision for obsolete inventories (Note 20) [REEF E#E (Mi5520) 15,928 166,816
Employee benefit expenses EBEEMAX (BEESEWHD)

(including directors’ emoluments) (Note 10) (fFz%10) 845,155 728,035
Research and development costs RN 512,119 460,772
Sales commission HERE 152,852 49,268
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BERZEITE (EE14)

(Note 14) 20,220 16,287
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 15(b)) EREEERE H5E150) 43,865 39,628
Short-term lease expenses (Note 15(b)) SEHRFRE &R (MYsE15(b)) 9,821 8,859
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 16) mTEEEHE (PsE16) 4,298 4,497
Remuneration to the Company’s auditor KA BIZBENEN &

— Group's annual audit and —AEEFEZHM R EMEA

other audit related services Z B A R RV AR 75 2,420 2,420
— non-audit services — IR BARTS 228 110
Remuneration to other auditors H iz #emil = 923 647
Losses on disposals of property, HEYZE -BEREREN

plant and equipment, net (Note 30(b)) 518 J$ 88 (MFEE30(b)) 33 127
Net impairment losses on financial assets TREEZBEREE (E210)

(Note 21(c)) 21,580 65,083
Impairment of goodwill (Note 16) BERE (isE16) - 14,699
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

8 NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE (LOSSES)/GAINS 8 HMEEH (B518) Wi
HE_ZE_—+-_ABA=+—HL=E
EROTHRERADRINIESEIS
£2,607,0008 T (ZE_Z2F . k&
44,400,00037T) ©

The net foreign exchange losses recognised in administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
HK$2,607,000 (2020: gains of HK$44,400,000).

9 FINANCE COSTS 9 BHEEHR

Year ended 31 December

HE+-—B=+—RAILEE

10

140

2021 2020

TEI—F —ETFTF

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FET

Interest expense on lease liabilities HEaENEER 6,661 7,045
Interest expense on borrowings BEMEER - 415
Others Hh 318 825
6,979 8,285

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

10 EEREIFEX (BEEEND)

Year ended 31 December

HE+-B=t—HILERE

2021 2020

—E-—fF “E-EH

HKS'000  HK$'000

F#ET FHET

Wages and salaries TEKFH® 780,916 655,112

Social security and pension costs HERERRKESHA 50,122 32,721
Employee benefit obligation — defined BEERHNERE - A EEF T2

benefit plans 449 1,397

Share-based payment expenses iz ER 13,668 38,805

845,155 728,035
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
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10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EEEAHX (BREEEHE) @
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) (continued)
Five highest paid individuals hEmERAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the rEBHE_E_—F+-_B=+—H
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 included three TFERERPHATEE=2EE (=
Directors (2020: three) whose emoluments are reflected in the ETEFE =4 c HMS B R 5E359
analysis shown in Note 35. The emoluments payable to the MRARM - RKFEREMG ITMmH (T
remaining two (2020: two) individuals during the year are as TEIME) ALHMSETWT
follows:

Year ended 31 December

BE+-B=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—E-—F ZZTZ2H
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind e R REYIER 5,491 4,472
Discretionary bonus FIETEAL 11,457 4,054
Pension cost FERY NS BWIN 130 57
Share-based payment expenses g AN E= 2! 2,634 6,028
19,712 14,611
The emoluments fell within the following bands: B/ AR R
Number of individuals
AE
2021 2020
—EB-—F ZETZ2F
Emolument bands Bl <= 48 A
HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000 5,500,0017& 75— 6,000,000/ 75 - 1
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000 8,500,0017 75 —9,000,00078 75 1 -
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000 9,000,0017&7c—9,500,0007& ¢ - 1
HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000 11,000,001 7t — 11,500,000 ¢ 1 —
2 2
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1
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE

11 FriSMEAX

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
B ZZTEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current income tax on profit for the year FE A ZENEAFT 158

— China corporate income tax — R ZEPTER 117,591 76,159

- Hong Kong profits tax —&BFER 94,132 118,883

— Overseas profits tax —BINFIRIR 17,940 5,134
Tax incentives for research and development 7 AR B 5 AR S BV B /B A B L

expenses available for the subsidiaries EERNREEE (i)

incorporated in the PRC (Note (a)) (51,923) (30,176)
Under/(over) provision in prior years, net BREFERERE (BEEH)

(Note (b)) PER (MI5E(b)) 19,185 (2,993)
Total current income tax BVERFT S R 48 %8 196,925 167,007
Deferred income tax (Note (b)) RILFTIER (BTEE(b)) (14,720) (18,016)
Income tax expense FriEMEs 182,205 148,991

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5%
(2020: same) on the estimated assessable profit for the year ended

31 December 2021.

Taxes on overseas profits have been calculated at the rates of tax
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based

BE_Z_—SF+"A=+—HLEE>
EANERBBGETERREFRRE

16.5% (ZEZZTF B L) (FH#EE-

on existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect BT

thereof.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
RS MW R M

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 11 PSR @

Notes: B 5E -

(@)  The Group obtained an incentive from the PRC tax authority relating (a) AEBMURPENKNELASDIMEHREZE

to the research and development expenses of the subsidiaries in
the PRC. Under such tax incentive rule, the Group may claim an
additional tax deduction up to 75% (2020: 75%) of the relevant
research and development expenses incurred in a year approved by
the PRC tax authority.

Pursuant to the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC effective from
1 January 2008 (the “CIT Law"), companies in the PRC are subject
to income tax of 25% unless preferential rate is applicable.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, pursuant to Caishui
[2016] Circular 49 jointly released by the Ministry of Finance, the
State Administration of Taxation, the National Development and
Reform Commission and the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of the PRC, management performed self-assessment
for Pax Computer Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. ("Pax Computer
Shenzhen”), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group located in
the Shenzhen Special Economic Zone, on the eligibility for the tax
incentives. Management estimated that Pax Computer Shenzhen
was qualified as a National Key Software Enterprise and entitled
to the preferential corporate income tax rate of 10%. As such, the
applicable corporate income tax rate of Pax Computer Shenzhen
was 10% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the National
Development and Reform Commission amended the relevant tax
rules and requirements of the eligibilities for the tax incentives on
29 March 2021. The amendment is effective retrospectively from
the year ended 31 December 2020 onwards. Management is of the
opinion that Pax Computer Shenzhen is not able to enjoy the 10%
preferential corporate tax rate. As a result, an under provision of
current tax of HK$19,439,000 for prior periods and an increase in
deferred income tax assets of HK$14,515,000 were recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31 December
2021. Pax Computer Shenzhen was accredited as High and New
Technology Enterprises (“HNTE") and is entitled to a preferential tax
rate of 15%. As such, the applicable corporate income tax rate for
Pax Computer Shenzhen was 15% for the year ended 31 December
2021.

BESTERBKEERN—IBRIEE
EoRBEEERBEZSHRI AEET
FREARESNR R TR 1B & B8 4% FF N AB R AT 22
BRMN75% (2 "FF :75%) AT
B0 A0 75 1 BE 4L O o

RER-FT\E—B—BERNHAE
(EFGME (TR EFGRE) -
DBV ABEM25% MR RIFBEA
EHA o

BE_ZT_TE+_A=-+—HLEHE
B ¢E$J€EZEZ:‘B BRMRHFER EXR
BERNMNEZEGURPFEIEMNG
BB EMIMIN2016]49588
Mo EEERAERUNRIEERE
NeBERBAREAStEHEMN OF
) BRAS (TEEHEHRIIL) 9K
HBEERERETERT G EEE M
AEtEHAIIBERBEERGEE
ZERI0%BELEMSRE-EIL- B
EERRNNBE_Z_EF+_A8
=+—HLEEENEREEMBRRKRE
#10% °

R8EZE-_E-_—F+ZA=+—HIEE
E BRERNNEZEGNR T —
FE=FC +nE%Jﬁ%ﬁFﬁw&m
BEREBERAT ZEITEEEC
%¢+ ﬁ i EtEFtLﬁi
xﬁZ E@ ﬁ'}ﬁeau+§¢%/7kt” /£¥
ﬁm%%$¢¥mfwlm LEET
RYHE 8 19,439,000 7T KR IEIE A 15
MEE14,515,0008cHIB M ERE
E_ZE_—F+_HB=+—HIL=EE
Mz WmixP R B st &8RRI
EXEAamECE (Tamist
X)) WEBEEEMEIS% oFHIL &
EE_—F+-_/A=+—HLEEERF
EEMR)NBRECEMSRRES
15% o

BRERARAT —T—FFK 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

11 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 1M1 FRiSHREX @
The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs REBRPTERBNGEF IR IESR R A E B
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted REEENEHENSHER GM B INEF
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated entities in HMEFENIERSENELRAOT

the respective jurisdictions as follows:

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
B —ET-ZfF

HK$'000 HK$'000
FER  TET

Profit before income tax BRFTISIR AT R A 1,274,447 1,052,841
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates applicable to 3R BB S & 4 #F 9B B

profits in the respective countries BEMREGENRIE 210,625 137,536
Income not subject to taxation BEMIRAIUTA (3,123) (8,538)
Tax incentives for research and development 74 A B0 5 17 AR 3L BV Y /B A Bl BL A B2

expenses available for the subsidiaries BERANREEE (@)

incorporated in the PRC (Note (a)) (51,923) (30,176)
Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes FARTE T = A eI R AR 2 3,151 12,676
Tax losses for which no deferred income tax was ~ SREERIELEFTIS R BIFRIEES 18

recognised 18,654 37,145
Withholding tax FENIRIE 1,234 3,341
Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses B RB{F RFER Z MIEE1E (1,083) =
Effect of change in tax rate on deferred tax MEESEFHIRERSR s E

(Note (b)) (M4 5E(b)) (14,515) =
Under/(over) provision in prior years, net BEFERETRE (BREEH)

(Note (b)) PER (M5E(b)) 19,185 (2,993)

182,205 148,991

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 16.5% for the year BE_ZE_—F+ZHA=+—HILFE>
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 13.1%). The change is caused IR EA165% (CE_ZFHF !
by the change in the profitability mix of the Group's subsidiaries in 13.1%) o BB RPN AERE K E K E
the respective countries and the change in applicable tax rate for REIBAENEELRBEREETER
Pax Computer Shenzhen (Note (b)). FINIR G BRI (FIEED)) ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a)

(b)

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
for the year attributable to the owners of the Company by
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue
during the year.

12 SREH

(a)

Bk
BREFBMNREARBFEAR
LHEAFEENFFABETEER
i FIHEtE -

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—f —Z-SH
Profit attributable to the owners of RABFE ARG ER (FHT)
the Company (HK$'000) 1,083,774 900,123
Weighted average number of ordinary shares B217 & @R INE TS (TAR)
in issue (thousand shares) 1,096,118 1,087,290
Basic earnings per share attributable to RABFEANEBEESRERRF
the owners of the Company (HK$ per share) (&%) 0.989 0.828

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all potentially dilutive ordinary
shares. The Company has one category of potentially dilutive
ordinary shares: share options. For the share options, a
calculation is done to determine the number of shares that
could have been acquired at fair value (determined as the
average market share price of the Company's shares for the
period) based on the monetary value of the subscription
rights attached to outstanding share options. The number of
shares calculated as above is compared with the number of
shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of
the share options.

(b)

BEREKEHARAR

SREIEMNNAEIXRBRE
BMATAERBEHENENET BRI
REDETEEROMEFTIE A
ARRAE—HABTHENENS
BR-IERE-FEBEREMS & H
RITEBREMNDBENERE
BB UEEARATE (ERE
ANERMMEAANFEHE BENR
MEBE - B EASAFENRNDEUE
HRRBREETEREDEITHN
Rin BB fFEEEK
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

12 EARNINGS PER SHARE (continued)

146

(b) Diluted (continued) (b)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
calculation of diluted earnings per share was based on
the profit attributable to owners of the Company and the
adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding assuming the conversion of all potentially
dilutive ordinary shares, which was calculated as follows:

12 SREMN®

e @
BE_Z_—GFRZZBEF+Z
AR=+—HLFE SKR#IRFT
BREXRBFEABMGGEN RER
BRFAAEECREEERMEAE
MEFHEBREEE  sE L AN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E-—% —s-=x
Profit attributable to the owners of RABFE ANEHREF (FB7T)
the Company (HK$'000) 1,083,774 900,123
Weighted average number of ordinary B 21T @RMNEFHE (T
shares in issue (thousand shares) 1,096,118 1,087,290
Adjustments for share options EBREELNARE (TR
(thousand shares) 36,128 5,827
Weighted average number of SR SR B INE
ordinary shares for diluted FHE (TR
earnings per share (thousand shares) 1,132,246 1,093,117
Diluted earnings per share KABRBEARBGLESREERT
attributable to owners of (BRAET
the Company (HK$ per share) 0.957 0.823
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e MBmRMsE

13 DIVIDENDS

In 2021, an interim dividend of HK$0.12 per ordinary share
(2020: HK$0.07 per ordinary share) was declared, amounting
to approximately HK$131,636,000 (2020: HK$75,787,000). No
special dividend was declared during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: HK$0.10 per ordinary share was declared, amounting
to approximately HK$109,284,000). A final dividend of HK$0.15
per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
HK$0.10 per ordinary share), amounting to approximately
HK$162,855,000 (2020: HK$109,414,000) (assuming no change
in the number of shares in issue on or before the record date for
determining the entitlement of final dividend), is to be proposed
at the forthcoming annual general meeting. These financial

statements do not reflect the proposed final dividend payable.

13

HQ I%\

AR —E S AABEERTHERES
GEER0.12EBT (CE_ZF SRZE
f%0.077%87T) » A#£9131,636,00058 T (Z
B TEAE 75,787,000 7T) o B —
E+ A=+ —HLEEE AQAFUES
RKEBKRE (CE_TE  CERERE
BAR0.1078 7T » 2 8049109,284,0008 7T) °©
BREEREBEFASEZFHAEE_Z
T—HE+ A=+ —HBIEEEZRERE
BREERISET (ZCEZEF K
ZEAR0.10787T) » A #49162,855,00058 7T
(ZEZE4 1 109,414,000 7T) (BHE
BITRMOBENABERBRE ZEMND
SR AE B EES) o AMFEIRERI
TRBELEZERIRE

Year ended 31 December

B#E+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
eI ZETTEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET
Interim dividend declared of HK$0.12 BEEIRERZER0.12BTHE
(2020: HK$0.07) per ordinary share R (Z |AE D 0.0787T) 131,636 75,787
Special dividend (2020) declared of HK$0.10 BEEIRERE@ER0.108 7T
per ordinary share “EZEHRRIRKRE - 109,284
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.15 ERREFBL0.15B T ESR R
(2020: HK$0.10) per ordinary share R (CE-Z]F . 0.1087T) 162,855 109,414
294,491 294,485
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A

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
RS MW R M

14

148

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

14 YE- -BEKRSKE

Construction Office
Land and in progress Leasehold  furniture and Plant and Motor
buildings (Note) improvements equipment equipment vehicles Total
Tk ERIR HE WAE
&F (Mt 5%) MERE  GEREE BERRE HE gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TR TER FHET TR TER TR TR
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—-%£—-B—H
Cost A 8,452 76,903 17,247 46,542 44,207 11,613 204,964
Accumulated depreciation and impairment Rt ERAE (7,231) - (7,427) (29,329) (22,627) (9,110) (75,724)
Net book amount REFE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Year ended 31 December 2021 HEZS-—F+-A=t+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BNRmEEE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Additions RE - 346,076 24 12,570 10,190 541 369,401
Disposals HE - = = 1) (12) S (33)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (f157) (12) - (3,198) (7,679) (8,401) (930) (20,220)
Exchange realignment EREE (86) 6,951 84 (274) M bi} 7,139
Closing net book amount HRREEE 1123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
At 31 December 2021 RZBZ-£+ZA=+-H
Cost B 8,554 429,930 17,453 57,907 55,284 11,495 580,623
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ REHTE KRB E (7,431) - (10,723) (36,098) (31,486) (9.358) (95,096)
Net book amount REFE 1,123 429,930 6,730 21,809 23,798 2,137 485,527
At 1 January 2020 —2_%5-B-H
Cost ESZZIS 1922 24,623 13,712 39,179 30,351 10,433 126,220
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ~ REHTERiE (6,757) = (4,474) (22,413) (15,212) (7,754) (56,610)
Net book amount REFE 1,165 24,623 9,238 16,766 15,139 2,679 69,610
Year ended 31 December 2020 BECB_ZE+_B=1+-HLEE
Opening net book amount BRESE 1,165 24,623 9,238 16,766 15,139 2,679 69,610
Additions RE - 47,768 2,678 6,374 11,218 671 68,709
Disposals HE - - - (81) @7 (19) (127)
Depreciation (Note 7) & (f&7) (12) - (2577) (6,735) (6,058) (905) (16,28)
Exchange realignment EREE 68 4512 481 889 1,308 77 7335
Closing net book amount HRREEE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17213 21,580 2,503 129,240
At 31 December 2020 RZF-ZEE+-A=+-H
Cost ﬁﬂi 8,452 76,903 17,247 46,542 44,207 11,613 204,964
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  REHTE R E (7,231) = (7427) (29,329) (22,627) (9,110) (75,724)
Net book amount REFE 1,221 76,903 9,820 17,213 21,580 2,503 129,240
Note: B 5%
As at 31 December 2021, the construction in progress represents two HE_Z— —E-I— - H =+—H, xEENE

(2020: one) PRC property development projects of the PAX Smart Terminals
Industrial Park in Huizhou City and the PRC headquarters in Shenzhen City
(2020: the PRC headquarers in Shenzhen City). Please refer to Note 32
and the section headed “Particulars of Properties Under Development” in
this annual report for the contractual commitments and further details in
relation to these development projects.

Depreciation expense of HK$4,778,000 (2020: HK$4,542,000)
has been charged to cost of sales and HK$15,442,000 (2020:
HK$11,745,000) has been charged to administrative expenses.
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance

sheet

The consolidated balance sheet shows the following
amounts relating to the leases in respect of land use rights,
office premises, factory and warehouses:

15 FREEEREEASR

(@) MEEEERRRERZNEA

MEBEERBRIITUT R MIE
RE-MAEME -IHRERREEZ

GER=F=1 S

As at 31 December

n+=ZBA=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F “BCEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Right-of-use assets FEREEE
Land use rights (note) T E AR (f5E) 132,701 132,435
Office premises FEYNESYES 48,186 49,490
Factory and warehouses TITHEEE 101,590 109,212
282,477 291,137
Lease liabilities HEaA
Non-current JETRE 84,648 93,811
Current it 31,954 28,776
116,602 122,587
Note: M EE

The Group’s land use rights are located in the PRC and are held on
leases of between 20 to 50 years.

Additions to the right-of-use assets for the year ended
31 December 2021 were HK$29,369,000 (2020:
HK$95,117,000).

BEREKEHARAR

FEBRUNPENIMEREEEHRS
206 E50%F ©

BEE_ T+ /8=+—
HIEFEFTRREEENARAE S
29,369,000 T (ZE T F !
95,117,000 7T) ©
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

15 FREEEREEERE®

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (b) RERSWIRERD ZM
statement
The consolidated income statement shows the following FAEWERY AT B L R

BE-BMAEYME-IHAEEZE
EEMMTIE

amounts relating to the leases in respect of land use rights,
office premises, factory and warehouses:

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
HKS$'000 HK$ 000
TET FHBT
Depreciation of right-of-use assets B EEITE (I:E7)
(Note 7)
— Land use rights — TR 6,036 4,105
— Office premises —MANEYE 23,667 27,849
— Factory and warehouses —THkEE 14,162 7,674
43,865 39,628
Expense relating to short-term SFGEATE SRR (H5E7)
leases (Note 7) 9,821 8,859
Interest expense (Note 9) B (fT:E9) 6,661 7,045

150

Depreciation expense of HK$3,465,000 (2020:
HK$2,761,000) has been charged to cost of sales,
HK$20,333,000 (2020: HK$13,517,000) has been
charged to selling expenses and HK$20,067,000 (2020:
HK$23,350,000) has been charged to administrative
expenses for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BE_E_—F+"-B=+—8">
HrERI % 3,465,000 T (ZE =
F 12,761,000 7T) Bt ASHE L
7X20,333,0008 0 (B _FF :
13,517,000 7T) BEst AHERX
220,067,000 (ZE_EF :
23,350,000 7T) Bt AITHER

The total cash outflow for leases during the year BE_Z_—F#+"HA=+—H
ended 31 December 2021 was HK$53,173,000 (2020: LEFEHENREAHBER
HK$104,109,000), including the payment of principal 53,173,0008 c (ZE & F !

elements and interest elements of lease liabilities amounting
to HK$33,859,000 (2020: HK$29,899,000) (Note 30(c)) and
HK$6,661,000 (2020: HK$7,045,000) (Note 9) respectively
and the payment of short-term leases of HK$9,821,000
(2020: HK$8,859,000) (Note 7) and the payment for
the addition of land use rights of HK$2,832,000 (2020:
HK$58,306,000).
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15 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(continued)

(9]

(d)

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

In addition to the land use rights, the Group leases various
office premises, factory and warehouses. Rental contracts
of office premises, factory and warehouses are typically
made for fixed periods of 1 year to 10 years, but may have
extension options as described in (d) below. Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do
not impose any covenants other than the security interests
in the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Extension options

Extension options are included in the leases of factory and
warehouses across the Group. These are used to maximise
operational flexibility in terms of managing the assets used
in the Group's operations.

15 FREEEREEERE®

(]

(d)

BEREKEHARAR
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TX()FF iy EERE - HE R
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16

152

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

16 HLEE

Contractual
customer
Brand relationships
Goodwill names and others Total
BHEFR
5k EiE RfRREM =X
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT FHET FAT
At 1 January 2021 R-E-—%—HF—H
Cost B AS 110,754 12,370 50,065 173,189
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t #4555 & (95,011) (4,026) (34,188)  (133,225)
Net book amount REFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-_T—-—F
+ZB=+—HLEE
Opening net book amount HRYREFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
Amortisation (Note 7) iy (sE7) - (1,186) (3,112) (4,298)
Exchange realignment fERE (1,161) (555) (1,041) (2,757)
Closing net book amount HAREIREFE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
At 31 December 2021 W& —
+-BA=+—H
Cost B AS 108,675 11,492 50,570 170,737
Accumulated amortisation and impairment 2 5t #84 & H & (94,093) (4,889) (38,846)  (137,828)
Net book amount REAE 14,582 6,603 11,724 32,909
At 1 January 2020 RZEZZEH—HF—H
Cost B A 104,166 11,612 48,608 164,386
Accumulated amortisation and impairment &5t 85 & RE (75,333) (2,616) (30,498)  (108,447)
Net book amount IRERE 28,833 8,996 18,110 55,939
Year ended 31 December 2020 BEE_T_EBH
+ZHA=+—HILEE
Opening net book amount HRYRERE 28,833 8,996 18,110 55,939
Amortisation (Note 7) i (FsE7) - (1,151) (3,346) (4,497)
Impairment (Note 7) BE (HEE7) (14,699) = = (14,699)
Exchange realignment FEREL 1,609 499 1,113 3,221
Closing net book amount AR EREFE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
At 31 December 2020 N_E_EHE
+Z-HA=+—8
Cost By A 110,754 12,370 50,065 173,189
Accumulated amortisation and impairment Rt 85 &RE (95,011) (4,026) (34,188)  (133,225)
Net book amount IREEE 15,743 8,344 15,877 39,964
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16

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Amortisation of HK$4,298,000 (2020: HK$4,497,000) has been
charged to administrative expenses.

The relevant goodwill is allocated to the respective groups of
CGUs, which represent the lowest level within the Group at which
the relevant goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group's goodwill of HK$14,582,000
(2020: HK$15,743,000) is attributable to the acquisition of the
operation in Italy.

The recoverable amounts of CGUs are determined based on value
in use calculations. The calculations are performed by an external
valuer by using pre-tax cash flow projection based on financial
budgets approved by management covering a five-year period.
Thereafter, the cash flows are extrapolated using the terminal
growth rates not exceeding the long-term average growth rate of
the country in which the CGU operates.

Impairment test for goodwill arising from the

16

B|EEE ®

#i54,298, 0008 T (ZE 2 F
4,497,000%7T) BB1THE BNk

HEEENEEAMREEEBEMMER -

fﬁ%éi%ﬁh?fi EEE BB AR
HEETEENEAERREER

A —F+_RB=t+—H ' FEE
BIPZE 414,582,000 (ZE_Z4F
15,743,00078 7T)28 B N B B AFIBI 255 ©

REELSMUNATIWEMREENEREBE
FEEE ZTEREBEEEEMLENR
FHAM B AEE RN L EMRERAIIRE
METE E'Ji_‘/(:fn‘fﬁ L& HEIRERE
Pk AMRIRIERETGBRRESELS
i ?%%Fﬁf!%?ﬁ’]%ﬁﬂqzi’—ﬁ'a'§$°

MEAF N EFREENBEETH

operation in Italy =R:
The key assumptions are as follows: FERRWT !
2021 2020
% ST F
Pre-tax discount rate ARG IR Z 18.3% 20.6%
Compound annual growth rate BEFERER 1.3% 3.1%
Terminal growth rate RiImIR R 2.0% 2.0%

The recoverable amount of this CGU is calculated based on the
value in use and exceeded its carrying value as at 31 December
2021. An increase in pre-tax discount rate by 2.3% (2020: 2.9%)
would remove the remaining headroom for the operation in Italy.

ZHREELXBEUNYKEEBIRESH
BETEIBREESEE T - —F1+_
B=+—HWKREEE M HIRER
B23% (CEZZFE129%) B EBRER
AR EBN R GRERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT

154

17 BAFESABmZEMEERE
AP ESFARMEZERZZ ERME

FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME
(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss () EATEABEEZEMEE
As at 31 December 2021, the Group's financial asset at R_E_—F+_"A=+—H'%&&
FVPL represent an investment in an unlisted investment fund HNEAFESAEG EMEE
(2020: an unlisted investment fund and an unlisted equity EEABENELTREES (T2
investment) outside Hong Kong with following details: TE I FLITREESRIFLMRA
BE) ZRENT :
HK$'000
FHET
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ—F—HB—HZ&R 130,120
Fair value gains on revaluation recognised RIBRARRNEBRLFE WA
in profit or loss 43,450
Disposal (note (ii)) & (MIEEGi)) (53,371)
Exchange realignment bE R A EE 4,070
Balance at 31 December 2021 R-E-—E+"/A=+—B2&&% 124,269
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIEZEF—A—BHZ&ER 104,707
Addition (note (i)) wE (i) 22,495
Fair value losses on revaluation recognised RiEm AR E SR T ERE
in profit or loss (5,241)
Exchange realignment PE R oA EE 8,159
Balance at 31 December 2020 A ZEZTE+ZRA=+—HZEH 130,120

The carrying amounts of the financial assets at FVPL is
denominated in RMB.
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e MBmRMsE

17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Note:

(i) On 4 December 2019, Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen)
Co. Ltd ("Wonder Pax"”), an indirect wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company and two other independent
third party investors entered into an investment agreement
(“Investment Agreement”) with Hi Sun Technology (China)
Limited (“Hi Sun”), Mega Hunt Microelectronics (Beijing)
Limited (“Megahunt”), Mega Hunt Microelectronics Limited
(“Megahunt HK”) and certain management team members
of Hi Sun and its subsidiaries pursuant to which, among
other things, Wonder Pax has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for approximately 3.64% of the enlarged registered
capital of Megahunt with an exit option at a consideration
of RMB20,000,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,495,000) (the “Investment”). The exit option is
exercisable by Wonder Pax under certain circumstances on or
before 31 December 2025. Wonder Pax shall have the right
to request the parent company of Megahunt to repurchase
all or some of the then registered capital at an original
investment cost plus 8% interest per annum. The Investment
was completed on 30 March 2020. The Investment was
a related party transaction under applicable accounting
standards and a connected transaction as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with all
applicable requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules in respect of the transaction. For details of
the Investment Agreement and the transactions contemplated
thereunder, please refer to the Company's announcement
dated 4 December 2019.

17 BAFEFABEZERBEERE
AFEFAEMEZENGZZ EME
Ew

() BATESABRZEMEE @
BT

(i) A_EBE—hE+_BANB - BER
ERE CRY) BRAE (MEER
) (AT zBEE2ERBAT)
ERRBUE =T REEERSE
B (hE) BRASE ((Ek) ~JK
IEZEME FHEIM GER) BRAR
(TIRENIBEY) ~HKAMEFER
NE) (THNEER)) Bk REK
BABIZEEEBME LRE RS
(MEEWHZ) Bt (Hhailm =
ZOEAKGRERE (BRHEER
RDENAEELEABZAME
ABI#3.64% > X {E#20,000,000
AR (HBER4922,495,000% 7T)
(MEE)) BEOEBETELZER
TAMURZBE_RAFE+/A=+—
RZATHERHE -BEGES
HERIKNIEEN T AT URBE
BERANMSWHEFNELBERS
HEDEMER c ZRER_E
TEEZHA=Z+ARH ZREA
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME (continued)

156

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)
Note: (continued)

(ii)

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax, Megahunt and an
independent third party (the “Purchaser”) entered into
a share transfer agreement, pursuant to which, Wonder
Pax agreed to dispose of its entire 3.64% equity interest
in Megahunt to the Purchaser at a consideration of
approximately RMB43,637,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$53,371,000) (the “Disposal”). A fair value gain of
HK$26,480,000 (2020: HK$1,889,000) was recognised in
the consolidated income statement during the year ended
31 December 2021 (Note 5). After the completion of the
Disposal on 28 December 2021, Wonder Pax no longer held
any equity interest in Megahunt.

On 15 December 2021, Wonder Pax also received a notice
of transfer from Megahunt HK in respect of Megahunt
HK's intention to transfer an aggregate of approximately
20% equity interest in Megahunt (the “Relevant Interest”)
to certain transferees (the “Transfer”). Pursuant to the
Investment Agreement, the Transfer is subject to the right of
first refusal where Wonder Pax shall be entitled to purchase
the Relevant Interest (or any part thereof) on the same
terms and conditions as offered by Megahunt HK to the
transferees (the “Right of First Refusal”). Wonder Pax decided
not to exercise the Right of First Refusal. The non-exercise
of the Right of First Refusal was a connected transaction as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with all applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
exercise of the Right of First Refusal.

For details of the Disposal and the non-exercise of the Right
of First Refusal, please refer to the Company’s announcement
dated 15 December 2021 and the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Report of the Directors.
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17 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17 BAFESIABDZEMEERIR
PROFIT OR LOSS AND FINANCIAL ASSET AT AFEFAHMEZEREZ EME
FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =30
INCOME (continued)

(b) Financial asset at fair value through other (b) EBEATFESAHMZEKEZE
comprehensive income MEE
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group's financial RIE I —FRIZ2ZZF+TA
asset at FVOCI represents an investment in an unlisted equity =+—B > mNEERATFEFAEM
investment outside Hong Kong which is not held for trading, TEHRRZEMEERSBIEIINTE
and which the Group has irrevocably elected at initial JFFFE & B A& E 1 o] [ #th 28
recognition to recognise in this category. This is a strategic BRZENPLBRANIE LT ER
investment and the Group considers this classification more REZRE -HA—BHRRELER
relevant. KEEDREEDBERMT
HK$'000
FHT
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIZEZ—F—RB—HZ&ER 2,467
Fair value gain on revaluation recognised P E A 2 U PR ERRY
in other comprehensive income BHATFERG 360
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+ZA=+—HZ#&H 2,827
Balance at 1 January 2020 NZEZEFE—HB—HZiER 10,433
Fair value loss on revaluation recognised R HE 2 W e PR
in other comprehensive income SR T ERE (7,966)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+-A=+—HZH&ER 2,467
The carrying amount of the financial asset at FVOCI is BATESFAEMEE NG 2/
denominated in EUR. BENKREEMUBITEHE
On disposal of this equity investment, any related balance THEILRERER  EREANZEA
within the FVOCI reserve is reclassified to retained earnings. TEFAHEMEZENREZEMEE

FEREBELOEMDELRERAN -
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18 SUBSIDIARIES

18 MEBAT

The following is a list of principal subsidiaries as at 31 December

2021 and 2020:

Place of incorporation/
establishment and

Principal activities and

A TE TR

SEEFCASt—

H ’IKWJ:’“E% SRI

Particulars of issued and

Name % e of Ie al entity place of operation %:'aid up/registered capital Interest held
gﬁ/i!.L& BORMERS/ N
278 EEE‘E& TBEBREEMY AMEREE Pt
2021 2020
ZEI-F  ZIZE
Pax Technology Limited Hong Kong, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products HK$113,125,000 100% 100%
BHEHEE % company and provision of related services 113,125,000 7T
é?&%ma in Hong Kon
EEASER R RRERR
REERRS
Pax Computer Technology The PRC, limited liability Development and sales of HK$380,000,000 100% 100%
(Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd. (*) company* E-payment Terminals products and 380,000,0007C
EEREL ST FE gl‘E’&E” provision of related services in the PRC
BRAH T‘?Iﬁﬂ?“&iﬁ BEFERHERK
BT
Wonder Pax Technology (Shenzhen) The PRC, limited liability Development of software and hardware of HK$20,000,000 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. (*) company* E-payment Terminals products and 20,000,000 7%
BESERE (R FE BRAR provmon of related services in PRC
BRAH TEREMEEFS RIBERNRA K
B RFHIERRS
Pax Technology, Inc. The US, limited liability Sales of E-payment Terminals products US$1,000 100% 100%
company in the US 1,000% 7T
28 £ RAT ERENEBTRARES
Pax Italia S.rl. Italy, limited liability company Development and customising software EUR100,000 70% 70%
BAF BRATF systems and sales of E- payment 100,000887
Terminals products in Ital
EEATIRS &lxmwlg%&
HEBFZ &G
CSC ltalia S.r.I. (Note (a)) Italy, limited ||ab||\ty company Provision of software systems and EUR100,000 95% 60%
BAF BRATF E-payment Terminals maintenance and 100,000887
installation serwces m \taly
EEAFIRHERAR
BFX ju\mB’Jiﬁé&ﬁéﬁW
Kwang Woo Information & Korea, limited liability company Development, manufacturing and sales of Korean Won ("WON") 4,238,000,000 87% 87%
Communication Co., Ltd. 28 5RAT E-payment Terminals products 4,238,000,00082 8
("Kwang Woo") in Korea
TRERE EERBESF A
BIED
Pax Pos Solutions India India, limited I|ab\hty company Sales of E- p%ment Terminals groducts inindia  Indian Rupee ("INR") 32,500,000 100% 100%
Private Limited EE BRATR THEHEETINRIRE 32,500,000 EELL
Pax Japan Kabushiki Kaisha Japan, limited liability company ~ Sales of E- p* ment Terminals groducts in Japan  Japanese Yen ("JPY") 50,000,000 100% 100%
Pax Japantk L &4t A BRAR ERFHEBFXIREER 50,000,000E 7
Shanghai New Kashuo The PRC, limited liability Inactive RMB30,000,000 51% 51%
Information Technology company’" HEEE 30,000,000 A B
Company Limited (*) (Note (b)) EP%FE’&E
LR FAEERNARAF
(Bi15E(b)
* The English names of Pax Computer Shenzhen, Wonder Pax and & HRBEETEREY  BEBRERLE

Shanghai New Kashuo Information Technology Limited (“Shanghai
Kashuo”) represent the best effort by the management of the
Group in translating their Chinese names as they do not have official

English names.

2 Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises.

venture).
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Registered as limited liability company (domestic and foreign joint
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18 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 18 MIBAE @

The non-controlling interests in respect of Pax Italia S.rl., Shanghai BRiPax ltalia S.r.l.~ E/&F58CSC ltalia

Kashuo, CSC Italia S.rl. and Kwang Woo are not material. S.rl.BzKwang WooRY FEFZERG #E 2 s A EE K o

Notes: B 5E -

(@)  During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group increased (@) MEBEZZZ—F+ZBA=+—HI%#F
its shareholding in CSC Italia S.r.l. from 60% to 95% with a = zt:%luﬁﬁﬁxmmzl 000 (FBERH
consideration of approximately EUR794,000 (equivalent to 7,223,000787T) AR EIEMPTIFACSC
approximately HK$7,223,000). The Group recognised the decrease Italla STl BREHE0%EIS% o NE
in non-controlling interests of HK$3,431,000 and other reserves of SRIEIERG RE A R /03,431,000 7T
HK$3,792,000. &ﬂﬂﬂfnﬂ%/ﬂ /13,792, OOO/%TI:O

(b)  InJuly 2018, a court of competent jurisdiction in Shanghai rendered by WRIE—NFLtA  LB—FIEEEE
a civil ruling in acceptance of Shanghai Kashuo's application for EEENEARBE(PEARHEMET
bankruptcy liquidation in accordance with the Enterprise Bankruptcy EWEEAVFERTREHE BZ LE
Law of the People’s Republic of China. A qualified PRC law firm RHEMNBEEFTEFF  —HAaERTEH
has been appointed to follow up with the voluntary winding-up of @Eﬁ%?‘ﬁﬁ@%é&@?‘f&q]ﬂ@ AR
Shanghai Kashuo in accordance with the laws of the PRC. As at 31 ELBFRANBREER R Z—F
December 2021, the liquidation process of Shanghai Kashuo was +-B=+—H'LBERNEEER
still underway. EREETH

19 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 19 HEFEARZIKE

EQUITY METHOD

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investments accounted for A B —F+__RB=Z+—H ' AEH

using the equity method represent the investments in Shanghai MEZZEZARNEERSH LB T]Y

Coshine Software Company Ltd. (“Shanghai Coshine”) and BRAA (T E&FEs)) RCPayond GmbH

CPayond GmbH (formerly known as C2P Convenient to Payments (R %&C2P Convenient to Payments

GmbH) (“CPayond”) (2020: Shanghai Coshine, CPayond and GmbH) (FCPayondy) (ZEZZH : L

Niche Global Fintech Corporation Limited (“Niche Global”)). They 78R8 5~ CPayond&Niche Global Fintech

have share capital consisting solely of ordinary shares, which Corporation Limited (Niche Global 1)) 2%

are held directly by the Group. The country of incorporation Ho MMNRAEHEERMAEN BEER

or registration is also their principal place of business, and the E&Hﬁf’ﬁjﬁi_LYuIHﬂE'J!%iﬂEH
proportion of ownership interest is the same as the proportion of EEMBL PRE AL ES
voting rights held. E’]&E%E’J EEBIARR] ©
Place of incorporation/ Particular of
establishment and type of registered Nature of Effective Measurement
Name legal entity capital  relationship Interest held method
MR BRI B R
ey EEBRER HEME AR GEE BT HERE
2021 2020
- EIZR

Shanghai Coshine The PRC, limited liability RMB13,326,190 Associated 20% 20%  Equity method

company company

LER% FE BRAF 13,326,190 AR BE R s

CPayond Germany, limited liability EUR25,000  Joint venture 50% 50%  Equity method

company

CPayond 26 BRAT 25,0008% 7T BERE TR %

Niche Global (note (i) Hong Kong, limited liability EUR3,000,000  Joint venture = 50%  Equity method

company

Niche Global (BizE()) &H&> BIRAH 3,000,000BA 7T BEAT 8%

HERKEHZARAR —ZZ—5FH 159
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R E M BRI

19

160

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (continued)

19

BRIEDZARZEE @

As at 31 December
W+ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—g-—f —T-ZF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAET

Carrying amount of individually immaterial

BRI FREAMEABNREE

associated company 14,114 15,529
Carrying amount of individually immaterial BRFAEREGERBNREE
joint ventures (note (ii)) (B EE(G)) 6,466 6,173
20,580 21,702
The Group's share of results recognised in the FEBRGERARER 2
consolidated income statement: FEIGZEGE !
— individually immaterial associated company —(ER A EKREE LT (1,802) (1,423)
— individually immaterial joint ventures —EBRIFrERXEGERNT 5,256 (4,623)
3,454 (6,046)
Notes: B 5

(i) The Group has disposed of its 50% equity interest in Niche
Global for a cash consideration of EUR1,500,000 (approximately
HK$13,861,000) on 25 March 2021. A gain on disposal of
HK$7,009,000 was recognised in the consolidated income
statement during the year ended 31 December 2021 (Note 5).

(i) As at 31 December 2020, the Group's share of loss of CPayond
exceeded its interest in the equity of CPayond. The accumulated
unrecognised share of loss of the interest in CPayond was
HK$1,405,000.

There are no contingent liabilities and commitments to provide
funding relating to the Group's interests in Shanghai Coshine and
CPayond. The Group's interests in Shanghai Coshine and CPayond
are not material.

Shanghai Coshine and CPayond are private companies and there is
no quoted market price available for their shares.
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AEBER _E_—F=B_+AaHU
1,500,00088 7 (49%413,861,000787T)
IS A EEEENiche Globalf950%
BE-HE_ET_—F+_HB=+—H
IEEFEE > HE7,009,0008 cHKlEE
RiRE W R R (MIsES) ©

RIBZEBF+-HA=+—H &&%H
1hCPayondZ B BB H X CPayond
Bt 7 o RIS Z D 15CPayondiE
T 518 #1,405,00058 7T ©

BRAANEER LB KRCPayondz
ZHARAEBEREAARBES -FAEH

1 L8R R CPayond I Em I AE K ©
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R E M BRI

20

INVENTORIES =78
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=4+—8H
2021 2020
B ZZTEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Raw materials ARt 579,219 365,426
Work in progress TH& 432,060 377,709
Finished goods BURR 1,060,006 886,766
2,071,285 1,629,901

The cost of inventories amounted to HK$4,244,556,000 (2020:
HK$3,060,546,000) and the provision for obsolete inventories
amounted to HK$15,928,000 (2020: HK$166,816,000) were
included in cost of sales during the year ended 31 December
2021.

HE_E_—F+_-_B=+—HLt=E
B ZEmMZA4,244,556,0008 T (Z &

T =4 3,060,546,000% 1)

hRERF

E#115,928,0008 T (ZCE_2F !
166,816,000/ T) B BIETEHEN A& o

HERKREARAR —ZZ—55H
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e MBmRMsE

21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER

162

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST iRz HithERE =
As at 31 December
®w+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —Z=°Z=fF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Trade receivables (note (a)) FEUERFR (FT5E(a)) 2,212,587 1,519,053
Amounts due from related parties (note (a), e W e Bt 7wk B (Y EE(a)
Note 33(b)) MIzE33(b)) 1,509 13,455
Less: provision for impairment of trade receivables & : FEUEBRFZUBE R H (I5E()
(note (c)) (138,148) (115,315)
Trade receivables, net PEUS BR =N — B 28 2,075,948 1,417,193
Bills receivables (note (b)) FEURZ I (KI5E(b)) 6,029 17,060
Trade and bills receivables FES R U R FEWR E 3% 2,081,977 1,434,253
Other financial assets at amortised cost R AT IR Eth R E = 18,609 22,087
2,100,586 1,456,340

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and bills receivables
and other financial assets at amortised cost are denominated in

the following currencies:

24 4 I MR R P ST R P2 9
AT 2 HA S B E IR D T AU
MEHE

As at 31 December

®W+=—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E—F £ °%HF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Us$ E7T 1,562,507 836,187
RMB AR & 299,989 323,501
INR ELt 97,547 189,066
EUR Rt 95,725 73,268
HK$ BT 8,200 7,482
Others H1th 36,618 26,836
2,100,586 1,456,340

The fair values of trade and bills receivables and other financial
assets at amortised cost approximate their carrying values as at 31

December 2021 and 2020.

PAX GLOBAL TECHNOLOGY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

WS- RF-SEL A=t —
2 » 8 AR B L 5 R 9 PR )
PR LS R A6 A P R AR A8
o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
RS MW R M

21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21 FEURBRFR R FEUN Z 45 B3 S B 2
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued) FERZHMEMEZE @

(a) FEULERFR

(a) Trade receivables

The Group’s credit terms to trade debtors range generally
from 0 to 180 days. However, credit terms of more than 180
days may be granted to customers on a case-by-case basis
upon negotiation. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
ageing analysis of the trade receivables and amounts due
from related parties based on invoice date is as follows:

rEEBHKTFEZEHEANEERR
0E180H R E o AT > WEEH B A%
ERERAEAREBIBIsS0HNE
B RIE-Z—FR-E-Z
+-BA=+—8 ERIRR L EKRRE
Ba T IaE S Z HEARRE 2T W0
T

As at 31 December
®+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
- ZE2ZZ
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET

Up to 90 days 90H LAY
91 to 180 days 91£180H
181 to 365 days 181E365H
Over 365 days 365HM &

1,501,337 1,198,429
495,945 94,348
47,562 45,772
169,252 193,959

2,214,096 1,532,508

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables included
retention money receivables of HK$29,819,000 (2020:
HK$49,330,000), which represents approximately 2% to
5% (2020: same) of the relevant contract sum granted
to certain number of the customers in the PRC that has a
retention period of three to five years (2020: same). As at 31
December 2021, retention money receivables aged over 365
days amounted to HK$28,204,000 (2020: HK$43,917,000).

The Group's sales are made to several major customers and
there is concentration of credit risks. Sales of goods and
services to the top five customers constituted approximately
47.5% (2020: 49.7%) of the Group’'s revenue for the
year ended 31 December 2021. They accounted for
approximately 49.9% (2020: 30.7%) of the gross trade
receivable balances as at 31 December 2021.

B —F+-"A=+—H FElK
IR B IEEUNTEII£%829,819,000
BT (ZEZZFF 49,330,000
ﬁ’ﬁﬁ%¢l S FEANMERE

WBEELN2% E5% (ZEZEF | 7
AbyﬁEM%%%:iﬁﬁt_g
“EFEFL) BRI —F+Z
B=+—H EBWEIISERKEE
365H MI4A%E 428,204,000 T (&
4 143,917,000 7T) ©

AREENHEENOBERETERTA(F
HEBGEEEYTRB - BE_T - —
E+-B=Z+—HLEEE HEK
BERHENE BRRRHENRB G
EBRWRANLIT 5% (ZEZBF
49.7%) MR T —F+=
B=+—HEWERMREGREEY
49.9% (ZZEZTZHF 130.7%) °

BRERARAT —T—FFK 163
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21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued)

164

(b) Bills receivables

(c)

The balance represents bank acceptance notes with maturity
periods within six months.

The maturity profile of the bills receivables of the Group is as
follows:

21

FE UL R TR B2 FE U SR 8 T 4% SH A A

JIfRZ HthEREE @

(b) FEUWRIE

ZAERIEEI BB AN ER UK

IRITEAR R

FEERWRRENZRABEROT :

As at 31 December

®+ZHA=+—H
2021 2020
—EB—F —E_EF
HK$'000 HK$°000
F#ET FHET
Up to 90 days 90H A 4,398 527
91 to 180 days 91£180H 1,631 16,533
6,029 17,060

Provision for impairment of trade receivables
The movement on the provision for impairment of trade
receivables is as follows:

() FEURARTRIR(EE

EUERFURERHEEBIT ¢

Year ended 31 December

#=+_RA=+—8H

ILEFE
2021 2020
- ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAT
At beginning of the year REH 115,315 93,574
Provision for impairment losses for the year FEREEEEEE (:17)

(Note 7) 24,472 65,142
Reversal of provision (Note 7) BE R (¢sE7) (2,892) (59)
Written off b 67! S (46,664)
Exchange realignment b R FHEE 1,253 3,322
At end of the year REXR 138,148 115,315
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R E M BRI |

21 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES AND OTHER 21 FEUERTRA R FE U IR R 4 8 pl s
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTISED COST (continued) FRRZz HthEmEE @
() Provision for impairment of trade receivables (0 FEBERFRERE @
(continued)
Based on the assessment of the expected credit losses FEBFTGETEREERER BTN
(refer to Note 3.1(b)), the Group has made a provision for F#3.10b) MBEE-_—F+_H
impairment of trade receivables of HK$24,472,000 during =+t—BLEFEFEBKRRIRE
the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: HK$65,142,000). 524,472,000 T (ZEZEHF .

65,142,0003 7T) ©

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date RREHHERNEAEERRS
is the carrying values of each class of receivables mentioned PR EENHIENREE R IE
above. The Group did not hold any collateral as security for T—F+ZRA=+—HB XcEELE
these receivables as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same). MEZERWFEFEETMAERRD C

E-TEFL

22 OTHER ASSETS 22 HthEE
As at 31 December
®w+=-—B=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E°ZfF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
Current portion RENE
Prepayments FE=IE 24,403 14,003
Others Hh 38,787 33,704
63,190 47,707
Non-current portion JETRENE
Others Hth 4,967 4,966
4,967 4,966
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23 RESTRICTED CASH

24

166

23 ZRERE

As at 31 December

®w+=-—B=4+—8H
2021 2020
B —ZT_FF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Restricted bank deposits ZIRFIIRITFR

22,091 15,345

Restricted cash represents bank deposits of the Group which were
mainly placed as securities for sales of goods to customers (2020:
same).

As at 31 December 2021, the effective interest rate on restricted

bank deposits was 4.21% (2020: 6.00%) per annum.

The carrying amounts of restricted cash were denominated in the
following currencies:

RRVEEECEETRERBEETER
NRBEMERNRITER( CE_ZF:
il

A B —F+_A=+—H > ZREIR
TEFNEBIEASEFLI21% (Z5Z
T 6.00%) ©

RRFIREOREERUTIEEHE

As at 31 December
®W+ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—EI—F —“ET°ZTH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

INR ELt 14,851 13,694
us$ =TT 4,095 =
RMB AR & 3,013 1,651
Others H1th 132 =

22,091 15,345

SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31 December 2020, the short-term bank deposits of
HK$3,082,000 represented bank deposits of the Group with
original maturities over three months which are denominated in
INR. The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was
7.33% per annum. The Group has no short-term bank deposit as
at 31 December 2021.
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25 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25 WRERFESEEY
As at 31 December
®w+=-B=+—H
2021 2020
ZEI—F ZTTITHF

HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET THET

Cash and cash equivalents BEKRIREEEY 3,532,954 3,802,741
As at 31 December 2021, bank balances of the Group A _E_—F+_B=+—H &&E
amounting to HK$2,458,427,000 and HK$42,136,000 (2020: M 89 R 17 45 8% 70 Bl 4% B02,458,427,000
HK$2,531,066,000 and HK$42,374,000) were deposited in bank BT KR42,136,0008 T (ZE & F !
accounts opened with banks in the PRC and India, respectively, 2,531,066,00078 7T 542,374,000 7T) 15
where the remittance of funds is subject to foreign exchange BMEFERONEREANRITHRAIZINRITER
control. PoMAMESNMESZEIINEEF
The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents were REAREFEYNREESHNUATIIE
denominated in the following currencies: WEETE -

As at 31 December
®W+ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—EI—F —“ET°ZTH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT

RMB AR 2,455,509 2,529,613
Us$ ETT 741,970 884,286
HK$ BT 200,190 223,603
EUR Rt 84,944 111,167
INR ELt 27,291 25,602
Others Hh 23,050 28,470

3,532,954 3,802,741

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Group as W2 —F+"HBA=+—H ' xEEZR
at 31 December 2021 were HK$3,532,662,000 (2020: AEEREKA3,532,662,00087T (ZE =
HK$3,802,519,000). Z4F 1 3,802,519,00087T) ©
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gkt e

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION 26 PeARKEERGIE
(a) Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company (@) FTAFRBBITREERZE

Ordinary
Number of shares of
ordinary HK$0.1
shares each
SREE
0.1787TH
EiERHE BBk

Thousand
shares HK$'000
Issued and fully paid BRTRER T FHET
At 1 January 2020 R ZEZEF—HF—H 1,100,194 110,019

168

Shares repurchased and cancelled

RERRD EIFE KR ()

during the year (note) (20,283) (2,028)
Employee share option scheme: BEERETE

— share options exercised —BITHEERE 12,926 1,293
At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 ’3:;‘ “EF+"A=+—HkK

2 —F—HF—H 1,092,837 109,284

Shares repurchased and cancelled RERKMEIREKRTH ()

during the year (note) (9,561) (956)
Employee share option scheme: EERERESTE

— share options exercised —BITEERE 9,698 970
At 31 December 2021 KRB —&+"RH=+—H 1,092,974 109,298

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company repurchased
a total of 13,232,000 ordinary shares (2020: 20,283,000) on the Stock
Exchange at approximately HK$86,960,000 (2020: HK$78,059,000),
including the aggregate purchase consideration of HK$86,631,000
(2020: HK$77,745,000) and the related expenses of HK$329,000
(2020: HK$314,000). 9,561,000 shares (2020: 20,283,000 shares) of
the repurchased shares have been cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2021. 3,671,000 shares repurchased during the year ended
31 December 2021 have been cancelled in January 2022.
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IEFEE > A AT LIL86,960,0008 7T
(ZE_-Z 4 :78,059,000) FE Bt =2
Frlelfg&4£13,232 oooﬂy (==
£ :20,283,000/8) & B ERE
AR 1E4986,631, 0007%71: (fvfg
177,745 000;%71) REMEBERLY
329,000%7% (ZE =4 314,000
7T REBEZE-_—&F+HA=+—
HiIEFE > BERMSDF 9,561,000
(ZZEZZ 420,283, oooﬁy) E%Ezuf
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(a)

(b)

Issued and fully paid share capital of the Company

(continued)
Note: (continued)

Details of the ordinary shares repurchased on the Stock Exchange
during the year are as follows:

26

B2 Ko BB AR A )

(a) FTRTEBITRBERE @

B 5E

=)

FRNEHZFTEIEHN S ERFENT

No. of shares

repurchased
EEE KRG Consideration per share
Date of Repurchase FEE B HA B sSRAE
Thousand shares Highest HK$ Lowest HK$
T REBTT REBT
19 January 2021 :i— - = Al = 800 8.40 7.88
22 April 2021 —E—FMBZ+TH 800 8.87 8.63
8 July 2021 —E-—FtANH 796 8.85 8.69
4 November 2021 22 —%+—HFmEA 1,600 6.20 5.70
10 November 2021 2 —%+—8+H 1,122 6.16 5.80
18 November 2021 2 —%+—B+N\H 1,500 6.66 6.47
24 November 2021 2 —%+—RBZ+WMAH 1,466 6.55 6.37
1 December 2021 _E_—%+”"A—H 1,477 6.36 6.10
9 December 2021 2 —%+ZAAH 1,650 6.07 5.92
17 December 2021 _EZ F+ZHB++tH 1,700 5.49 5.36
24 December 2021 2 —%+ZHAZ+MH 321 5.55 5.47
Total “Est 13,232

Share option of the Company

()

Share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme
approved by the shareholders on 2 May 2019 (the
“Share Option Scheme"”) which will remain valid and
effective for a period of 10 years from that date unless
otherwise cancelled or amended.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to reward
eligible participants who have contributed or will
contribute to the Group and to encourage eligible
participants to work towards enhancing the value of
the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole.

On 2 May 2019, the Board of Directors of the
Company approved the Share Option Scheme for
the issuance of in aggregate no more than 7.5% in
nominal amount of the total number of shares in issue
on the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme,
representing 82,514,550 shares (subject to the
terms of the Share Option Scheme and the relevant
provisions under the Listing Rules).

(b) #ATFEARE

()

BERBEHRARAR

rERRIER &
AABEBF—BBARRIR-ZF

—hERBAZH (THEKRES
B #HOERNBERES S BRIF
FITEEHEWIEST  TRIMIASH
Z R EE%ARE+FHRN
RIFBMKRERT -

Rt ST B B TE R AR B SR B
AEBEFHEMBNET W3
B2REDBAATRAEKRRN
BREMND  SARAERTI R
HRMDHEE-

—nNEFERBZH &R
BIEE T AR ST B LI
(VNSNS
AEEBTRMEHNFEBE
7.5% > B182,514,5504% HE/E
RIS B IR R B ST
LEHRANERBRE) °

\_7

—E_—FER
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26

170

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(ii) Share option movements under Share Option

B4 R BB AR HE @)

(b) FAFERE @
(i) FBARIEE FHIEE)

Scheme
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2021 the year the year the year 2021
RIFZ-%& RZF--%
_ —A—H _ +=B E-I-_— B
ez et =k IEE mMisERESE FREH FRTHE FRRH  FisERESE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors
=z
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
(48T) “E-hF+AZA*
Employees
&8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 46,584,000 = (9,698,000) - 36,886,000
(4251) “2-AE+AZA*
Total 69,584,000 - (9,698,000) - 59,886,000
2z
Number of Number of
share share
options options
held as at Granted Exercised Lapsed held as at
Exercise 1 January during during during 31 December
Name Date of grant price 2020 the year the year the year 2020
RZB_8E R-B_BE
—A—8 +ZB=+—-H
ez et =k TEE mMisBRESE FREH FRTHE FREH  FisEREZE
(HKS)
(&)
Directors
£
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 357 23,000,000 - - - 23,000,000
(:T) “E-hF+AZA*
Employees
&8
(In aggregate) 2 October 2019* 3.57 59,510,000 - (12,926,000) - 46,584,000
(42 51) “2-AE+AZR*
Total 82,510,000 - (12,926,000) - 69,584,000
2y
& The share options will be vested to the grantees, g BERERBBAREA B4

among which 30% of the share options would be
vested on the date of grant, a further 30% of the
share options be vested on the first anniversary of the
date of grant and the remaining 40% of the share
options will be vested on the second anniversary of
the date of grant. The exercise period of these share
options shall be 5 years from the date of grant, subject
to the aforesaid vesting period.
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R E M BRI

26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued) 26 [GASKBERGHE @)
(b) Share option of the Company (continued) (b) A AFIEERE @
(i) Share option movements (i) FERR IR E B

Movements in the number of share options
outstanding and their related weighted average
exercise prices are as follows:

HARTENBRERE RER
BT HTEERESHN
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+_A=1+—HLEE

2021 2020
& .-

Average Average

exercise exercise

price in HK$ price in HK$
per share Options per share Options
option (thousands) option (thousands)

SHREN SHEREN
BTEH FERR BTEH R
TfEE (F1) 1T1EfE (F15)
At 1 January R—A—H 3.570 69,584 3.570 82,510
Granted BEH - - - -
Exercised BiT#E 3.570 (9,698) 3.570 (12,926)
Lapsed BERXM - - - -
At 31 December B+ZA=+—H 3.570 59,886 3.570 69,584

On 2 October 2019, 82,510,000 share options under
the Share Option Scheme were granted to certain
directors and employees at an exercise price of
HK$3.57 per share. These options shall expire on 1
October 2024. During the year ended 31 December
2021, no share option was granted, cancelled or
lapsed, and a total of 9,698,000 share options (2020:
12,926,000 share options) were exercised.

RIE—HhE+BEZH NE
BR ST 2118 T82,510,00017 B8
BEMITHEESRKRI.S7TET
BYETEEKREE ZZEH
R _E-_mWE+B—H
A -HE_E-_—F+_H
=t+—HIEFE > LEAME
PR SR AN BS
9,698,000 R (ZE
T4 1 12,926,00010 BB IR HE) B2
EITfE
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26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTION (continued)

(b) Share option of the Company (continued)

(iiij) Share option movements (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, share-
based payment expense of HK$13,668,000 (2020:
HK$38,805,000) (Note 10) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement and was credited in
equity. The weighted average share price immediately
before the share options exercise dates was HK$8.90 per
share (2020: HK$5.98). As at 31 December 2021, out
of 59,886,000 (2020: 69,584,000) outstanding options,
59,886,000 (2020: 36,580,000) options were exercisable.

26

B A B BB RG #E (@)
(b) ZSATIEEBIGKE @

(iii)

FERIERIEE) (&)
REBEEZT--—+=E8
S+—HLEEE REEK

GRBIEROITERS
13,668,000 7T (ZE -8 !
38,805,000 7t) (FIE10) K
FEEBBEE st AR - B%E
B #E471E B HA AT AY h0#E T 15 AR
BAFKSWET (ZEE
F 15988 cRIEZ—F
+_-8=+—H"59,886,00017
(T4 : 69,584,00017)
WARITEERERE S AT TER
Ji& 7 759,886,000/ (Z T =
£ 1 36,580,00017) ©

27 RESERVES

172

27 (#E

Financial asset

at fair value
Share  Employment  through other
Share Treasury Capital option benefit  comprehensive Other Exchange Retained
premium shares reserve reserve reserve  income reserve reserves reserve earnings Total
BATE
AL
w0 2ENEZ
RiEE E#ER A BRAEGERE Bt SREERRE Rt SEGRE RAEH @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
TR Fi#n TEn TEn TEn FEn FEn FEn FEn FEn
(note (i) (note (i)
(H3) (i)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 HEZFZ-F+ACt-HLEE
Balance at 1 January 2021 RIEZ-£-F-H248 1,243,352 = (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 134 31,962 4,484,700 5,492,658
Comprehensive income 2ERE
Profitfor the year ERiER| - - - - - - - - 1,083,774 1,083,774
Other comprehensive income Rth2ENE
Exchange differences arising on tranlation of the ~ AEBINNBADHERRELNER
financia statements of foreign subsidiaries ] = = = = = = = 84,808 - 84,808
Change i value of a financial asset at FVOCI BOTEFARMZENEN
SREEEENE - - - - - 360 - - - 360
Remeasurement of post-employment ERGRTIBRENIE
benefit obligation - - - - 27 - - - - 27
Total comprehensive income for the year EERENGIE - - - - 287 360 - 84,808 1,083,774 1,169,229
Transactions with owners HEBANR S
Repurchase of the Company's shares EEAARNRE (85,637) (367) - - - - - - = (86,004)
Dividends to the shareholders of the Company BRAAREZRE - - - - - - - - (241,580) (241,580)
Share option scheme B
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BRERENEE (f0) = = = 13,668 S S S = = 13,668
- share options exercised -BhiEkRE 33,652 - - - - - - - - 33,652
Acquisition of non-controling interests of a subsidiary  WEMB AR EERER - - - - - - (3,792) - - (379)
Total transactions with owners HEEANRRLE (51,985) (367) - 13,668 - - (3,792) - (241,580) (284,056)
Balance at 31 December 2021 RIBT-F+IB=+-BER 1191367 (367) (#14,978) 1m332 (68) (17,668) (2451) 12,770 5,326,894 6,377,831
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27 RESERVES (continued) 27 f#fE @
Financial asset
at fair value
Share Employment  through other
Share Capital option benefit  comprehensive Other Exchange Retained
premium reserve reserve feserve income feserve Teserves feserve caings Total
BATE
HALf
R 2ENEZ
RinaE ahE  EREER BilkE oRAEEE Ethiak SERE REEA szt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEn FEn T#n T#r FEn Fhn FEn FEn FEn
(note (i) (note (i)
() (ki)
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HECFCEETCACH-ALEE
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIBZBRE-F-A2EH 1,274530 (414,978) 119,859 (406) (10,062) 1341 (149,028) 3,834,670 4,655,926
Comprehensive income 2EkE
Proft for the year ERER - - - - - - - 90,123 90,123
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Hit2EkE/ (BB
Exchange differences arising on translation of the financial BEEMBATNERREENERZE
statements of foreign subsidiaries - - - - - - 181,746 - 187,746
Release of exchange reserves upon disposal of a subsidiary HEMBARBRRZINERE - - - - - - (756) - (756)
Change in value of financial asset at FVOCI
SHEEE 4 S = = = (7,966) = = - (7,966)
Remeasurement of post-employment ERERNBHENHE
benefit obligation - - - 5 - - - - 51
Total comprehensive income(loss) for the year FERANG/ (BB B8 - - - 51 (7.966) - 186,990 900,123 1,079,198
Transactions with owners AREANZR
Repurchase of the Company's shares EEFARNRS (76,031) - - - - - - o (76,031)
Dividends to the shareholders of the Company BERRELRERRZKE - - - - - S S (250,093) (250,093)
Share option scheme B
- value of senvices provided (Note 10) -BRERENEE (f0) S S 38,805 S S S = = 38,805
- share options exercised -BikEkE 44853 - - - - - - - 4853
Total transactions with owners HEEANRZEE (31,178) - 38,805 - - - - (250,093) (242,466)
Balance at 31 December 2020 RIEZEE+IEC+-HzER 1,243,352 (414,978) 158,664 (355) (18,028) 1341 37,962 4,484,700 5,492,658
Notes: B 5
(i) Capital reserve (i) BEiREE
Capital reserve represents the difference between (i) the aggregate ERHEIETIMENEZEE (©WN_E
of the consideration for the acquisitions upon the reorganisation —ZEFE_A+HHEMEBMARNOKER
completed on 15 February 2010; and (i) the aggregate of the share BRE; (VA A EEEENRE A
capital and share premium of the directly owned subsidiaries of the Bl A R IR (7 s B AR BE o
Company.
(i)  Statutory reserves (i) SEEFHE

The subsidiary of the Company in the PRC is required to allocate
10% of the company's net profit to the statutory reserves fund
until such fund reaches 50% of its registered capital. The statutory
reserves fund can be utilised, upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or to increase its registered
capital, provided that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25%
of its registered capital. As at 31 December 2021, retained earnings
comprised statutory reserves fund amounting to HK$214,489,000
(2020: HK$213,905,000).

BERKEKARARF

KRB BB A BB A B AR
MI0%DEELTCHES BEEZHE
SCEEFHAMEANS0% - KHHER
HES ZCHRESTHANREBEHEETH
BREMNEEMES EZHEESRE
BTN HAMER25%KF R
E_—F+_RBA=+—H ' RERAE
ELEREHE£214,489,0008 5 (2 =
T4 1 213,905,000 7T) ©
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28 TRADE PAYABLES, OTHER PAYABLES AND 28 FE{TARFR - HAE (SRR EET R
ACCRUALS 15
As at 31 December
W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
R ZTETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FET
Trade payables FE 1 BRFR
Trade payables FETBR TR 1,632,677 1,353,168
Amounts due to related parties (Note 33(b)) FE 1 BB 75 718 (MEEE33(0)) 36,146 18,099
Trade payables (note (a)) FEFBRFR (BTEE@a)) 1,668,823 1,371,267
Other payables and accruals HAFE (TR R FE 5t TR 1B
Other accrued expenses and payables HMES R RIRR 304,634 256,131
Dividend payable &S A% 2 - 109,284
Receipt in advance from customers (note (b)) FEWERFHIE (kb)) 143,618 96,933
Other tax payables HhFET IR RN 21,794 14,049
Payable for construction in progress FETERE T2 34,183 9,062
504,229 485,459
(a) Trade payables () FE(TERFR

PR AR TR IZ 3 R B HIBV AR Ee D AT (B
BN SXZMHRRIE) T

The ageing analysis of trade payables (including amounts
due to related parties of trading in nature) based on invoice
date is as follows:

As at 31 December

(b)

174

®+ZH=+—H
2021 2020
g “ETEF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ET FAT
Up to 90 days 90H LA 1,557,074 1,174,424
91 to 180 days 91HZE180H 98,300 181,025
181 to 365 days 181HZE365H 125 59
Over 365 days 365HU 13,324 15,759
1,668,823 1,371,267

The average credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers
ranges from 0 to 180 days.

Receipt in advance from customers

Revenue recognised during the year ended 31 December
2021 that was included in the contract liability balance at
the beginning of the year amounted to HK$60,600,000
(2020: HK$46,434,000). The Group expects to deliver the
goods to satisfy the remaining performance obligations of
these contract liabilities within one year or less.
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B E R #IE
BE_ZE"_—F+”°"B=+—HIL:
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29 RIEFRISR
The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during FIEFMEREEREBERNEAZEEN
the year is as follows: T
Deferred income tax assets IREFRSIREE
2021 2020
Z5I-f% “ECEE
Lease Lease
Provisions liabilities Others Total Provisions liabilities Others Total
kfE  HEER Hith fit i AEER Efty &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TAn TER TEn TER TEn TEn TERT
At 1 January ®-B—H 31,119 16,976 25,573 73,668 17,143 17,888 18,530 53,561
Credited tof(charged to) the consolidated income A/ (KB
statement GalaER 17,053 2,612 1,012 20,737 12,187 (1,431) 5,457 16213
Exchange realignment EQEE 759 148 692 1,599 1,789 519 1,586 3,894
At 31 December R+ZB=1+-H 48,931 19,79 21,21 96,004 31,119 16,976 25,573 73,668
Set-off against deferred income tax labilties BHELREHER - (18,388) - (18,388) = (16,102) = (16,102)
Deferred income tax assets, R+ZB=+—8H
net at 31 December BIEMRHERTS 48,931 1,408 21,21 71,616 31,119 874 25,573 57,566
Deferred income tax liabilities IEEFRSRAR
2021 2020
Z5I-f% “BC%E
Revaluation Revaluation
Right-of-use  of intangible Right-of-use  of intangible
asset asset Others Total asset asset Others Total
ERREE ENEEER Ht Bt FAREE EVEEER Hh &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEw TEw TER TERT TER TER FEx TERx
At 1 January ®—-B—H (16,102) (6,696) (1,257) (24,055) (17,590) (7,240) - (24,830)
(Charged to)/credited to the consolidated income (nE) /AAGahER
statement (2,145) 1,013 (4,885) (6,017) 1,988 1,009 (1,194) 1,803
Exchange realignment ERBE (141) 446 (10) 295 (500) (465) (63) (1,028)
At 31 December R+-A=+-H (18,388) (5.237) (6,152) (29,117 (16,102) (6,696) (1,257) (24,055)
Set-off against deferred income tax assets EHETHEIHEE 18,388 - - 18,388 16,102 - - 16,102
Deferred income tax liabilities, R+ZA=+-Af
net at 31 December EEMEREERE - (5.237) (6,152) (11,389) - (6,696) (1.257) (7953)
HERKEHZARAR —ZZ—5FH 175
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29 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

176

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits is probable. At 31
December 2021, the Group has unrecognised tax losses to be
carried forward against future taxable income amounted to
HK$504,671,000 (2020: HK$448,438,000). Tax losses amounting
to HK$504,671,000 (2020: HK$442,800,000) will expire from
2023 to 2040 (2020: 2023 to 2040). The remaining tax losses
have no expiry date. The potential deferred income tax assets in
respect of these tax losses which have not been recognised will
be calculated based on the effective income tax rates according to
prevailing tax laws and regulations in which the Group operates.

Cai Shui 2008 Circular 1, which was jointly issued by the Ministry
of Finance and the State Administration of Taxation, took effect
on 22 February 2008. Under the circular, dividends declared by
foreign investment enterprises (“FIEs”) to foreign investors out of
their cumulative retained earnings as at 31 December 2007 shall
be exempt from withholding income tax. For dividends declared
out of profit earned after 1 January 2008, withholding income
tax will be levied on the foreign investor at a tax rate of 10%
unless the foreign investor’s jurisdiction of incorporation has a tax
treaty with the PRC that provides for a different withholding tax
arrangement.

As at 31 December 2021, deferred income tax liabilities
have not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the withholding tax that would be
payable on unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries of the
Group amounting to approximately HK$256,037,000 (2020:
HK$135,637,000), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.
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EEA TG BT/ EENRE R YR
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW

STATEMENT

(a) Reconciliation of profit before income tax to cash

30 ZRIRE

(a) FRERIGIRATIZHEL

RMIEE

REFSHRE

generated from operations

HOEIAR

Year ended 31 December

BE+__A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
- ZZTTETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FAT FAET
Profit before income tax PRPAIS IR A A A 1,274,447 1,052,841
Adjustments for: FHE
Interest income B (38,036) (38,861)
Finance costs A5 E A 6,979 8,285
Share-based payment expenses RO ERA 13,668 38,805
Depreciation of property, M BERREITE
plant and equipment 20,220 16,287
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEERE 43,865 39,628
Amortisation of intangible assets B E 4,298 4,497
Impairment of goodwill EERE - 14,699
Losses on disposals of property, HEYE BEREEN
plant and equipment, net B8 38 33 127
Share of results of investments FELREmEARZEEXE
accounted for using the equity method (3,454) 6,046
Employee benefit obligations EBERANEE - REEFTE
— defined benefit plans 449 1,397
Net impairment losses on financial assets EREEZREFERE 21,580 65,083
Fair value (gains)/losses on financial assets AT EFF ARGz EREEZ
at FVPL NEE W) EiE (43,450) 5,241
Provision for obsolete inventories REFEERE 15,928 166,816
Gain on disposal of an investment HE—BREREARZERE
accounted for using the equity method e (7,009) -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEWB AR ZWE = (3,126)
Operating profit before EEESEBFI KR
working capital changes: 1,309,518 1,377,765
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills JE W BR 71 R FE U 295 ~
receivables, other financial assets W AL AT IR 2 Efth & R
at amortised cost and other assets BEKETERE (02mM R (682,440) 5,930
Increase in inventories FEE (416,159)  (402,104)
(Increase)/decrease in restricted cash ZIRHIRS (g wEb (6,822) 101,120
Increase/(decrease) in trade and FETRR AU B (0 245 ~ HAFE(T
bills payables, other payables ARF R FESTRIEG I, Ok
and accruals 358,732 (71,220)
Cash generated from operations REMBRE 562,829 1,011,491
BERKRHYARAT —T-—FFH
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30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 30 LREHREREBRME @
STATEMENT (continued)
(b) Proceeds from sales of property, plant and (b) HEME. BEKRRZEFRSIIE
equipment
In the consolidated cash flow statement, proceeds from sales RiEEREMERT LEVE R
of property, plant and equipment comprise: BR&EENMMEMIEEE .

Year ended 31 December

BE+_B=+—HILEE
2021 2020
—EI—F “ET°EZEH
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET

Net book amount IRERE 33 127
Losses on disposals of property, HEMZE BEKREEN
plant and equipment, net 518 JFEE (33) (127)
Proceeds from sales of property, ﬁ’i%% B R
plant and equipment RN PTERIE S S
() Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (0 MEEHFIELXEENHER
activities
This section sets out the movement in liabilities arising from KEHITEIN S FEME TSR
financing activities for each of the years presented. EEXBENEE-
Lease
liabilities Borrowings Total
HEaE (E= =
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FERT FET
As at 1 January 2021 R-E-—f—A—H 122,587 - 122,587
Additions on leases HERE 26,537 - 26,537
Cash flows RERE (33,859) - (33,859)
Foreign exchange adjustments B R 1,337 - 1,337
As at 31 December 2021 RIEZ—F+-RA=+—H 116,602 - 116,602
As at 1 January 2020 RZIZEZZTF—HF—H 111,942 2,254 114,196
Additions on leases HERE 36,811 - 36,811
Disposal on leases AERILE (782) = (782)
Cash flows ReEmRE (29,899) (2,220) (32,119)
Foreign exchange adjustments B R iR 4,515 (34) 4,481
As at 31 December 2020 RIEZEF+°-RA=+—H 122,587 - 122,587
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 HAER
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material RZEZ—FRZIZEZZEF+A
contingent liabilities. =+— El K%l]ﬁﬁ%%ﬁi%%@ °
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32 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Significant capital expenditures contracted for at the balance sheet
date but not recognised as liabilities are as follows:

32 BAEE

REBHIJHNEXREIBEBHNEKRE
AHXWT -

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
2 —F —ETEF
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Property development projects IR PENYEZEREEEFEE14)
in the PRC (Note 14) 347,664 128,565

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has, directly
or indirectly, the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and
operating decisions.

(a) Transactions with related parties
Except for those disclosed below and elsewhere on the
consolidated financial statements, the Group has no
significant transactions with related parties during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

33 BAEARS

fH—R ATHBENEZABRENHEM
ALTHEEMALFHEBREERR
RHEEBEMERTZE  WZALHREA
BZLEMA LR -

() HREANRS
BRTIXFERBERGEEGMBRE
MEMM SN REBRBEEZE
——H+B=+t—HEEHARMH
BUEBERAEARS (CEZTF !
[ e

Year ended 31 December

BE+"-_A=+—HLEE

2021 2020
—E=—F E_TF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TFAET
Transactions with subsidiaries of Hi Sun: BEBErHBARNRS .
— Sales of electronic payment products to —MEHBZRNBAEHERE
subsidiaries of Hi Sun (note (i) S EM FIEEG) 26,220 38,595
— Purchase of raw materials from —BEBZzNBREEERME
subsidiaries of Hi Sun (note (ii)) (BT EE(Gi)) 118,332 76,607
- Rental fee paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun ~ —BEEBZHB AR ZGHEE
(note (iii)) (P = (i) 1,601 1,493
Transactions with a joint venture: HEBERANKS !
— Commission to a joint venture (note (iv)) —MA&EQTZFHE (FEE(v)) 24,315 1,218
— Service income from —BAaERBMNRFEUWA
a joint venture (note (iv)) (Bt 5% (iv)) 6,314 1,168
— Interest income from a loan to a joint —BaERBEHNFEWA
venture (note (v)) (Bt 5%(v) 275 247
— Sales of electronic payment products to —ﬁé%@ﬁﬁﬁ% BfX(Em
a joint venture (note (iv)) (M 5EGiv)) - 176
g The Company is an associated company of Hi Sun whose g ARElAEBNBERT AR
shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. PR ENR LMo
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33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

180

(a) Transactions with related parties (continued)

Notes:

@

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Sales of electronic payment products to subsidiaries of Hi
Sun were transacted pursuant to the terms and conditions
set out in the framework agreement entered into by the
Company and Hi Sun on 19 December 2012. The terms and
conditions of the framework agreement were renewed on 31
December 2015 and further renewed on 5 December 2018
and 23 December 2021 respectively. These transactions were
continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with
the applicable requirements in accordance with Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the section headed
“Connected Transactions” in the Report of the Directors in
respect of these transactions.

Purchase of raw materials from subsidiaries of Hi Sun was
conducted pursuant to terms and conditions set out in the
framework agreement entered into by the Company and
Hi Sun on 30 December 2013. The terms and conditions of
the framework agreement were renewed on 30 December
2016 and further renewed on 30 December 2019. These
transactions were continuing connected transactions as
defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Company
has complied with the applicable requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as detailed in the
section headed “Connected Transactions” in the Report of
the Directors in respect of these transactions.

Rental fees paid to a subsidiary of Hi Sun was charged at a
fixed monthly fee mutually agreed between the two parties.
These transactions were de minimis continuing connected
transactions exempt from shareholders’ approval, annual
review and all disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Sales of electronic payment products to, commission to and
service income from a joint venture were transacted pursuant
to the terms and conditions mutually agreed between the
two parties. These transactions did not constitute connected
transaction or continuing connected transaction under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Interest income from a loan to a joint venture is charged at
an interest rate of EURO Interbank Offer Rate (“EURIBOR")
plus a margin of 5% per annum. These transactions did not
constitute connected transaction or continuing connected
transaction under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
R E M BRI

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) Balances with related parties

(o)

33 FBARS @
(b) ERFEATSBVAEER

As at 31 December

W+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—EI—F ZZTTEHF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TAET
Balances with subsidiaries of Hi Sun: BEE 2 B AT AR .
— Amounts due from subsidiaries of Hi Sun  —FER S5 =~ K B A SIHI 78
(note (i), Note 21) (P5EG) ~ HEE21) 1,509 13,455
— Amounts due to subsidiaries of Hi Sun —ENaEzE AR NRIE
(note (i), Note 28) (PI5EG) ~ MY 5E28) 35,501 18,099
Balances with a joint venture: HMEERNTINER
- Loan to a joint venture (note (ii) —&aEnaEa M) - 4,781
- Amount due to a joint venture (note (iii), ——ETEERBMIRIE (M sEi)
Note 28) Ff5T28) 645 -
— Amount due from a joint venture —REBlREEABNMIE
(note (iii)) (B 5% i) - 3,131

Notes:

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balances with subsidiaries of Hi
Sun are unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of
60 days (2020: same).

(i)  As at 31 December 2020, the loan to a joint venture is
unsecured, with an interest-bearing at EURIBOR plus 5% per
annum and repayable by 7 March 2024. The loan was early
settled in full during the year ended 31 December 2021.

(i) As at 31 December 2021, the balance with a joint venture is
unsecured, interest-free and with a credit period of 120 days
(2020: same).

Key management compensation

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, key
management compensation is equivalent to the Directors’
emoluments as disclosed in Note 35.

=

i)y MRZBE-_—=®F+"-F=+—H">
ZEHREHB B RAEANERS
EIEF R EHNEOREEH
ZEIZF I FL)e

(i MZE_ZF+-_B=+—H>
EENBERAEIRF FEA
B CiRTT R ZEHF A M £5% K
BR_E_NE=FtH3Hr
EBE ZEREBRAN-IZTZ—
FE+-B=+—HLEE2EE
5;%_;_0

(i) MZBE-_—=F+-_B=+—8"
ZERNRERANGERAEILR
AR EHMWE1208EE8 (=
T_FFEIFL) e

0 FEEEREME
BE_ TS HR-ZZTF+Z
B=+—HLEE > FEEEEH
EEBENREBRECESME -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R E M BRI

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 34 ZHARBEBEBRREEES
THE COMPANY

Balance sheet of the Company rAFEEAER
As at 31 December
®w+=ZB=+—H
2021 2020
—E-—F —E°ZfF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Mzt FH&T FET
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REREATKRE 655,172 645,752
Total non-current asset EREEELE 655,172 645,752
Current assets RENEE
Other current assets Hitmen sz 679 625
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS MY B A B RR I8 815,729 785,729
Cash and cash equivalents RERIBSEEY 169,481 253,819
Total current assets REEEHE 985,889 1,040,173
Total assets BEHE 1,641,061 1,685,925
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to the owners ERFFHE AR LR
of the Company
Share capital %N 109,298 109,284
Reserves e (a) 1,507,284 1,447,098
Total equity R ARRE 1,616,582 1,556,382
LIABILITIES =Fi=
Current liabilities mEBE
Other payables and accruals HhFE (T BR 7R K FE 51 =R 1B 24,479 129,543
Total current liabilities and mENBREEKREEEEE
total liabilities 24,479 129,543
Total equity and liabilities EEkhaEiEzE 1,641,061 1,685,925
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 2
R E M BRI

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVES MOVEMENT OF 34 ZARBEEBEBREEEHEES @
THE COMPANY (continued)

(a) Reserves movement of the Company (@) FTLEEEEE
Share
Share Treasury option Retained
premium shares reserve earnings Total
R EE BEER BRERE REE =1
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FET FERT FHET FET
Balance at 1 January 2021 WZEZ—%
—B—BZ &R 1,243,352 - 158,664 45,082 1,447,098
Profit for the year FERA - - - 340,450 340,450
Transactions with owner BEBEAZRS
Repurchase of the Company's [CEAR QB NRG
shares (85,637) (367) - - (86,004)
Dividends to the shareholders of BHAATREZRE
the Company - - - (241,580) (241,580)
Share option scheme IR 2
— value of services provided —BRERENEE
(Note 10) (H3£10) - - 13,668 - 13,668
— share options exercised —BiTERERE 33,652 - - - 33,652
Balance at 31 December 2021 WHZZE-—%+_"H
=t+—RBz&ER 1,191,367 (367) 172,332 143,952 1,507,284
Balance at 1 January 2020 RIEZZF
—R—Hz#&H 1,274,530 - 119,859 6,996 1,401,385
Profit for the year FEEH - - - 288,179 288,179
Transactions with owner BEBEAZRXS
Repurchase of the Company's [E#E A A B RIRRR
shares (76,031) - - - (76,031)
Dividends to the shareholders of B4HAATREZRE
the Company - - - (250,093) (250,093)
Share option scheme BB IE ST
— value of services provided —BRHUERBNEE
(Note 10) (ffE10) - - 38,805 = 38,805
— share options exercised —BiTEERE 44,853 = = = 44,853
Balance at 31 December 2020 W_Z_ZT&F+_H
=+—Hz&& 1,243,352 - 158,664 45,082 1,447,098
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R E M BRI

35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

184

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
The remuneration of every Director and the chief executive
of the Company during the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020 is set out below:

35

BEENERED (EEATER (B
622%) 5538381 27 (WBEEF
HER) RE (56226E) REH L
R AR E IR E)

() ESFRITHAHME
RBEE "S- R E-_F&E+—
A=4+—HLEFE xR BBES
FATEHAB R R BN E 50T -

For the year ended 31 December 2021
HEZZ--E+ACt-HLEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HEARRES RAAFARIENEARER) RECHARUNHE

Emoluments
paid o
receivable
in respect
of director's
other services
in connection
Emoluments with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated  contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa inrespectof of the
of other retirement accepting  Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office  its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme asdirector  undertaking Total
HESER
LYASE:S
il ABES
At EH ARRES ZEMEf
hHEREE EEHERSE BHEfY e
fig it HETeA EEZH (W) BRsHEMES [led fEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
Name iz FEn F#n TEn TEn FEn F#r T#n TEn F#r
Executive Directors HnE%
Nie Guoming (Chaiman) EERER) 1860 1383 5,600 - 181 Ji - - 9,097
Lu e (Chief Executive Officer) EN(H4H) 1,980 7,446 9,000 - 1993 93 - - 0,712
Li Wenjin IXE 1,860 - 8,000 - 1,993 18 - - 181
5,700 8,829 22,600 - 4,167 384 - - 41,680
Independent Non-Executive BUkATES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming 5 20 - 350 - - - - - 630
Wy Min 2 280 - 350 - - - - - 630
Man Kok Kuen, Charles ek 280 - 350 - - - - - 630
840 - 1,050 - - - - - 1,890
Total a3t 6,540 8,829 23,650 - 4,167 384 - - 3510
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments
(continued)

35

For the year ended 31 December 2020
HEIRZZETIR=T-HIEE
Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,

whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

HEAREES FRALARIENRADEY) BECAARUDOHE

() EFRITEEHME @

BEENERED (EEATER (B
622%) 5538381 27 (WBEEF
HER) RE (56226GE) hEH L
mRARENRE) @

Emoluments
paid or
receivable
In respect
of director's
other senvices
in connection
Emoluments with the
Employer's paidor  management
Estimated contribution receivable  of the affairs
money value toa in respect of of the
of other retirement accepting Company or
Discretionary Housing benefits benefit office its subsidiary
Fees Salary bonuses allowance (note (@) scheme as director undertaking Total
HEZER
FARHE
HEAREH
EftRIEH AERES ZENEM
EHELEE EXHEHE BB BBEAE
ne it |2 BEEY (@) BRrENE Pl E 5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Name iz Thn TR TER TER Tén TR TER TEn Tén
Executive Directors HnE%
Nie Guoming (Chaiman) 268 (2R 1620 1,290 4400 = 514 65 = = 7,889
Lu e (Chef Evecutive Officer) EN(HEH) 1,680 3538 7800 - 5,65 90 - - 18767
Li Wenjin IXE 1620 - 6,800 - 5,659 18 - - 14,097
4920 4828 19,000 - 11,832 173 - - 40,753
Independent Non-Executive BUkYnES
Directors
Yip Wai Ming 65 20 - 300 - - - - - 520
Wu Min [ 20 = 300 = = = = = 520
Man Kwok Kuen, Charles YER 220 - 300 - - - - - 520
660 - 900 - - - - - 1,560
Total @3t 5,580 4828 19,900 - 11832 173 - - 2313

Note (a): Other benefits include leave pay, share options and
insurance premium.

MizE(a): EfthF) e S5 H# R IR R
RERER-

BERKEKARARF
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35 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383 OF
THE HONG KONG COMPANIES ORDINANCE (CAP.
622), COMPANIES (DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION
ABOUT BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP. 622G) AND HK LISTING RULES) (continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

(e)

(f)

186

Directors’ retirement benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement
benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Directors’ termination benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any termination
benefits during the year (2020: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there are no
loans, quasi-loans and other dealing arrangements in favour
of the directors, or controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors (2020: Nil).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Company’s business to which the Company
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year (2020:
Nil).
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Five Years Financial Summary

HEMBHE

A summary of the published consolidated results and the consolidated
assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five financial years, as

BREACERVHRRNRBABRENDE

WAEREBEZLAMBRFEECAMGEERER

extracted from the audited financial statements and reclassified as f#REEBEELASEMEUT :
appropriate, is set as below:
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
ZEI-f TZ2I®2F ZZT-NAF ZE-N\E Z—tF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FiEx FEx FET
Results #i5
Revenue WA 7,195,982 5,650,619 4,925,733 4,415,409 3,591,080
Gross profit EH] 2,827,197 2,337,309 1,944,833 1,626,681 1,457,593
Operating profit =il 1,277,972 1,067,172 761,626 639,269 428,023
Profit for the year attributable to RRABFBEA
the owners of the Company FEILEERF 1,083,774 900,123 623,873 522,470 407,507
Financial position BN
Assets and liabilities BEEKEE
Total assets BEMLE 8,821,278 7,637,059 6,719,223 5,775,554 5,232,216
Total liabilities BBE%E 2,364,722 2,063,487 1,979,871 1,562,946 1,335,150
Capital and reserves BT
Total equity AR5 6,456,556 5,573,572 4,739,352 4,212,608 3,897,066
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Particulars of Properties Under Development

TEMEFR

Gross floor Percentage
area Nature of interest of Expected
Property under development (Estimated) Site area  use the Group  Status completion
BEREER HTEEH
EENE (f&3h) BhEE EAME Bt K AT
sg.m. sg.m.
FHK FHk
The PAX Smart Terminals Industrial Park Project
BEERRGEXEER
Property under development located at Yingguang Village, 227,850 65,100 Industrial 100%  Construction in Fourth quarter
Lilin Town, Zhongkai High-tech Zone, Huizhou City, T# progress of 2022
Guangdong Province, the PRC B =S 3
(Lot number: ZKE-005-15, ZKE-005-17) FNFE
iR PEEREEMNTRIEENREMEI N
TERME (MERARSE 1ZKE-005-15ZKE-005-17)
The PRC headquarters Project
FEEIER
Property under development located at Pinghu Financial and 27,220 4,538 Industrial 100%  Construction in Fourth quarter
Modern Service Industry Base, Longgang district, Shenzhen T# progress of 2022
City, the PRC (Lot number: G04207-0163) EBR =S 3
IR RE R DR R TSR ERARBES FNEE

EEYE MEES G04207-0163)
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